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Business customer numbers
increased by 4.6% and business
volumes increased by over 23%.

Total net debt decreased 23.1%
following the bond repayment and
strong cash generation.

Seamless customer service: Qur
Trustpilot score has increased
from 3 to 4 stars in 2018,

Full executive team in place
and leading from the front.

Our trading and forecasting team

agllowed us to maintain our domestic
tariff through good risk management
of our power and gas positions.

Good Energy Annual Report 2018




Launched new marketing campaign:
reached over 34 million impressions
on social media.

We rolled out a new Salesforce CRM
platform and Power Bl, ¢ data led
business intelligence tool.

‘kf‘?"?,g0ur blggest

o
steps forwqrd Transformed the IT function with a 2
: move to an Agile operating model. 3
th’s yeqr S , Qur new server room, improving %
‘ - our carbon footprint, underpinning d
' everything we do at Good Energy. &
o
We developed plans for our new
HQ which is now in planning and
will complete in 2020.
Supporting our Community through
STEMETTES programme: launched
with local schools & sponsorship of
Chippenham Rugby.
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Jufled Dovenport - Chisd Erooutive Gificar

Juliet founded Good Energy in 1999 and was
appointed CEQ in 2002. From the very beginning,
the company’s ambition was to empower people to
be part of a sustainable solution to ¢limate change.

From an OBE for services to renewables to positions
on the board of organisations including the Natural
Envirenment Research Council and Innovate UK,
Juliet has been recognised for leading innovation in
the energy sector. She is alse a member of Powerful
Women's Energy Leaders Coalition.

Juliet holds various roles, accolades and scholastic
credentials with academic organisations including
University of Wales, Bristol University, Imperial
College, Birkback and Londaon School of Economics.

Passionate about creating a business that's a power
for good, Juliet is working with the British Academy’s
Future of the Corporation Research Programme.
This explores how to create businesses that meet
society's need in a positive, purposeful way.

6 Goed Energy Annual Report 2018

Rupert Sanderson ~ Finance Director

Rupert joined us in February 2017 and is responsible
for all finance and trading matters, including
managing our financial stakehoiders.

Having worked widely in larger support services
and energy organisations as well as in supporting
smaller organisations through growth programmes,
Rupert brings valuable experience to Good

Energy as it develops its services and propositions.
His previous roles include seniar financial and
commersial positions at Centrieq, British Gas,
Serco ond Avis Europe.

Rupert began his career as an accountant for
Pw( and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wates.




Stephen is responsible for legal, risk, regulatory,
complionce and secretariat activities across
the group and for ¢o-ordinating the day-to-day
operation of Good Energy Group Plc's Board.

Before joining Good Energy in January 2015 Stephen
was Legal Director for a variety of operating divisions
at Centrica/British Gas. He also helpad the company
set up new brands and businesses such as Hive and
Sainsbury’s Energy.

Stephen is g guolified solicitor and practiced as o
corporate lawyer with Eversheds LLP until 2010,

Tavener - Morketing and 5o
i

Paul is taking the lead on growing the Good

Energy brand, including developing campaigns and
communications that will underpin our customer and
technology-focused strategy. Since joining us in

May 2048, Poul has driven the development and
launch of projects such as our Ways to be Good
digital campaign.

radiig DHrooior

Before making the move into energy, Paul developed
his extensive customer marketing experience in the
retail sector. His previous roles include Group Brand
Director at WHSmith, leading the team that launched
Funky Pigeon.com and, as Head of Marketing at
Sainsbury's, defivering the Try Something New
Today' campaign.

Randall is responsible for all sales and commercick
activities at Good Energy including energy supply.
our Feed-in Tariff and our ventures in battery storage
and EV charging.

Jeining Good Energy in April 2017, Randalt brings
commercial expertise that will help Good Energy
grow and compete within the market. He has
worked in the energy industry for over a decade, for
companies including Centrica / British Gas.

Rondall began his career as a mechanical engineer
and also helds a PhD in thermodynamics.

Sarah joined us in June 2018, heading up our
contact centre and operational teams to make sure
thot we're providing all our customers with high
quality service, building trust and engaging them in
OUr purpose.

Sarah comes to Good Enargy from OVO, where
she was Head of Custormer Operations. Before that,
she was part of the team that transformed the
digital customer experience at ASOS,

Joining us in June 2014, Frangoise is responsible for
human resources and the development of Good
Energy as an organisation. This involves looking after
recruitment, our people policies, training, generating
assets and facilities - including cur new HQ project.

Frangoise has over 20 years experience in human
resources. She started her career with Marks &
Spencer and hos held senior HR roles at Coca-Cola
UK and Irelang, Dyson and EDF.

Frangoise is a graduate of Oxford University and a
Chartered Member of the Institute for Personnel and
Development.

Antoine Khalife ~ Head of Product Strategy
& Porinerships

Antoine builds ties with research and cemmercial
organisations to develog the new products that will
help us power a clecner, greener future.

Antoine has 11 years of experience driving innovation
in the energy sector, Before joining Geod Energy in
Mareh 2017, he was Head of Solutions Development
at SSk.

You can read more about our Board members on pages 42-43 where we welcomed new members Will
Whitehorn in July 2018 and Nemone Wynn-Evans in February 2019
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chairman’s statement

Good Energy’s strong 2018 performance further
demoenstrates our resilience to changing and difficult
markets. We accelerated investment in our future
strategy and progressed our transition towasds
supporting people to genarate, supply, store and
share clean power through technology enabled
energy services.

Oy Marke i coportunities ond shallengss

2018 was another challenging year for the UK
eneargy market. The domestic supply market in
particular faced increased competition, wholesale
market velatility and more regulation. As a direct
result of these factors, twelve companies ceased
trading. But despite these pressures, our robust
business model, different proposition and thoughtful
risk management saw Good Energy end 2018

as o stronger business with enhanced financial
performance, improved customer service and
exciting prospects for the future,

We remain cemmitted to our domaestic supply
business while being clear that we are avoiding

the price war in this market, We gave greater
focus to growing our business supply business,
which performed strongly. While both markets
face structural challenges, the rising awareness of
sustainability and green products represents o large
opportunity for growth.

The introduction of the standard variable tariff

price cap by OFGEM, which came into effect on 1
January 2019, was an anticipated layer of regulation
aimed at protecting consumers and creating a more
regulated energy supply environment. We welcome
this increased market governance, believing that our
eongoing exemption from this price cap demonstrates
our material investment in renewables and that cur
customers support and believe in our purpose.

"good energy’s
demonstrates our

resilience to changing
and difficult markets”

8 Good Energy Annual Report 2018

Strategic development

As a Board, one of our key areos of focus is to create
and dsliver a strategy which navigates the
challenges and opportunities within our existing

and future markets.

As the energy market evolves, so do we. We have
been decentralised energy pioneers since 2004, with
our Home and Smart generation offerings baing
forerunners to the Feed-in Tarift (FIT). Today, we are
the UK's third largest FiT supplier. To grow, we are
investing in multiple channels focused on technology,
strategic partnerships and our people. Our continued
focus en providing o digital experience and services
to complement cur clean power offering was
illustrated by our strategic investment in Zap-Map,
anncunced recently.

To support and govern the business we have also
invested in our Beard of Directors. In July 2018

Will Whitehorn joined the Board as Non-Executive
Director and Deputy Chairman. Will has extensive
experience across ¢ broad range of sectors with «
focus on fast moving and growing companies. Will's
experiance acrass technology, digital and branding
will be an asset as we continue to reshape the
company, reflecting our view of the changing market,
the challenges and the opportunities for Good
Energy’s future.

In February 2019, Nemaone Wynn-Evans also joined
the Board as a Non-Exacutive Director. Nemone

will take on the role of Chair of the Audit and Risk
Committee from May 2019 after her induction
programme. Nemone has extensive experience
across the financial services sectors and has listed
plc and PRA, FCA/FSA regulated experience, having
acted as Finance Director an the main board of a
stock exchange. Nemone s also a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Securities and Investments.
Nemone's experience will be an asset to the group
as we continue to reshape the company, leading the
shift from supplying to sharing energy.

We are proud that our board has squal
repraesentction of men and women, Inclusivity is one
of our core values and something we continue to
prornote throughout the company,




After our AGM in June 2019, | will formally step down
as Chairman of Good Energy. Since my appointment
to the Board in 2012, | have witnessed the businass
grow steadily, while adapting to continual change
within the renewable energy supply and generation
markets. Throughout my time as Chairman, wa have
remained resilient to challenges and stayed true to
our purpose of powering the choice of a cleoner,
greener future together. Technology, changing
customer behaviours and attitudes, and the people
making up the Good Energy team mean we are
well positioned to lead the shift from old energy to
new generation,

We now have a Board in place to guide the company
to meet its strategic goals and | am delighted that
Will Whitehorn will succeed me as Chair following the
AGM subject to sharehalder approval. | would ke 1o
wish the team well on their journey.

Givitiend

Good Energy aims to deliver a prograssive dividend
policy. Its objective is to increase the dividend

over time as profitability increases - providing

an appropriate return to shareholders while also
supporting the company to invest in long-term
growth opportunities.

Following a strong performance in 2018 and
reflecting our confidence in the ongoeing business, the
Board has recornmended an increased final dividend
for 2018 of 2.5p per ordinary share, taking our full
year dividend to 3.5p. Good Energy's scrip dividend

scheme continues to operate and the Board will
confirm the payment timetable of the final dividend in
coming weeks, alongside circulating notice of Good
Energy’s annual general mesting.

In 2019 we expeoct to experience growth driven by
business volumes and continued digital investment,
supported by a cash generative business modsl. We
aim to realise a return on our investments made to
date and to take advantage of further strategic and
cormmercial growth opportunities. We will make
further investments aoross the business as we evolve
into an integrated clean energy supplier, building on
our long and successful history in this market.

John Maltby

Chairman
1 May 2019
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the business model -
creating value

We see the future of our business being focused on technology-enabled energy services,
which will facilitate the sharing of clean power for all.

Supply

~ making.
©olean energy.
~the natural
~choice for our
9 oustomers. .
) L é-b
% &
Q’Q
Technology Paritnerships

Strategic partnerships

SMART technology the
foundation of a new
energy world

Data empowers homes
and businesses

Control, sterage, Electric
Vehicle, sharing economy

Invest in leadership across
the business

Digital and data expertise

Customer focused

10 Good Energy Annual Report 2018

and investment
Research and innovation

Digital platform and
data insight




Our business - how we see the future

Qur journey so far has taken us from a business built on generation and supply to
making the first steps into energy as a service. Qur vertically integrated model cllows
us to interoct with customers throughout this entire chain. From generating power to
consuming clean energy, all the way through to how they monitor and manage their
individual energy consumption.

Generation Supply Energy services

NPD

@
o
Established and proven portfolio of generation 3
3
Large network of 1,400 local generators g
Q
®
Cash generative b
o
e
-
100% renewable clean energy
Growing business customer base
Stable domestic custormer base
Consistent and sustainable track record
Energy services
Act as the intermediary for customers
SMART technology the enabler
Service proposition technology agnestic ”
o
New product development delivering; energy storage, EV, heme services a8
9
2
w
In 2019, we will continue to build on our new product development, rolt out SMART g,
technology and drive into complementary markets to bring this business model to life. 3
3
W
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chief executive’'s revieuy

Given our ambition, 2018 was going to be
transformational. With significant investment across
our business and plenty of opportunities ahead, we
are looking forward to 2019 and hope that you, our
shareholders and customers, are too.

I want to tell you a little more about:

+ Qur plon
+ Our progress

- Qur future

L b

As CEQ, my role is to create and maximise value:

for our shareholders, for our customers, for our
empioysas and for our future holders, All while staying
true to our values and promise to make clean energy
the natural choice. So, to reflect o market that's
shifting frorm simply supplying to sharing power and
lead the charge towards a sleaner, distributed energy
systern, we are focusing investment on technology,
people and partnerships,

Technology

SMART meters are the foundation of g new energy
world. The data they produce will empower homaes
and businesses to realise the value of new energy
technoiogies, usuge control, power storage, efectric
vehicles (EV) and ranewable generation,

People

We have invested in people throughout our
organisation (including a new Executive team) to
develop our in-house digital and data expertise,
rodernise our custorner core capabilities and
spearhead new technology cheices for customers.

Strategic partnerships

Good Energy is perfectly placed to help customers
navigate and benefit from a low carbon, connected
energy world. We will continue to lead it by investing
in three core areas:
- Strategic partnerships and investment

Research and innovation

- Development of digital platform and dato insight




One of Good Energy’s most succasstul and rewarding
yaars, 2018 saw us buiid on our investments
throughout the business. This allowed us to achieve
significant progress on clear strategic objectives that
we set to help us adapt and thrive in o changing
enesrgy market.

Qur objectives in 2018 were:

Deliver a sustainable financial performance

Profit before tax increased by over 214% to £2.3m,
while our billing cycles returned to over 9% after

the disruption we experienced in 2017. This led to
strong cashflow generation, which alowed us to

pay down debt and continue to invest across the
business. Good risk management by our trading and
foracasting team allowed us to maintain our domestic
tariff despite rising wholesale costs - an industry-wide
pressure that led to a number of suppliers going out
of business.

Invest in our people

Woe brought on board new customer services,
marketing and IT directors and now have a full
Executive team in place. Further investment in our
business sales team is already bringing benefits, with
business custcmer numbers increasing by almost 5%
and business supply volurmes incraasing by over 23%.
We aiso continued to build our digital and developer
capability to support our future growth plans. Another
highiight of the year was progressing plans for our
new HG, which is due to be completed in late 2020.

Develop a digital platform for future growth

Cur IT function adopted an "Agile’ model to enable
us to deliver our business strategy. Alongside this,

we rolled out ¢ new CRM plotform and o dota-led
business intelligence tool These digital improvements
have boosted customer experience, ilustrated by
our Trustpilot Score increasing from 3* to 4* over the
year. Our investmenit in digitat also saw us launch o
new brand campaign, which has had over 34 million
impressions on social media.

Build a new product development pipeline

We began piloting our SMART scheme using next-
generation SMETS2 technology 1o prepare for

wider rollout in 2019. Our SMART programme is the
foundation for cur energy as a service model, which
also sees us evolving our EV, storage and home
solutions through partnerships with organisations that
share our commitrment to creating a cleaner,
greener future.

‘a market that's shifting
from simply supplying to
sharing power and lead the
charge towards a cleaner,
distributed energy system,
we are focusing investment

on

In 2019, we aim to make the most of opportunities the
market presents while remaining true to our green
purpose. From improved cost per acquisition and
lower churn rates in our domestic market, to growing
business volurnas and continued digital investment,
we expect another year of growth. As part of this,

we expect to build on our market position in the FT
administration business - the bedrock for our energy
as a service model,

Our futura is based on the three core investrment
areas of our growth plan: technology, people
and partnerships.

Technology

We will continue to invest in cur IT infrastructure and
systems as well as building on our digital and data
capabifities. Cur new app and data insight will help
create o digitised and seamiess customer service
experience. The roll out of our SMART programme
in 2019 will be the next major step on our
technological journey, and the enabiler for our
future energy services.

People

Investing in our peopls is fundomental to growing
sustainably. We will work to embed our new people
promises and leadership behaviours across the
Group and give our people ¢ job to believe in. We

will continue to live our values, as evidenced by being
a living wage employer and our Board of Directors
having b0% female representation. We will also
progress with the development of our new HQ to give
ocut people an inspiring home to be proud of.

Strategic report 13
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Partnerships

Strategic partnerships will remain crucial to our
new product development strategy. In 2019 we
will roll out an EV proposition for domestic and
businass custorners, supported by our recently
announced strategic investrnent in Zap-Map - the
go-to route planning and charging app for Britain's
200,000 EV drivers. This is just one example of how
partnering with organisaticns that share our vision
of a distributed energy systern will help us build our
expartise and propositions in EVs, energy storage and
home generation.

Femhiating inherent rmaurket risks ond
siFeriunities

We evaluate the inherent market risks constantly.
While we had a strong 2018, thers are areas we
continue to be alert to in 2019

Competition
Regulatory and politicat changes

Technological investment, implementation
and management

These material risks are also opportunities for

Good Energy. In the highly compstitive domestic
energy market, other suppliers lead with price. Due
to the higher cost of truly supporting independent
renewable generation, price is not our key selling
point. We must make service, quality and our purpose
the foundation of our offer and work hard to attraet
customers that are becoming increasingly aoware of
sustainability (Ethical Consumer annual report).

Regulatory change (such as the SVT price cap
introduced in January 2019) and ever rmore powerful
technologies are challenging and changing our
industry and our business. We believe that using these
technologies to provide a localised sharing economy
for our customers and the nation is the future of
energy - and that we can waork with the right
pariners to acoelerate this.

14 Good Energy Annual Report 2018

John Maltby, Chairman of the Board since 2012, has
announced his intention to step down at our AGM in
June. | want to thank John for his great contribution
over the past seven years. He has helped Good
Energy navigate some tricky times and supported us
to respond to a strategically testing environment.

Will Whitehorn, our current Deputy Chairman, will
be appointed as Chairman subject to shareholder
approval at our AGM. His customer-focused business
experience and straightforward approach will fit in
well ot Good Energy, and we look forward to further
success with Will in the Chair.

Final thoughis

Our future is exciting. Our plans are clear and on
track, and we have the right pecople, equipped with
the right tools to deliver them. We are optimistic, too.
Aware of the challenges facing our industry, we have
the operational know-how and financial foundations
to meet change, weather storms and emerge
stronger than betore.

Juliet Davenport

Chief Executive
1 May 2019
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have aluays had good service from good energy and
am delighted to have a supplier using 100% renewable
electricity. with current environmental issues, that is
surely a big priority: i am grateful to good energy for
taking a lead in the crucial move away from fossil fuels.”

Gwen

16 Geod Energy Annual Report 2018




domestic customer feedback

We're committed to providing friendly, expert customer service, In 2018, we encouraged our customers to
review Good Energy on Trustpilot and were proud to achieve an overall 4* rating. Here's what some of them

had to say about us:

"‘problem free
service, providing
energy while protecting
our planet, our only
habitat.”

Andrew

Strategic report
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strategic review

2018 was a pivotal year in the energy industry. A
shifting and competitive market, further regulation
coming into force and the continued develepment
and introduction of new technologies all influence the
environment in which we operate.

Ensrgy, or rather how it's contralled and consurmed,
is shifting. The future of energy is moving more
towards how we generate and use it in our own
homes and businesses. This means that the energy
rmarket is changing. More suppliers, more tariffs and
more choice, but with o fundamental shift at its
core: decentralisation.

Decentralised energy flips the power balance, as
households and businesses begin to generate, store,
manage and seil energy rather than simply consume
it. People are increasingly energy aware. Sclar
panels are more affordable. Smart meter innovations
are aliowing homes and businesses to frack and
mrmanage consumption, Newsworthy price hikes, and o
proliferation of price comparison sites and switching
services, mean people are paying more attention to
their bills, too. And across society, we are woking up
to environmental challenges, with greoter awareness
of personal and corporate environmental footprints,

At Goed Energy, we continue to support and invest
in localised energy generation, as the only UK energy
company with more home-generation customers
than supply. From ushiy digital innovation to help UK
households and businesses manage their energy
usage mere efficiently, to empowering more people
to generate, store and share clean powaer, we are
leading the charge towards ¢ cieaner, distributed
anergy system.

O maorkat
Competitive Landscape

The wholesale market continued to be volatile in
2018, driven by rising costs and significant demand
spikes at the beginning of the year as the Beast from
the East took hold.

This trend of rising wholesale costs continued what
we sow at the end of 2017, informing our decision to
implament a price rise earlier in 2018 than we had in
the years before. This allowed us to plan ehead and
purchase our powsr gecordingly - enabling us to
provide our customers with clarity for the year ahead,
rather than implementing multiple price rises reacting
to commodity market movements.

The price competitivenass in the domestic retail
market that erupted in 2017 continued in the early
stages of 2018, This, alongside rising commodity costs,
resufted in several suppliers increasing their prices
muftiple timas throughout 2018, Their customers

i8 Good Energy Annual Report 2018

faced rising bills and fimited service. Despite this,
twelve suppliers have gone out of business since the
beginning of 2018, While this result is not entirely
unexpected, it is customers who have lost out
significantly. We have always believed that customers
should be protected in the energy market, and that
suppliers should have the right levels of experience,
expertise and desire to operate within it.

A shifting focus on business

Customer numbers remained broadly flat in the
period, increasing by 0.2% to 259,863, Within that, we
saw a continued shift in customear mix in fine with our
ambitions to focus on the business sector, Domaestic
customer numbers fell by 3.4%, while business
customer numbers increased 4.6%.

This refocusing from domestic to business resulted

in our overall customer volumes increasing by 3% in
2018 Domestic volumes were down 1.2% in line with
customer numbers, while business volumes increased
by 23%, This is < trend that we expect to continue
into 2019.

Qur overall customer mix for 2018 was 53% domastic
customers to 47% business customers (in 2017 it was
55% domestic to 45% business). Domestic supply
volumes (gas and electricity) represent 73.9% of total
volumes, down from 77.1% In 2017, while business
supply volumes reprasent 26.1% up from 21.8%

in 2017. This is as expected, and we believe thot
business customers and volumes will continue to grow
in 2019 and beyond.

The business market is driven more by customer
sarvices, trust in a quality renewable product and
our ability to deliver a more tollored service for
businesses. This creates a wide range of potential
custorners to engage with, particutarly in the SME




sector. While we're not moving away from ocur
historic core business of domestic supply, volume
and customer number growth will be driven by the
business market. Wa have a clecr policy focused on
delivering profitable growth, built cround a foir price
and better service.

Regulatory ond political changes
Stondard variable tariff price cap

The doemestic market saw one of the maost significant
regulatory changes confirmed in 2018, Effective from
Jonuary 2019, consumer prices for electricity and gas
supplied through variable tariffs have been capped
at rates set by the energy regulator, OFGEM. The

first capped period is 1st January 2019 to 31st March
2019. OFGEM has already implemented o further
price rise of over 10%, effective as of 1st April 2019
and will continue to review the cap at six monthly
intervols thereafter.

As with all Good Energy tarifls, ocur variable
electricity and gas tariffs directly support renewable
generation across the UK. In recagnition of this
(armeng other factors) OFGEM agreed that the price
cap did net apply to our variable tariffs for electricity
and gas for the first capped period. OFGEM is
continuing its work to assess whether the price cap
should apply to our variable tariffs in future and has
confirmad we are exempt from the cap until at least
1st September 2017,

We will continue to work with OFGEM with the
aim of securing confirmation that the price cap
will net apply to our variable tariffs for subsequent
capped periods.

FIT scheme

On 1%th July 2018, the Govarnment contirmed that
the FiT scheme will be closing its doors on 31st March

2019. While FiT payments will continue for existing
customers for up to 20 years (25 years in some
cases), it will be closed to all new entrants.

We will continue to administer the scheme for both
our domestic and business FiT customers. The FT
proposition, in which we have one of the largest
rmarket positions, remains an important aspeact of our
business os it is the foeundation of energy as a service
in our business modeal.

In 2018, we described how the old model of energy
production is evolving to a new generation of energy
services, with customers and technology driving this
change. We believe this is an opportunity to invest
further in cur proven capability and skill sets, to take
the lead in this new energy world.

Influenced by a growing awareness of the
envirenmental impact of energy, market research
indicates that our target market is broadening.
Caring about ethics and the environment is not

just for "Eeco Warriors™. A growing number of "Eco
Worriars” both customers and businesses, want to
be part of a movement to "do the right thing”, but

in a way that is straightforward and efficient. The
customer experience is therefore crucial. A broader
proposition using digital technology to deliver simple,
straightforward service is the answsr.

A brand delivering on our purpose

In the second half of 2018 we released a new
marketing campaign, as part of our ongoing
investment across the business. The campaign
positioned choosing clean power as another
simple way for people to do a good thing for the
envitronment, alongside everyday actions such as
recycling and avoiding single-use plastic,
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Cur research behind the campaign revealed that,
even though 85% of people have good 'green
intentions’ only 45% act on these intentions. So
we wanted to demonstrate that switching to
clean power is not only one of the easiest ways
to help tackle olimate change, it's aiso one of the
moest significant.

The campaign has had a big impact, with over 34
million impressions across social media channels;
7 million views on YouTube: and has lead to an
incremeantal 5,000 visits te our website and over
7,000 further quotes as a result. Al helping to
connect a wider cudience with our story, cur
passion and our purpose.

To bring our purpose 1o Yife, we are making clean
anergy the natural choice. And to do this, we aim
to make the customer experience of Good Energy
as stralghtforward as possible. Whetner that's
through making switching ond billing as seainless as
it can be, having simple tariffs or working to meet
all our customer’s energy needs in an integrated
service, 2018 saw us progress towards this goat:
our billing cycle returned to over 9%, our new app
was launched with a pitot set of customers and our
investrment in Zap-Map was another step towards
creating an integrated energy journey.

As we move into 2019, we will continue to provide «
wider range of energy services for our customers,
ermployees, shareholders and stokeholders.

Energy services - the business model

We see the future of our business being focused
on technotogy-enabled energy services, which will
facilitate the sharing of clean power for o,

Our journey so far has taken us from o business

bullt on generation and supply to making the

first steps into energy us a service. Our vertically
integrated modei allows us to interact with customers
throughout this entire chain. From generating power
to consuming clean energy, all the way through to
how they monitor and manage their individual energy
consumption.

in 2019, we will continue to build on our new product
developmaent, roll out SMART technology and drive
into complementary markets to bring this business
model to life,

New product development and technology

SMART technology is the goteway to cur future suite
of energy services. We are now approved to be in
pre-pilot and will be rolling out to our full customar
base later in 2019.
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We had previously decided not to roll out SMETS1
meters due to the commercial interoperability
challenges this technology foces. fisn't
environmentally responsible fo install meters that
could turn 'durnb’ when a custorner switches and
potentially be serapped ond replaced.

Instead, our planned SMART programme, based

on second generation SMETSZ meters and othar
advanced integration technelegy, will give our
customers the option to monitor energy usage via an
app on their smartphone. This will eliminate the nead
for o display in the home, further reducing waste and
the associoted environmental feotprint.

Qur vision for the future is to see energy as a service,
enabled by SMART technology. Our pipeline of

new products will continue to enhance our overall
customer propositions. We are driving these forward
through projects with our strategic partners, which
you can read about on pages 24-25.

Our investment in Zap-Map

in March 2019, we announced a strategic investrment
in Zap-Map, o Bristol based £V data platform. This is
an investment that supports the growth of EVs in the
UK and aflows us te be part of that market.

Zap-Map is the go-to app for Britain’s 200,000
wluctric vehicle drivers - helping with planning routes,
identifying charge points, checking their availability
and sharing power. Its 70,000 regular menthly users
have more than 11,000 chorging devices to choose
from across the UK including service stations and car
porks, retail sites and private driveways. The ability for
households and businesses t¢ opt 1o share electricity
with other Zap-Map registered drivers - setting
access times and charging costs and accepting
secure peer-to-peer payments through the app -
aligns with our localised power strategy.

In the future, we will be working with Zap-Map to
integrate this power sharing feature seamlessly
alongside energy tariffs, billing process and overall
enargy consumption analysis. Qur ability to integrate
both supply and energy services for our customers is
a vital next step on our energy journay.

Data and digital capability finked to new energy
technologies will be the key to the future low carbon
market. We are looking to build on our existing
position by continuing to invest in this in 2019

and beyond.










our focus for 2019

Governance Report

EV for domestic
and business

Financial Statements
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Partnerships and

new product development

Ty v
Lap-Map

Accelerating towards the electric vehicle
future. We are investing in the electric
vehicle charge point app, as part of our
move towards a focalised power future.
Joining forces with Zap-Map is an important
step on our journey towards making energy
more localised. It reflects the changing way
in which peopie live with energy. Rather
than simply consuming it, more and rmore
households and businesses are begining

to generate, store, sell and share. Flectrio
vehicles are a huge catalyst for that change,
making power more tanaible than ever
before. Our partnership with Zap-Map will
help ths company accelerate its exciting
new products.
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Eden Project

In 2018 we extended our partnership

with the environmental educotional

charity, Eden Project. After having
announced plans to install our first battery
project ot their HQ in Cornwall, we Lecame
the official energy partner of the Eden
Sessions — a series of live concerts held
each summer. As well as powering the
events, we set up an experiential feature

for people to engage with and learn chout
renewable clean energy and climate change.



5

TS

Landon School of

Encouraging environmentally friendly behaviour. LSE has teamed up with Good Energy on a field
experiment to test how promotional images, peer behavicur and referral incentives can encourage
communities to adopt green energy. A number of our domestic customers have been invited to join the
research programme, where they'll be asked to promote thair choice of energy supplier using items such
os garden signs and window stickers, with the aim of exploring whether this influences their surrounding
communities to also choose green energy.

We are working together with Honda, Upside Energy and Salferd University to test how EVs can impaot
heme energy efficiency. The tests are taking place at Salford University's Energy House - the only full-scale
building built inside a fully environmentally controllable charmber in Europe. The project will explore how
an EV battery could be attached to home energy systermns such as sclar panels, heating and hot water.

BestRes

Exploring household energy management. Our Home innovation Trial is part of the Eurcpe-wide BestRes
project, which is researching how to better integrate renewable generation into energy grids. We provided
ecach household that signed up to the trial with o smart hub and linked app, which measured energy usage
by different types of appliance. We then analysed the data to establish buseline consumption profiles,
which allowed us te see the savings each househeld could make by changing their usage behaviour,

Throughout the trial, we used the data to create engaging content to educate people about wheare they
were using the most energy. The trial entered its final stage at the end of 2018, in which the households
were encouraged to turn their new insight into energy-saving action.
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corporate responsibility

Good Energy was set up in 1999 with o cleor
purpose: to power the choice of a cleoner, greener
future togethsr with our customers, people,
generators and investors.

As an organisation founded to tackle olimate change,
snvironmental and socidl responsibifity are of the
core of our business. Our 2018 Purpose Report covers
what we're doing to achieve our purpose In more
detail, and is available on our Group website, group.
goodenergy.co.uk. This section includes some key

details from the report,

Chur cusfomsrs

We're proud that over 80% of our bondhelders and a
significant amount of our shareholders are also Good
Energy customars. We cannot agchieve anything
without our custemers, and their commitment to our
purpose is crucial, So we introduced a number of
custorner promises ta make sure they're at the centre
of everything we do.

Aware - changing society’s conversation about
energy. This includes raising awareness of our brand
and the benefits of clean power.

Evaluate - simply explaining why what we do is good.
We tell people about our power sources and how
we purchase it, making clear infermation about cur
service available through our website, blog, social
media channels and customer newsletters.

Onbeord - making it simple to join. We have invested
in our digital custorner touchpoints, including rolling-
out our Feed-in Tariff online application form after
listening to customer feedback. We're also proud

to have brought plenty of new businessas on board
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since 2017. Go to pages 32-33 to see why some of
our business custormers chose Good Energy.

Service - earning trust and being helpful. We're

as focused on looking after existing customers as
acqulring new ones. This year we extended our
Customer Care opening hours to make it easier for
people to manage their accounts.

Retain - offering new products and services. From
developing our new app to readying cur SMETS2
meter roll-out, in 2018 we pushed forward with new
services for our customers. We're also partnering with
research organisations to investigate the ground-
breaking renewable technologies which will inform
the products and services of the future. Find out
about some of our projects on page xx.

Advocate - helping customers feel proud of their
choice. We support a number of organisations that
are advocates for sustainability, and make sure our
customers are aware of the good theyre doing by
choosing clean power.

Our people

Frem the moment people join Good Energy, we focus
on providing all they need to work in a way that
reflects our values: Straightforward, Inclusive, Fair and
Determined. You can see our 2018 purpose and value
award winners on page 28.

To help bring our values and culture to life, in 2018 we
appointed over 30 Culture Champions from across
the business. They will play o key role in developing
our people policies, infrastructure, employee
engagement intiatives and more,

A key new working initiative we've focused on'is
increasing our people’s ability to work flexibly and
remotely. We believe this promotes productivity,
waellness and supports people to manage busy fves.
And, by reducing trave! to the office, rermnote working
will bring down our carbon footprint. Our carbon
emissions are detailed in our 2018 Purpose Report.

Health and wellbeing

At Good Energy, we want to make sure mental heaith
is recognised as being as important as physical
health, ond that people feel comfortable asking

for support when they need it. In the past year, we
teomed up with Mental Health First Aid Englond

to train people across our business to be able to

offer support. We've also provided mental health
awareness training to all our leaders and managers.

To support our people’s welibeing, we offer benefits
including: lunchtime sports clubs, subsidised local gym
membership, showers and bike lock ups to support



Services Sirector, Frangoise Woouwsrd - People und Suiuye Risectrr, Bromio Tinker - Non-Executve Direstor (ngdependes

active travel to work, as well as a health insurance
scheme which gives people some financial support
towards medical and other weflness treatments. And
at the office, people can help themselves to free, fair-
trade fruit.

Fair pay and equality

We're committed to tackling our gender pay gap
and making sure we have an equal gender balance
at all levels of our arganisation. 40% of our board and
executive team are women. This high percentage of
waomen in senior roles is unusual for the energy sector
and o fact we are proud of.

Reducing our environmental impact

Gur new HQ will reduce our environmental impact
and accommaodate our growing business. Due to be
compieted in 2020, it will include rooftop solar panels,
low energy LED lighting and 40 electric vehicle
charging points.

In 2019 we are introducing a Green Travel
Allowance, which you can read more about in
cur Purpose Report.

Supporting independent generators

We source our power from over 1,400 independent
renewable generators spread across the UK. They
use wind, solar, hydre and biogeneration technology
to generate 100% renewable electricity. This year,
as well as adding more sclar and wind power,

we've expanded the number of biogenerators in
our porticlio. These include landfill gas sites, which
capture the gas given off by food waste and burn it
te generate electricity.

At Good Energy, we're committed to paying alf

our generators a fair price for their power. This is
influenced by the wholesale price of energy, which
can go up and down. In 2018, we launched our
PriceTrack service, which allows generators to agree
a redlistic power price that they'd like to achieve. We
then rmonitor the wholesale electricity markets and
let the generator know when it reaches their goal
price, to allow them to lock in a good rate for their
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA).

Giving back to the community

In January 2018, we were pleased to hand one of our
solar sites, Newton Downs Farm, over to a comrmunity
enargy group.

We still own and operate six solar and two
windfarms, providing the communities around these
sites with annual benetit funds on o 'E per kilowatt’
formula that rises with inflation. Each community’s
fund is administered by o committee of local
people, who allocate funding to charitable and
community projects.

Supporting our local area

We are one of the biggest employers in our home
town of Chippenham and are always exploring
ways to have a positive impact on our surrounding
community. For example, we're proud to sponsor
Chippenham RFC, o fair and inclusive club whose
values closely match our own.

As one of the only UK energy cormpanies with

a fermale CEQ, encouraging girls into science,
technology, engineering and maths (STEM) related
careers is a cause were passionate about. We've
teamed up with award-winning social enterprise,
Stemettes, to do just that.
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our people

Each year, we invite cur people to nominate colleagues who deserve recognition for brilliant work. Below are
some of the paople who have been awarded for bringing our Good Energy values to life and going above and

beyond in their roles.

Helenna from our IT & Digital
team was awarded for
consistently demonstrating
determination and inclusion in
her rale.

‘Combined with her commitment to advancing
‘Women in Tech' in Good Energy, she has used her
initiative in building networks across the industry;
understanding and championing better practice
and advancing the cause internally. Her latest
initiative is the establishment of a 'Coding Club’ to
give everyone the opportunity to develop IT skills,
tap into the potential of the workforce and open a
pathway te potential career changers”.

Toby, our customer services
learning and development
manager, was awarded for
representing all our values in his
day to day role.

"Always committed and dedicated to demonstrating
our values, ensuring individuals have the best start
to their employment at Good Energy. Toby has
defivered o huge arnount of high-guality training for
Customer Services & has improved our selection
processes which has resuited in higher percentages
of people passing their probation”.
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Steve in the Finance team
was awoarded for always
being inclusive,

A fantastic asset to the team
- his enthusiasm te be involved
while providing an aura of calmness has led him
to be at the forefront of a number of key projects.
Supportive to everycne; offering words of kindness
and wisdom.”

Bradley works in the
Feed-~in Tariff customer
services team and

was awarded for being
determined and inclusive
in his role.

"Consistently delivering on all the tasks he is
given. Never works a day without a smile on his
face; never phased by the armount of workdoad
and continues to learn and grow in his role.

An absolute pleasure to work with'.

Determined & fair

Jennifer from the

customer services team was
awarded for consistently
providing fantastic customer
service.

"A great teacher & motivator. Her determination
to make every customer’s day great is a
credit to how hard she works day in day out”
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operating review

Whot we do

Good Energy was founded in 1999 by Juliet
Davenport OBE with the ambition to tackle climate
change by generating and investing in renewable
energy. Qur purpose is to power the choice of a
cleaner, greener future together with our customers,
employees and invastors,

Since we started, we have been supplying clean
power, sourced from our own generation assets and
from independent, UK-based renewable generators.
We pioneered a more localised approach to energy
by supporting home generation, launching the
HomaGen scheme in 2004, which then became the
blueprint for the Feed-in Tariff.

Today, we continue to support localised energy
generation, as the only UK energy company with
more home-generation customers than supply
customers. From using digital innovation to help UK
households and businesses manage their energy
usage more efficiently, to empowering more people
to generate, store and share clean power, we are
leading the charge towards a cleaner, distributed
energy system.

2018 performance highlights

In 2018, we deliversd a good performance against
our wider business objectives and our custormer
promises. These promises focus on engagement,
onpoarding, service and retention as the underlying
principles for putting customers at the heart of
sustainable business growth.

Engage

Grow business sales in the SME sector with an
upskilled team; better systems and dota; and improved
customer experience. This year the marketing team
will foeus on lead generation for the business sector.

Retention rates continue to be high as the business
foouses cn profitable and sustainable growth. When
it came to engaging new customers, our averall
business supply customer numbers grew by 4.6%

to 122,210, The business supply market performed
well as a result of increased investrment in our team,
resources and overall capabilities, Cur focused
growth in the SME sector saw our business supply
customers increase by 39.8% to 4,347, This targeted
approach to growing our customer base was
supported by our implementation of a new Custormner
Relationship management (CRM) system from
market leader Salesforce,
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Looking ahead. we will focus on acquiring customers
in a targeted way that allows us to grow sustainably
while improving retention rates and maintaining
margin. We will achisve this by having an effective
marketing plan and @ brand promise that engage
customers and drive brand awareness. We will also
enhance customer experience of Good Energy
through developing our digital proposition, including
faunching our new app and improving our online
portal and switching tool.

Onboard

Strengthen our FiT services business through growing
retail customer numbers, and increasing portfolio
switching for business and portfolios customers.

Our FT services business had a strong year, with
custamer numbers increasing by 6.0% to 152,244,

Our domestic FIT business increased by 16% to
36,471 custorners, while our business FIT increased

by 3.2% to 115,773 customers. Throughout the year
we improved our FiT offering, including rolling out our
digital self-serve onboarding platform. With the FiT
scheme closing to new entrants on 1st April 2019, we
will continue to serve our existing customers, enhance
our propositions and grow our market share.

Service

Develop our digitaf platforms and data strategy to
underpin cur customer offering.

In 2018, we made significant investment in our
digital capabilities. David lvell was appointed as
Chief Technology Officer in June 2018. David
brings the experience and expertise to deliver
our new digital strategy, which includes investing
in new technologies and systems to enhance the
customer experience by improving our digital
products, services and operating systems. From
adopting on ‘agile’ operating model to adding new
roles and skills, our IT and digital teams are well
placed to achieve these goals.

Internally, we upgraded equipment and launched
new software such as Microsoft Office 365 and
Skype to help our people work better together,
Introducing Power Bl a business intelligence tool,
is helping us see data across the business in a new
way - supporting us to provide increased service
for our custormers. Alongside this, we continued

to roll out improvements across all our custorner
touchpoints.

Develop a product delivery teamn dedicated to
bringing new propuositions for energy services to
the market.



Our product development team has continued to
build our energy services capability while developing
a pipeline to unlock the opportunities of the future,

SMART meters are the foundation of our future suite
of energy services, with cur rofl-out of SMETS2 meters
beginning in 2019. We detayed the roll-out of SMART
so that we could provide our customers with the

best available technology, which can be integrated
throughout their hormes. Our SMART programme

will enable custorners to rmonitor energy usage via a
smartphone app, eliminating the need for an in-home
display and its associated environmental footprint.

Alongside SMART, we have been working with
partners to develop future products. These include
our battery storage projects with the Eden Project;
working with Honda and the University of Salford
to explore how EV batteries can become part of a
home energy network; and taking part in the
Europe-wide Best-Res project to research the
impact of consumer behaviour on energy usage
and how to better integrate renewable generation
into energy grids.

Retain

Retain customers and enhance the brand through
better propositions and improving customer service
and experience.

In 2018, total customer numbers increased by 0L.2%
1o 259 863, in line with our overall expectations. We
focused on growing our business customer base,
which grew by 4.6% in the pericd. The dornestic retail
supply market remained highly price competitive.
Having previously cutlined that we would not engage
in a price war for customers, we saw our domaeastic
customer numbers decrease by 3.4%.

Custorner services received investment in 2018 in
terms of people, skills and technology. Sarah Morgan
joined us in June 2018 as Customer Services Director,
bringing digital customer experience and service
expertise from past roles with OVO and ASOS.
Sarah's leadership, along with our billing consistency
increasing to over 99%, have alrecdy had tangible
results; positive feedback from customers has seen
our Trustpilot score increcse to 4%

Marketing and communications also sow increased
investment, with Paul Tavener joining as Marketing
Director in May 2018. Paul has brought proven
experience from the retail sector, with previous roles
including Group Brand Director at WHSmith and Head
of Marketing at Sainsbury’s. Paul's extensive customer
marketing experience helped launch our new
marketing caompecign in HZ 2018

Supply

Supgly revenue increased by 13.7% to £113.0m,
driven by strong growth in business custorner volumes.
Electricity revenue increased by 16.5% to £80.1m,

gos revenue grew by 97% to £28.0m, while FiT
administration revenue fell by 3.0% to £4.9m.

This was despite customer number growth, and
reflected a large number cf initial custemer
registrations in 2017.

Supply opercting profit increased by 60.8% to £5.7m
(2017: £3.5m). This increass was due to extreme
weather conditions at the start of the year driving up
business and domestic gas volumes, aleng with our
domaestic price increase earlier in the year.

In 2018, the total volurne of all energy deliverad to
customers grew by 3.0% to 1.09 million MWh (2017:
1.06 miilion MWh3. We achieved significant growth

in business electricity supply volumes of 19.9%%. The
compatitive environment and high switching rates
across the market led to broadly flot growth in the
retail businass by volume and by meters. Our strong
customer service and reputation in the FiT market
enabled us to grow FiT customer numbers by 6.0%, to
152244 in total.

Generation

Good Energy owns and operates eight renewable
enargy facilittes across the UK that deliver 100%
renewable electricity to the UK electricity grid. We
have six sclar sites and two wind farms, with a total
of 47.6MW of installed capacity in our continuing
generation portfolio.

As outlined in 2017, we have stopped developing
further renewable assets. While we have heen
succassful in creating, utilising and menetising energy
generation assets, the market has moeved in favour of
lorge-scale developers with better purchasing power
for renewable assets and access to low-cost finance.

The rermoval of government subsidies for many
renewabie energy technologies does not affect the
financial performance of Good Energy’s existing
generation sites.
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business customer feedback

innecent drinks

The UK’'s number one smoothie brand,
Innocent Drinks, has been a Good Energy
customer since August 2017, As well as
making drinks that taste good, they want
their business to do good, too.

It's imperative that everybody does
sormething, even if it's just a small thing
like taking the stairs instead of the lift.
That's why we chose for our offices to be
powered by renewable electricity, It's part
of cur commitment to do our bit to keep
climate change below 2 degrees.”
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Mool's Yord Remedies

Neal's Yard are pioneers of natural health
and beauty, using organic, plant-based
ingredients in their remedies. A Good
Energy customer since Novernber 2016,
they're committed to lessening their
environmental impact.
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Watergate Bay Hotel

Set beside the sea in north Cornwall,
Watergate Bay Hotel is a luxury retreat that
describes itself as a ski resort on a beach.
The hotel has put sustainability at the core
of their business, and we’ve been supplying
them since 2013.

‘We have regular meetings where we

talk about the new technologies that are
available to help us manage our usage;

and also what innovations are coming in
the world of energy conservation that we
might not be aware of but Good Energy
can be our experts and lead us in that road.
Working with Good Energy is great for us,
because it's a business that reflects our
values back up through our supply chain.”

if yvou have the ability to walk lightly across the earth
and not leave too many footprints in your wake, I think
that's a very positive thing.”

}iodey asubuisaog

A partner of Good Energy for four years,
the Soil Association is a UK charity and
organic certification bedy that campaigns
for healthy, sustainable food, farming and
land use.

"To be powered by 100% renewable
electricity is an cbvious choice for the Soil
Association. Now that we have our own
building and we have the ability to choose
our energy supplier, Good Energy is a
natural fit to be able to do that.”
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key performance indicators

Good Energy measures its progress with o number of key performance indicators (KPIs). In 20018, we've added
ermployee retention and carbon emissions, reflecting their continued importance as indicators of value as well
as staying true to our purpose.

Further detail on the factors driving the KPI performances below is set out in the Chief Executive, Financial and
Operating Reviews within this Strategic Report.

Customer melsy growih

Measures how Customer meter growth Measuras Business customer volume {MWh)
we have grown the growth
total custorner 265,000 nenergy 280,000

meters 260,000 consumed

by business 30
255,000 Y ! 233,000
0 20,000

custorners
245000

180,000
0 2017 28

0.2% 240000

- g 2017 2008
2017:4.3% 232%

2017: 46%

RES Revenue growth ©
Measures NPS Measures how Revenue growth (£)
how lkely o we have grown .
custormer s to 50 total customer 130,000
recommend meters 12000C

Good Energy

2017 2618 0 0000
20000

110006

B0 000
=46 £116.9m Vi ivg 2018
2017:£104.5
2017:>46
Cperating margin
Measures Gross margin (%) Meacsures Operating margin (%)
profitability as profitability as
o propartion a10% a proportion of eux
of revenue revenue after 55%
after the cost 29.0% operating costs
of sales 5%
270%
46%
0 28,0% .
s 08 5.7% 2017 2018

28.6%

2017:281% 2017:54%

1 fotolirstofied costomet mpters and FIT rstolicions as a3 Deoeribes

st BusinGss due 10 the testruciunng and reorgonisation changes being undor laeer in the yeal,
ners. This 2017 comwe refloces BT Business custornat Mp3

2, In 2017 the ~ompany dd not complote o MNPS survey for the
howevar completed an NPS sucvey coacng FIT Dusinass o

3. Revenue, Morgin ond EHMNTDA gures retlect continuing aperatuons
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Mcasures EBITDA (£)

profitobility of

the compaony 15000
before the cost 12600
of intercst, tax,
depreciation
ond amortisation 9,000

11400

7000
0 5.000
£10.6m
2017: 9.9m

Measuring and
continually
improving

. a0
environmentat 1600
performance G

00
o 400
200
-28.2% X

Attract and
retain employees
with the right 1007
skiils, knowledge  gox
and mind-set

0%

0 40%

20%
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g ® % (-]

4. Acrmiristration cost ncluding doprasimion and arnartaasion

2017

2057

Employee retention (%)

2017

2018

Carbon emissions (tc02e)

2018

2018

Admin cost growth
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efficiency by
locking at
administration
cost growth

12.9%
2017 14%

Measures

generation
cutput from
owned and
operated assets

Reflects the
rate of turnaver
or loss of
custorners

17.1%

5. 201/ Churraate fon our wnderlying retal husiness, excludng the mpact of switching creder Theidg Deal,

Admin ¢ost growth (£)

36,069

/5000

20,005

156,M00
2017

2018

Generation volume (GWh)

0000
8000
76,000
72000
72000
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Churn (%)

205

15%

1067
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key risks

gk management approache
Good Energy recognises that effective risk managernent is oritical to enable it to meet its strotegic objectives.

The Company has a clear framewotk for identifying and managing risk, both at ar operctional and strategio
jevel Its risk identification and mitigation processes have been designed to be responsive to the changing
ervironment in which it operates. The impact of emerging risks on the Company’'s husiness model are also
considered and used to make informed decisions, including as to the delivery and evolution of the Group's
strategy. The risks below capture those risks that would have the most significant, adverse impact - tosed
on their impact and / or likelihood - on the Company. While the risks are typical of the risks faced by other
enargy suppliers, we believe the Company is well positioned to rnitigate through a combination of our risk
management proceises, our control activity and our evolving strategic diraection.

Generation Supply Enargy services

Supply Supply
P
PRA B2C B28

- Generation

NP

Political

Regulatory

Financial risk
management

Cyber

# lower risk “ower/mediurm risk & medium risk @ elevated risk

Our business modeil

Good Energy has twa principal business areas: Our Supply busingss where we serve over 250,000 domestic
and business customears to match all the electricity used by them with power sourced directly frorn 100%
renewable sources. Within Supply, our Feed-in Teriff (FIT) administration services belp households and
business meet either alf or part of their electricity dermand directly from their own renewable technology.
Our Generation business delivers 100% renewdable slectricity to the UK slectricity grid from eight renewable
energy facilities across the UK that Good Energy owns and operates.

Cperaticnally, our segments are supported by a common central operating platform which provide functional
support 10 our businesses around sales, IT, marketing etc. This allows us to achieve etficient scolable growth
and to use the platforms to cross-sell different services and capabiliies to different customer types,

Our business model repliss on some impaortant partnerships and communities, in addition to our customers
who range from individual aonsumers and households, smali businesses through to large corperations.

Qur proposition to our customars is to be a trusted and fair customer-focused supplier of 1002 green energy,
who Is driven by a clear purpose to powsr the choice of o cleaner, greener future together. This unique
proposition, along with our strong prand, are important slements of our business model.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Political risk: The government has introduced a
market-wide Standard Variable Tarift (SVT) price
cap. This is a price cap, setting the maximum price
that a supptier is dllowed to charge for electricity
and gas for domaestic consumers, focused on
consumers that have not proactively engaged in
the market and chosen a toriff (and are therefore
on the SVT, or other default tariffs). While we are
encouraged there is opportunity to secure an
enduring derogation from the price cap, there
continues to be a risk that we may nead to operate
in conditions thot might require increased capitd
expenditure, increased operating costs or otherwise
hinder the development of the renewable energy
industry, through for example a detrimental impact
on returns and therefore the attractiveness of the
sector. The price cap relates to the domestic supply
part of the business only.

Regulatory risk: The energy industry is ever
changing to keep up with technology, consumer
needs & demands as well as government policy
(e.g. SMART and EU General Data Protection
Regulation {GDPR) etc.); Regulations reguire
the Company to make various changes to its
procedures within set timelines, and have aiready
led and will continue to lead to the Company
incurring additicnal time and cost in order o
ensure compliance with these new regulations.
A significant volume of regulatory change is a
risk to the Company as it can divert time and
resource away from growth initiatives as well as
the risk of not meeting regulatory deadlines.

Cyber-attack: As we grow as a business and

as technological advonces are made, we are
increasingly exposed to the threat of cyber-attack.
As with many businesses. a successful cyber-
attack on Good Energy’s network could result in
the Company being unable to deliver service to its
custorners, potentially damaging its reputation,
and leading to censequential customer and
revenue loss. It could also lead to the imposition

of financial penakies.

Financial risk management: This has been
considared within note 3 in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

What have we done?

While the implarmentation of the SVT price cap is
beyond our control, we have worked extensively to
try to influence CFGEM and to explain why we should
be exempt from the tariff and therefore secure an
enduring derogation from the price cap. Evidence to
demonstrate customer engagement, active decisions
by our custorners to be on chosen tariffs and the
associated costs of providing green energy has
underpinned our pasition.

The Company has invested in its regulatory and
compliance capability and has enabled the
Company to respond effsctively to the volume of
change, thereby reducing the risk.

In May 2018, GDPR came into effect. The penalty
for failing to demonstrate compliance with

the new law can lead o fines of up to £20m

or 4% of group turnover. GDPR brings with it

the requirement for full accountability of dota
controllers managing and procassing data with
data subjects having increased rights over how
their dota is processed by organisations.

Good Energy takes the security of all personal
data very seriously and manages the risk in a
numbper of ways to ensure our customer and
employee data is protected. There are a number
of controls in place to minimise the risks, such
as system acoess rights, mandatery training

for all employees upon inducticn with periodic
refresher training appropriate to the employes’s
role. Our Guiding Principles set the requirements
for all employees and contractors which include
consaguenceas for non-adherence.

Good Energy continually assesses its security
policies, standards and procedures and adjusts
them so they are proportionate to the threat
profile the Company faces. The Company actively
monitors our threat environment utilising the
National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) which
provides weekly updates on the latest cyber
landscape. During 2018, we enhanced our web
filter to prevent access to maliclous websites
and enhanced preventative security to prevent
phishing and whaling scams.
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finance director's review

Drodit ond loss

Revenue increased by 11.9% in the period to £116.9m
(2017: £104.5m). This was driven by increasing

our business supply volurnes, as well as by a rise in
domestic gas volumes due to the extreme weather
conditions at the start of the year. Gross profit
increased 14.0% to £33.4m (2017: £29.3m), driven
primarily by the domestic price rise the company
implermented earlier in the year.

Cost of sales increased by 11.0% to £83.5m (2017:
£75.2m). This was predominantly driven by a market
wide incredase in wholesole commodity prices.

Gross profit margin increased to 28.6% (2017: 28.1%)

and operating margin ingreased ta 5.7% (2017: 5.4%).

Administration costs increased by 12.9% to £26.8m
(2017: £23.7rm), primarily because of continued
investment in overadll capabilities and resourcing. This
included o one-off increase in our Expected Credit
Loss provision, of £1.4m in the period, and the one-off
aged customer credits release of £1.0m.

Finance costs deoreased by 10.6% to £4.3m, as we
saw the impact of lower borrowing rates and a
reduction in overall net debt.

Profit before tax increased by 213.9% 10 £2.3m
(2017 £0.7m).

Cash flow and gensration

Good Energy generated £18.1m cash from
operations in a period of billing improvement. This
significont increase resulted from us resolving the
operational and billing issues we experienced in the
corresponding periad in 2017, Working capital in the
second holf of the year benefitted from a warmer
than average autumn and early winter.

There was o net cutflow of £8.5m from financing
activities due to the partial redemption of Good
Energy Bond | following the sale of Newton Downs
solair site in 2017, The repayment of the bank facility
supporting the discontinued developrnent business
was also a facter in this outflow,

Following the strong operational cuash performance
and repayment of our first bond, overall cash and

cash equivalents increased by 14.2% to £15.7m (2017:

£13.7m) while reducing our overdll levels of net debt,
Strong cash generation provides the platform for
ongoing investrment dcross the business.
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The Group has maintained its robust financial position.
We aim to make sure we aptimise how we use capital
by continually reviewing the returns on our assets,
balancing operating requirements, investing in our
growth and paying dividends back to shareholders.

Furading and debs

To suppeort our growth, Good Energy continues
to have gooed aceess to a range of funding on
good terms.

Good Energy Bond | was partially redeemed in 2018,
with £3.6m, equating to 45% of existing bondholders,
choosing to continue in Good Energy Bond lat a
lower rate of 4.26%. £4.3m was repaid in March 2018
Following this repayment of Bond |, interest cost will
be around £0.3m lower on a cornparable annuatised
basis. This represents a positive step towards lowering
our ongeing financing costs and reducing the gearing
ratio over the medium term,

Total net debt decreased by 23.1% to £40.9m (2017
£53.0m) following the bond repayment and strong
cash generation. The gearing ratio decreased to
68.5%, down from 74.5%.

In 2017 there were issues with implementing our
new billing system, but it is now fully operational.
This has helped our overall billing cycles cperate at
over 99% and has improved and normatised cash
collection rates.

Cuerall customer receivables have remained flat

at £27.6m. Additional billing from higher overalt
customer volume, with the domestic price rise
implemented at the start of 2018, has been offset
by collecting debt - the billing of which was delayed
through to the start of 2018.

We carried out a systematic review of all outstanding
custorner balanees in the first half of 2018,

following the billing delays in 2017. To address these
outstanding balances, we have utilised both internal
ond specialist collections agency resources, as wel as
improving internai customer services procedures to
speed up our collections.



This review highlighted that billing delays had led to
deteriorating collection rates for certain customer
acoounts where debt was cutstanding at the end

of 2017. As a result of this activity, we increased the
Expected Credit Loss provision by u che-off £1.4m in
the first half of the year. in respect of these specific
segments, reflecting the level of risk outstanding
above our norrmgal continuing business.

In the second half of 2018, a new policy for credit
write backs was approved by the Board. This states
that all credits on final custorner accounts will be
written back after all reasonable and econormic
endeavours have been made to contoct the
custorner, The exceptionat credit in 2018 incorporates
remaining credit balances from previously utilised
systems and covers the period from 2003 to 2016,

On an ongoing basis, the release of credits will be
included within administrative costs.

Earnings ond dividepo

Basic Earnings per share from the continuing business
increased te 10.2p from 8.1p. Profit attributable to
shareholders in 2017 included an incremental £0.6m
as a tax credit, which followed a provision against the
discontinued generation business.

Good Energy aims to deliver a progressive dividend
policy. The policy has the objective of increasing the
dividend over time as profitability grows providing

an agppropriate return to shareholders while

also supporting us to invest in long-term growth
opportunities. As a result, a final dividend of 2.5p has
been recommendad, increasing the full year dividend
to 3.56p.

Good Energy continues to offer a scrip dividend
scheme and will confirm the timetabte for payment
of the final dividend in coming weeks, alongside
circulating notice of its annual general meeting.

In 2019, profits are expected to be weighted towards
the first half of the year, in line with cyclical trends
and assuming seasonally normal weather and stable
commodity costs. Continued investrment is planned
across the business to drive future growth, including
digital and online capabilities, our new HQ and new
propositions in EV and battery storage.

Overall, we continue to expect 2019 to be another
year of financial and strategic progress for the Greup.

Rupert Sanderson

Finance Director
1 May 2019

Strategic report 39

@
2
1]
=
=3
o
-
o
@
=
[1]
)
o
=
-~

SJUSWIDLG [PIoUDULY






Tt

.




board of directors

Joined Board:
October 2012

Responsibilities:
Chairman of the Board

Member of Audit & Risk
Committee

Member of Nominations &
Remuneration Committee

Appointed CEQ:
2002

Joined Board:
September 2016

Responsibilities:
Chair of Nominations &
Remuneration Committee

Interirn Chair of Audit & Risk
Committee

John Maltby - Non-Executive Chairman

John helds a number of non-executive roles including Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of Risk for Bank of Ireland UK and Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of Audit and Risk for National Citizens Service
Trust. Previous roles include Chairman of the Swedish bark BlueStep Bank
A5, Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Risk & Audit for Tandem
Bank, CEO of Williams & Glyn, Group Director of Commercial Banking at
Lloyds Banking Group and several other senior positions in the financial
services sector.

Skills and Expertise: Has o wealth of experience with small businesses and
publicly listed companies and a reputation for delivering growth, which is
invaluable to the Company as it continues its development.

Juliet Davenport - Chief Executive Officer

Juliet started her career in renewable energy at Energy for Sustainable
Development Ltd (ESD) in 1995 and was appointed Executive Diractor

of both ESD (now CAMCQ) and ESD Ventures Lid in 1996. Passionats
about renewable ensrgy and its potential to impact on climate change, in
2013 she was awarded the OBE for services to the sector. Juliet is highly
regarded in the renewable energy industry and has held positions on
rmany strategio and advisory boards, including DECU's Renewable Advisory
Board, OFGEM's Environmental Advisory Committee, Ministerial Smart
Metering, and Regen SW. She is also a council member of NERC.

Skills and Expertise: Worked for o year at the European Commissicn on
European energy policy, then at the European Parliament on carbon
taxation and holds a masters in environmental economics.

Emma Tinker ~ Non-Executive Director (Independent)

Emma is a private eguity investment Director who brings o wealth of
investment experience. She is a Director of numerous renewable energy
companies, established the renewable energy business at HG Capital in
2002 and founded Asper Investment Management in 2016 as the spin-

out of that business where sha is Chief Investment Officer. She has been

a Director for renewable developers and independent power producers,
working across o range of renewable technologies. Emma is also a Director
of Gardeners’ Royal Benevolent Society.

Skills and Expertise: Has substantial commarcial experience spanning the
entire lifecycle of investrnents in energy businesses, and has worked across
a range of renewable technologies.
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Joined Board:
December 2017

Responsibilities:
Member of Audit & Risk
Committee

Member of Nominations &
Remuneration Committee

Jeined Board:
July 2018

Responsibilities:
Member of Nominations
& Remuneration
Committee, Audit &
Risk Committee and
Funding and Investment
Committee

Joined Board:
February 2019

Responsibilities:
Member of the Audit & Risk
Committee

Timothy (Tim) Jones - Non-Executive Director (Independent)

Tim was appointed Non-Executive Director in December 2017, Tim

is an experiencad Technology Executive who brings over 20 years

of digital innovation, execution and operation. Tirn has been CIO of
Moneysupermarket Group PLC since 2013, Insurance Times ClO of the
Yeor in 2014 ond @ regular mernber in the top 20 of the annual CIO
100. Prior to joining MoneySupermarket, Tim was co-founder and an
Executive at AutoTrader UK, the internet media marketplace giant one
of tha UK Digital ‘Unicorns’ alongside AO.com, Skyscanner and of course
MaoneySupermarket.com,

Skills and Expertise: Depth of experience in leading digital development
with companies. Tim is currently responsible for delivering innovative
consumer propositions in the highly requlated verticals of insurance,
financial services, energy, telecommunications and travel.

Wiiliam (Wiil) Whitehorn - Nen-Executive Deputy Chariman
(Independent)

Will focuses on fast-moving and growing cormpanies, with extensive
experience across d broad range of sectors - and especially in technology,
cigital and branding.

Will currently holds a number of Non-Executive roles across a range

of companies, including Stagecoach Group PLC, where he is Deputy
Chairman, and space technology company AAC Microtec of Sweden. He
was also one of the founder shareholders of Purplebricks Group PLC. He is
shortly to join the Royal Air Force Board as a Non-Executive Director, with
the rank equivalent of Air Vice-marshal.

Before this, Will spent more than 20 years with Virgin Group, where he was
responsible for global brand development and corporate affairs, He also
played a key role in founding several Virgin businesses including Virgin Rail
and Virgin Galactic and was special advisor to Sir Richard Branson,

Nemone Wynn-Evans - Non-Executive Director (Independent)

With extensive experience in the financial services sector, Nemone brings
a broad range of skills across business development, corporate finance,
corporate governance, investor relations and marketing. She is currently
Chair of the Risk Commitiee, a member of the Audit Committee and is
Senior Independent Director of Shepherds Friendly Society. Nemone also
holds a number of roles across a range of companies, including as a Non-
Executive at Hinckley & Rugby Building Socisty where she sits on both the
Audit & Risk Committees, is Chief Operating Officer at SORBUS Partners
LLP and is a member of the Comimercial Advisory Committee at Coventry
University. She is also a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Securities and
Investments.

Nemone began her career in the City of London and has worked with
many listed PLC and PRA/FCA/FSA regulated companies, having acted as
a finance director on the main board of a stock exchange.
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governance & directors’ report

Oiverview

Good Energy is committed to high standards of
corporate governance and places good governance
at the heart of the business. In July 2018, the Board
of Good Energy formally adopted the GQuoted
Companies Aliiance’s ("QCA") code of corporate
governance ('the Code") in line with reguirements of
the London Stock Exchange's AlM Rules, The Code
sets out 10 corporate governance principles. The
ways in which Good Energy meets thase principles is
described in the following sections and incorporates
infermation about the ways in which the Boord
discharges its duties under the Companies Act

2006, 5172,

1. Establish o strategy and business
modeal which promote fong-term value for
shareholders

Good Energy is a different kind of energy company,
powering the choice of a cleaner, greener future
together. Guided by our principies and values, Good
Energy has a track record of successtully challenging
the way things are done, putting powsr back into the
hands of families, communities and businesses across
the country,

In establishing Good Energy’s strategy, the Board
considered the long-term interests of Good Energy's
stakeholders and set a course which dligns those
interests with those of the Company, promoting the
long-terrn interests of the Company and long-term
value for shareholders.

Good Energy's strategy seeks to accelerate the
transition towards energy as a service, facilitating a
clean, securs and affordable energy future which
benefits energy consumers as a whole and reduces
environmental impacts from the energy lfecycle, The
Strategic Report describes Good Energy's strategy in
rmore detall.

Good Energy is well positioned to deliver long-term
value for shareholders through the implementation of
its strategy, focusing on:

Customers - putting the customers at the heart of
everything that we do and striving to maoke clean
energy the naturat choice

Technology - leveraging technology for the
benefit of our customers, driving engagement
and growth by putting customers in control of
their energy usage
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Pecople ~ making sure we attract and retain the
right people, in the right reles, to deliver for our
customers and realise our strategic ambitions

Partnerships - innovating and acoelerating our
growth potential through key strategic partnerships

Following a period of transition into 2018, Good
Energy has aligned its business model to better enable
delivery of its strategic ambitions. We have engaged
our people through ongoing communication, using
muftiple channels to reinforce the pioneering, agile
culture that enables Good Energy to continue to
innovate and drive change.

The Strategic Report describes the excellent progress
Good Energy has made in pursuit of its strategic
arnbitions and the momentum we are building to
deliver the energy market of the future.

Good Energy is proud to have a diverss shareholder
base, including a significant proportion of private
shareholders {many of whorn are also Good Energy
customers) and other leng-term investors. The Board
seeks to understand the needs and expectations of
its stakeholders, particularly shareholders, through
insight gained from regular customer surveys and
focus groups, periedic investor surveys and obtaining
structured feedback from investor roadshows. Good
Energy’s strategy responds to the insight gained
through these consultations.

Good Energy provides shareholders and other
stakeholders with relevant information in a timely
and balanced manner and meets with its largest
shareholders periodically to understand their views
on Good Energy's performance and future plans.
Good Energy actively encourages shareholders

to participate in its AGM as an opportunity for all
shareholders to share their views openly with the
whole Board and other shareholders.



3. Consider wider stolke!
rasponstisiitios and
fong-torm sUSooss

The Board recognises its primary legal responsibility
to promote the success of the Company for the
benefit of its members as a whole, taking into
account the interests of othar stakeholders including
custorners, employees, partners, suppliers, the
environment and the local communities in which
Good Energy operates. Interpreting this responsibifity,
and in line with recommendations published by the
GC 100, the Board considers that its duty is not to
bhalance the interests of the company and those of
other stakeholders but instead to determine, after
weighing up the relevant factors, the course of action
it considers best leads to the long-term success of
the company.

Purpose-led from the outset, Good Energy continues
to prove that the "other way’ is better:

We source ali our electricity from certified
renewables like solor power, wind power,
hydroelectric power and biofuels. We always
have and always will - no other UK energy supplier
can promise that. Gur gas is carbon neutral

too: 6% comes from biomethane and we offset
the rest through the Green Gas Certification
programme. We aren't only interested in reducing
carbon emissions though. The projects we select
deliver wider benefits in their local communities,
including tackling local poverty and empowering
local women,

We were named "best green electricity supplier”
and one of the UK's most ethical companies of the
last 26 years by Ethical Consumer Magazine.

We are also proud to have been an accredited
Living Wage employer since 20156,

Establishing the right culture is an integral part of
delivering Good Energy’s strategy. More information
on this is out befow.

You can find out more about where and how we
source our energy, how we ook ofter cur people and
how we treat our customers at: group.goodenergy.
co.uK .

As a mission-led business, we aspire to be as
transparent as possible about our activities. Our
Purpose Report describes what we've been doing

to deliver our rnission, and reflects on our progress
towards achieving our purpose and can be found at:
group.goodenergy.co.uk.

Good Energy recognises that effective enterprise
risk management is critical to enable it to mest its
strategic objectives.

We have a clear framework for identifying and
rmanaging risk, both at an operational and strategic
level. Qur risk identification and mitigation processes
have been designed to be responsive to the changing
environment in which we operate. The impact of
emerging risks on the Company’s business model are
also considered and used to moke informed decisions,
including as to the delivery and evolution of our
strategy.

Key Risks are described in the Strategic Report. While
the risks are typical of the risks faced by other energy
suppliers, we believe the Company is weli positioned
to mitigate these through a combination of our risk
rmanagement processes, our control activity and the
strategic direction we are pursuing.

Further information on risk management and controls
are described in the Audit & Risk Committee Report.
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The roles and responsibilities of the Board and
Executive are olearly defined and regularly reviewed.
Details of current roles and responsibilities are set out
in the tables below.

Further infoermation on the operations of the Board
and its committees is set out later in this Directors’ &
Governohce Report,
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Role of the Board .

«  Providing leadership, knowledge and
experience to support and guide *

the Executive.
Engaging with shareholders.

Chairman - Effective running of the Board
John Maltby
with the principles of good

corporate governance,

Setting the Board agenda.

Other non-executive -«
directors the Executive.
Chief Executive

Juliet Davenport

Overseeing the day-to-day

Developing and implementing the
Group's strategy as approved by

the Beard.

Company Secretary -
Stephen Rosser
governance arrangements and

supporting implementation across

the Group.

Setting Group strategy and objectives -
in collaboration with the Executive.

and its committees in accordance

operation of the Group's business,

Overseeing the design, sultability
and effectiveness of the Group's

Overseeing and monitoring business
perforrnance, internal contrels,
governance and risk management.

Oversight of principal risks =
competitive position, political risk,
programme delivery.

Managing the Board to ensure
adequate time for discussion of
all agenda items,

Ensuring the Board receives aceurate,
timely and clear information.

Providing skills and extermal experience to support the Chairman and

Establishing ond maintaining
formal and appropriate delegations
of authority.

Maintaining o olese working
relationship with the Chairman.

Providing governance, cdvisory and
administrative support to the Board,
all Directars and the Executive.

Aippnrfing the Nominations &
Remuneration Committee with

Acting as Secretary to the Board and
its committees, ensuring compliance
with Board procedures and corporate

Board Composition, succession
planning, directors’ induction and
ongeing training requirements.

governance requirements.

Other information:

+ The roles of Chairman and Chief Exacutive have
always been split with the Chairman acting in a
non-gxecutive capacity.

The Chief Executive is accountable to the Board
for the operating and financial performance of
the businesses.

The Board is responsible for setting strategy and
mediurn term plans, approving the appointment
of executives, setting executive remuneration and
devising incentive programmes, agreeing financial
and accounting policies and ensuring that the
shareholders are properly informed about the
state of the businesses.

+ At the end of the reporting period, the Board
comprised the Chairman, Chief Executive and
three non-executive directars, each of whom the
Board considers to be independent.
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The Board currently has a sufficient range of
relevant cperational and financial experience to
be able to discharge its respensibilities.

The Board has constituted three Committees:
Audit & Risk, Nominations & Remuneration and
Funding & Investment. With the exception of the
Funding & Investment Committee, all committess
comprise only non-executive directors.

The Board takes external advice as approepriate.

Cne of the Directors has a substantial shareholding
in the Company. in aggregate representing
approximatsely 3.8% of the issued capital. All
current directors hold shares in the Company
although the Company does not require them to
do so.



The Board has an appropriate balance of skills

and experience as well as an appropriate balance

of personal qualities and capabilities. The Beard is
committed te maintaining balanced repraesentation

of both wornen and men across the organisation,
including at Board level and within the Executive team,

The Board regularly reviews its composition and
that of its committees to ensure it has accesss to
diverse perspectives and the necessary up-to-date
experience, skills ond capabilities to discharge its
duties effectively.

The Board's annual evaluation review process

is described in more detail in the Directors’ &
Governance Report, together with details of changes
rmade te the composition of the Board and its
Committees to support to ensure the right balance
of complementary skilis and capabilities for the next
phase of Good Energy’s growth.

During 2048, the Board was delighted to announce the
appointment of Mr William (Will} Whitehorn as Deputy
Chairrmnan, a rele which also encompasses

the responsibilities of a senior independent director.
Since the end of the period, the Board has alse
welcomed Nemone Wynn-kEvans s independent non-
executive director. Nemone will become the Chair of
the Audit & Risk Commitiee following completion of
her induction.

Further information about the Board, including
biographies describing each director’s experience,
are set out on pages 42-43.

The Company encourages each director to identify
their individual training needs to support the
effective operation of the Board and the dalivery

of the Company's strategy. The Company provides
speoific training on renewable enargy and energy
markets both in house and using external providers
as appropriate. Over the period, the Board have also
received briefings on a variety of topics including
developments in corporate governance and
appropriate handling of personal data, insight from
shareholders, custoemers and staff on their views and
expectations of Good Energy as well as formai briefing
frorn the Compony's nominated adviser

on updates tc the AIM rules and other capital
rmarkets matters.

Qver the period, the Beard and the Executive

team have worked together to evolve the flow of
information to the Board. This has resulted in simpler,
insight-focussed reporting to facilitate effective
debate and enable robust and timely decision-rmaking,

7. Evoluate boord performance based
on clear and relevant objectives, seeking
continuous iImprovemont

The Board conducts an annual evaluation process

to driver its continuous improvement. The process

is described in more detail later in this Directors’ &
Governance Report, together with the Board's key
areas of focus for the current year and progress rnade
towards previcus objectives.

Good Ensrgy is a different kind of energy company.
Our core values - fair, straightforward, determined
and inclusive ~ underpin the delivery of our purpose
to powsar the choice of a cleansr, greener future
together.

We were named ‘best green electricity supplier” and
one of the UK's mast ethical companies of the last
25 years by Ethical Consurner Magazine. We are
also proud to have been an aceredited Living Wage
employer since 2015,

Further information is set out in our Purpose Report
and within the Strategic Report, Directors' &
Governance Report and Neminations & Rermuneration
Committee Report.

Good Energy aperates on the principle that
workplace where people’s ditferences are valued
crectes a more productive, innovative and effective
organisation. We also recognise that attracting,
retaining and incentivising key talent is integral to its
ability to meet its strategic objectives.

The Group's employment policies follow best practice
bosed on equal opportunities for all employess,
irrespective of race, gender, nationality, colour, sexual
arientation, disability, marital status, religion or age,
All decisions relating to employment are objective,
free from bias and based upon work eriteria and
individual merit. Consultation with employees or their
representatives has continued at all levels, with the
aim of ensuring that views are taken into account
when decisions are made that are fikely to affect their
interests and that all employses are aware of the
financial and economic performance of the business.

Maore information about our performance on gender
pay and our approach to modern slavery can be found
on the relevant pages of the Company’'s website.

Good Energy complsted a group-wide upgrade of

its control environment in 2015, introducing o code

of conduct: a 'Guiding Principles’ approach that is
appropriate for a fost-growing business. By design,
our Guiding Principles reflect the Board's duties under
the Companies Act 2006, s172. This ensures everyong
who works at Good Energy reflects our ethos and
values when working together and that our policy
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ard procedural framework supports the Board in
discharging its duties.

Our Guiding Principles:

provide a framework to empower Good Energy
employees to make informed decisions that
are in the best interests of the company and its
customers and other stakeholders:

retlect the snvironment in which the Company
cperates,

mitigate risk, and

explain where our employees can get advice,

The Guiding Principles demonstrate our commitrment
to working with honesty, respent, transparency

and integrity. They alse include policies relating

to, amongst other things, customer service, datg

Nominations &
Remuneration Committee

Audit & Risk

Board Compasition

Succession planning

Board nominations

Remuneratior policy

incentive design and target setting

External auditer

Exscutive remuneration review

Gender
Divarsity!

% Fernale & Non-execyutive
Male ) Exesutive
LUt as at 31 Mook ULy,
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Management Committee
Corporate Governance
Financial Reporting
Internal Controis

Risk Mancgerment

Balance of

the board!

handling, health & safety, approvals & authorities,
Procurement, and corporate responsibiiity,

The Guiding Principles are refreshed at least annually
and the Group continues to evolve the way in which it
secures engagement from employees at all levels,

9. Maintgin governunce structures and
provesses thot gre it for purpose and
support good decs’séon-—mmkt‘ng by the board
Good Energy’s governonce structures suUpport its

corporate culture and are appropriate to its stage of
development and the complexity of the business,

The Board hasg established three principal
committess to Support effective governance
and decision-making:

Funding & Investment Committee

Funding strategy and exgcution

Oversesing capital and other
significant investrment decisions

Oversesing Corporate transgctions

Investor relations strategy

Oversight of principal risks

i

Non-Executive
Tenure?

2.5 vrs




The Board continuously monitors the effectivenass of
its governance structures, enabling them to evclve
aver time to support the Good Energy’s growth and
development.

As described above, the Board considers that its

duty is not to balance the interests of the company
and those of other stakeholders but instead to
determine, after weighing up the relevant factors,
the course of action it considers best leads 1o the
long-term success of the company. Good Energy
welcomes dialogue with shareholders and takes care
to calibrate perspectives expressed by individual
members in the context of Good Energy’s members
as a whole.

Principal communications with shareholders are
conducted through the Annual and Interim Reports,
AGM and interimn RNS announcements on key
business developments. Good Energy supplements
its Annuat and Interim Reports with presentations

to analysts and other interested stakeholders (all
avdilable on its website) and meets with larger
shareholders at least twice annually to discuss both
performance and governance, as well as our future
plans.

The Board actively encourages shareholder
participation at its Annual General Meeting and other
genaral meetings from time to time.

Good Energy's Investor Relations team supports
effective communications with shareholders and
other investors and can be contacted at: investor.
reiations@goodenargy.co.uk.

Geood Energy also maintains active communication
with other stakehclders, including:

Customers:

- updating customers on Good Energy’s activities
through our Purpose Report, regular newsletlers,
communications via digital platforms and
publication of content on goodenergy.co.uk and
on the Company's social media channels;

hearing custormers views and expectotions of
Good Energy through thematic assessment of
customer contact, gathering in the moment
feedback from customers during or immediately
following calls, conducting periodic consumer
focus groups and regular custormer survey

People

engaging cur people regularly with Good Energy’s
purpose and performance through structured,
regular briefings and discussion forums throughout
the year;

maintaining regular engagement with our pecple
both individually and through an establish group of
employee champicns from acress the business

encouraging infcrmation sharing and debate via
our internal communications portal, Good Hub;

conducting semi-annual engagement surveys

Bondholders

progress updates ure provided via the Company’s
websites, through its Purpose Report and
periodically as part of other communications to
bondholders, for example within letters enclosing
notice of Interest payments

Delivery partners

operating a tailored approach to support the
development and maintenance of strategic
relationships

Local communities

rmaintaining open relationships with local
authorities and key business groups in Wiltshire
and the South West; and

continuing our engagement with communities
hosting Good Energy’s renewabla generation
assets

Policy-makers and regulators

mairtaining a constructive diclegue with policy-
makers on matters relevant to Good Energy’s
strategy and current operations

«  regular engagement with the energy regulator,
Ofgem, both bilaterally as well as through public
consultations and industry forums

targeted participation in industry groups aligned
to Geod Energy's purpose, values and strategy
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The Board and Hs ocomenisieps

The Board is ultimately responsible to shareholders for
the direction, managerent and performance of the
Company and its business.

Biographies of the Board's Directors are set out pages
42-43. Details of the Directors’ remuneration, including
share options are set out in the rermuneration report
on pages é4-70. Details of the Directors’ interests

in ordinary shares in the capital of the Company

are set out on page 40 under Statutory and other
information.

The Board maintains a list of matters reserved for its
approval, generally being those itemns which affect
the shape, risk profile or strategic direction of the
Group, as well as the key fincncial items. The Board
reviews this schedule annually and it is updated as
necessary. During the year, over half of the matters
on this list were considered by the Board.

The Board has established three principal committees
which focus on particular areas as set out opposite.
The chairman of each committee reports to the
Board on its activities after each committee meeting.
Reports from each committee are included later in
this section.

Matters that are not reserved to shareholders, the
Board or one of its committees are the responsibility
of the Chief Executive who has established and
maintains a documented schedule of delegations

of authority to members of the Executive and

other management. This delegation of authority

is incarporated within the Company's Guiding
Principles. The delegation of authority includes a
detailed authorisation matrix covering finoncial limits
and approvals needed when conducting business on
behalf of the Group.

The following table sets out the compasition of the Board and its committees as at 31 December 2018,
planned changes for 2019 and those serving during the year:

John Maltby (Chairman)
Juliet Davenport {CEQ)

Will Whitehorn
{Deputy Chairman)

Emma Tinker (Non-Executive)
Tim Jones (Non-Executive)

Nemone Wynn-Evans
(Non-Executive)

S N T TP SO
ERTES STET NI S SRS F T

Chair Member

2. Inerirn Chair
3. Following cornpletion of induation ta Goed Enetgy m Q2 2019
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As part of its annual evaluation process and
otherwise ds required, the Board raviews its
cormposition to ensure that the Group has access to
a balance of complementary skills and experience
to enable the Group to achieve its strategic
ambitions and wider purpose.

During the year, the Board was pleased to announce
the appointment of Wil Whitehorn as Deputy
Chairman and independent non-executive director
following a market search conducted in conjunction
with recruitment consultants. Will's experience of
disrupting established consumer markets through
effective deployment of technology complements
the strategic direction set out by the Board.

As part of succession planning discussions, John
Maltby has informed the Beord of his intention to
step down as Choir and as a non-executive director
after the 2019 AGM. Subject to confirmation of
appeointment by members at the AGM, the Board has
agreed to appoint Will Whitehorn to the role of Chair
following Mr Maitby's retirement.

As previously reported, Denise Cockrem and
Rick Squires stepped down from the Board with
effect from 31st March 2018 and 215t June 2018
respectively.

Following Rick Sguires’ retirement, Emma Tinker
assumed the Chair of the Risk & Audit Committee
on an interim basis pending appointment of new
independant non-executive director to chair the
committee. On &th February 2019, the Company
welcomed Nemaone Wynn-Evans as independent,
non-executive director. Nemone will assume the
Chair of the Risk & Audit Committee following
completion of her induction to Good Energy.

The Board conducts an internal review of the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors
every yecr.

The Board considers ail of its non-executive directors
to be independent in both character and judgement.

The Chairman, John Maltby, was independent upon
appointment to the Board in Getober 2012,

Directors” Indemnities and Inswrance

As parmitted by the Company's Articles of
Association, the Directors have the benefit of

an indemnity which is a qualifying third party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, The indemnity was in force
throughout the last financial year and is currently in
force. The Company also purchased and maintainad
throughout the financial year Directors’ and Officers’
ligbility insurance in respect of itself and its Directors
and Officers.
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Beord ang Commitios Attondonee

Executive Directors

Juliet Davenport 11711
Non-Executive Directors

John Mqﬁﬁy 11711
Ermma Tinker 11711
Tirn Jones 10711
Wil Whitehorn 5/6

Operations of the Board

Detalls of the number of scheduled Board mestings
and attendance of Directors is set out in the table
above. The Group's parformance is reviewed at these
scheduled meetings and the Board is responsibie for
agreaing and reviewing the strategy for the Group, for
which it maintains both short term {12 months) and
longer-term (three to five years) plans.

In addition, it is responsible for matters relating to
employee recruitment and remunerotion, strategy,
health and safety and other specitic subjects.

Where relevant, members of the Exaecutive team and
other senior leaders within the business attend Board
and Committee discussions. Members of the Board
also engage with members of the Executive team and
other senior leaders directly on relevant initiatives.

5/5 4/4 172
5/6 474 2/2
5/5 4/4 2/2
4/5 4/4 -
2/2 - -

During the year, the Board and relevant Committees
convened for a number of unscheduled proceedings
to support the Group in developing, refining and
implementing initiatives in support of its stratagic
ambitions, In addition, the Board or relevant
Committees held regular informal discussions on @
variety of topics to consider the Impagcts of macro-
economic events, developments in Government
policy and to provide guidance and insight to support
the Cormnpany in delivering its short term and longer
term objectives.

The Board conducts a formal review of the Group's
strategy at least annually, at which all Board
members and all of the Executive teamn are present.

Board packs are generally circulated at least
one week chead of scheduled meetings to allow
adequate time for the Board and/or Committee
Members to review information and prepare.

4. For enomiors retring during the year, the eble roflects those meotings apcheoble to ther tern e
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The Choirmaon and Chief Executive maintain regular
contact and the Chairman receives a brietfing from
the Chief Executive before each scheduled Beard
meeting. The Chairman provides a briefing to the
Non-Executive Directors before each scheduled
Beard meeting to align priorities and maximise the
Board's effectiveness at meetings. The Chairman
regularly de-briefs with the Non-Executive Directors
after meetings to capture feedback and identify
oppoertunities for improvement. The Chief Executive
does not participate in these discussions.

All Birectors have the right to request that any
concerns they have are recorded in the appropriate
Committee or Boord minutes.

The Board reviews the operational and financial
performance of the Group for each month against o
pre-agreed set of performance targets. In addition,
the Board receives infermation through a system

of continuous financial planning which enables it to
better manage profit and cash flow forecasting, and
to inform investment decision making. The formal
financicl plan for the forthcoming year is reviewed
and authorised by the Board.

The Board and each of its Committees has access to
the services of the Company Secretary and external
advisers as necessary.

The roles of Chief Executive and Chairman have
clways been split, with the Chairman operating in a
Non-Executive capacity. An outline of the roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman, Chief Exacutive,
other Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Company Secretary are provided on pags 46.

The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day
management and running of the business, supported
by an Exacutive team. As at 31 December 2018 the
Executive comprised the Finance Director, Chief
Technology Officer, Director of Customer Services,
Director of Sales & Commercial, Director of Marketing
& Strategic Planning, Director of People & Culture
and the General Counsel & Company Secretary,

The Executive team is an executive-fevel forum

of the Group's most senior leaders, chaired by the
Chief Executive, It comes together to communicate,
review and agree on issues and actions of Group-
wide significance. it helps to develop, implement and
monitor strategic and cperational plans, considers
the continuing applicability, appropriateness and
impact of risks, leads the Groug's culture and aids the
decision-raking of the Chief Executive in managing
the business in the performance of her duties.
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Bosrd ang Direstors
Performoance Byoiuntion

The Board is committed to continually improving
its performance.

The Board implemented an annual process of
evoluating board performance in 2015, Evaluations
are carried out internally and the Board is considering
whether it would benefit from conducting an
externally facilitated review following the conclusion
of its current recruitment aotivity.

For internad reviews, Board members and other
regular Board ottendees respond to a detailed
guestionnaire co-ordinated and collated by the
Company Secretary. Where appropriate, Board
members are also interviewed privately by the
Chalrman. Feedback and insights from the review
process are collated and summarised for the Board

and the Chairman and Company Secretary facilitate
an open discussion with the whole Board, highlighting
arsas that work well and agreeing actions in

those areas where the Board seas opportunity for
improvernent.

Building on extensive prograss made since 2015, the
Board retains three clear priorities: (1) ensuring that
the Board is able to draw upon an effective balance
of skills and experience to deliver the Company’s
strategic objectives, (i) supporting the delivery of
strategic objectives through clear and effective
prioritisation of investment and resources and (i)
continuing to deliver clear strategic and operationail
insights through effective Board reporting.

These three priorities are consistent with prior periods.
The Board is pleased to report on progress against
2018 Objectives as follows:

Supplement composition of the Board through
appointment of a senior independent director.

identify and appoint a suitably qualified and
experienced independent non-executive director
to succeed Rick Squires as Chair of the Risk &
Audit Committee.

Align Board reporting to reflect the areas of
Good Energy’s strategic foous and illustrate
performance and activity against each stage of
the customer journey.

Establish a consistent framewerk through which
cppertunities to accelerate delivery of Goed Energy's
strategic ambitions can be identified and evaluated.
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Will Whitehorn appointed as Deputy Chair, a role
which encompasses the responsibilities of a senior
independent director,

The Board identified that Emma Tinker has suitable
skills and experience and appointed Emma as Chair
of the Risk & Audit Committee on an interim basis.
The Board condusted o thorough market search
and appolnted Nemone Wynn-Evans on 6th
February 2019, Nemone will assume the Chair of
the Risk & Audit Committee following completion

of her induction.

The Company conciuded a re-mapping of its
custerner journeys in the early part of 2018 and
aligned reporting to the custemer journey for HZ.

The revised structure delivered improved visibility of
activity across the Company and enable the Board
to focus its attention in those areas requiring most
attention, The revised reporting has also supported
effective and targeted prioritisation of investment
and resources to enable the Company to meet

its objectives.

The Board regularly discusses opportunities to
accelerate delivery of the Company's operational
and strategic objectives. These are wide ranging,
including opportunities to partner with strategically
aligned orgonisations that share Good Energy's
values through to specific investments and potential
acquisifions.

During H2, the Board has established a business-wide
investrment appraisal process through which these
opportunities are assessed consistently and with
appropriate rigor.




The individual performance of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors is reviewed annually.

The Chairman conducts an individual annual appraisal
with the Chief Executive and sach Non-Executive
Director. The cumuiative time commitments of
Non-Executive Directors are reviewed as part of the
annual performance evaluation to ensure that no
Non-Executive Director becomes over-committed.
The Chairman's performance is reviewed by the
Non-Executive Directors, with input from the Executive
Directors and members of the Executive Team.

The performance of membaers of the Executive team
is discussed at the Nominations & Remuneration
Committee during the first quarter each year and on
an ad hoc basis as required. Members of the Executive
tearmn do not attend that discussion.

Gond Frorgy Bonds

On 13 February 2018, the Company anncunced

that it would redeem Good Energy Bonds |'in

full on 29 March 2018. In response to feedback

from bondholders who had expressed ¢ desire to
continue to suppert the work the Group does, the
Group offered holders of Good Energy Bonds | the
opportunity to continue their investment in Good
Energy Bonds | at an interest rate of 4.25% per annum
{4.50% effective for Good Energy customers).

45% of holders of Good Energy Bonds | {equaling to
£3.6m of bonds) elected to continue their investment
on these terms. The Company is permitted to

prepay those investments at any time and relevant
bondholders are entitled to request repayment of their
holding on 22 November 2019 or annually thereafter
(subject to providing 6 months’ notice in writing).

All holders of ordinary shares may attend the
Company's AGM at which the Chairman and Chief
Executive present ¢ review of the key business
developments during the yvear. The time and venue
for the 2019 AGM will be onnounced in the second
quarter of 2019.

At the meeting, shareholders can ask questions of the
Board on the business of mesting, including the Annual
Report and Accounts and the running of the Company
generally. To assist the proper and effective conduct
of the meeting, shareholders wishing to ask questions
ara asked to submit these in advance to the Company
Secretary not less than 48 hours before the mesting,

All Dirsctors are invited to attend each AGM.
Unless unforeseen circumstances arise, the chair of
each committee will be present to take questions
at the AGM.

The AGM notice will be circulated to members through
their preferred communication methods and will also
be available to view on the Group's website,

A poil is conducted on each resclution at all Company
general meetings. All shareholders have the
opportunity to cast their votas in respect of proposed
resolutions by proxy, either electronically or by post.
Foliowing the AGM, voting cutcomes are published and
are made available on the Group's website.

Shareholders unable to attend the AGM can vote on
the business of the meeting sither by post or online.

Poople ot Good Energy

The Group's employment policies foliow best practice
based on equal opportunities for all employeses,
irrespective of race, gender, nationality, colour, sexual
orientation, disability, marital status, religion or age. All
decisions refoting to employment are objective, free
from bigs and based upon work criteria ard individual
merit. The Company operates on the principle that

a workplace where people’s differences are valued
creates a more productive, innovative and effective
organisation. Consuktation with employees or their
representatives has continued at all levels, with the
airn of ensuring that views are taken into account
when decisions are made that are likely to affect their
interests and that all empioyees are aware of the
financiat and economic performance of the business.
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Audit & Risk management report

Diveryipw

Good Energy recognises that effective risk
management is critical to enable it to mest its

strategic objectives.

The Company has o clear framework for identifying
and managing risk, both ot an operational and
strategic level. Its risk identification and mitigation
processes have been designed to be responsive

to the changing environment in which it cperates.
The impact of emerging risks on the Company's
business model are also considered and used to make
informed decisions, including as to the delivery and
evolution of the Group's strategy.

A summary of the key risks focing the Group is set out
in the Strategic Review,

The Board retains overall responsibility for the
Company's risk monagemeant and intarnal controls
framework. While the Beard reviews the suitability

of the internal controls annually, responsibility for
raviewing the effectiveness of internal controls

is delegated 1o the Audit and Risk Monagernent
Committee which reviews this on an annual basis.
The systern of internal controls is designed effectively
to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure o
achieve business objectives.

Audit & Risk Management Committee

The members of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee are shown on page 50. Rick Squires
chaired the committee prior to his retirement from
the Board in June 2818. Emma Tinksr was appointed
interim Chair following Rick Squires’ retirement while
the Nomination Cormmittee concluded its selection
process, On 6th February 2019 the Board welcormed
Nemone Wynn-Evans as an independent non-
exscutive director. Nemone will assume the Chair of
the Committee following completion of her induction
to Good Energy.

John Maltby and Emma Tinker are considered to
have recent, relevant financial experience. The Chief
Executive attends mestings of the Committee by
invitation only together with the Finance Cirector and
Head of Risk & Audit.

The primary duty of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee is to oversee the accounting and financic
reporting process, the internal accounting practices,
external cudit arrangements and sffectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control system,

The Audit and Risk Management Committes also
meets at least annually with the Group's external
auditors to review and agree the audit services being
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provided 1o the Group, including any non- audit
services. It also meets with external auditors,
without management being present, to discuss
the audit process.

The Cormpany has a risk and internal audit function
led by the General Counsel & Company Secretary,
supported by the Head of Risk, Internal Audit and
Compliance.

The internal audit and risk function is responsible

for Good Energy’s risk management activities, and
internal audits. As such, its activities include ensuring
the regular review of internal controls relating to
key risks, reporting on risk events to the Aucit & Risk
Management Committee and reviewing and
testing the effectiveness of internal controls

through audit reviews.

Since completing its greupwide upgrade of the
control environment in 2015, Good Energy has
continued o evolve its code of conduct, a 'Guiding
Principles’ approach that is appropriate for a tast-
growing business. This ensures everyone who works
at Good Energy reflects the Company’s ethos when
working together.

The Guiding Principles provide a framework to
empower Good Energy employees to make
informed decisions that are in the best interests

of the Company and its customers and other
stakeholders, reflect the environment in which the
Company operates, mitigate risk, and explain where
to get advice. The Guiding Principles demonstrate
the Group's commitment to working with honesty,
respect and transparency. They also include
policies relating to, amoengst other things, customer
service, data handling, heaith & safety, approvals &
authorities, procurement, and corporate responsibility,

The Guiding Principles are refrashed at least annually
and the Group continues to evolve the way in which
it secures engagement from employees at all levels
across the organisation.

The internal audit and risk rmanagement function
aims te build on initiatives such as the Company's
Guiding Principles, to enhonce the control
environment, Reporting into the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the function has carried
out audit activity to provide assurance that key risks
are being identified and mitigated, and associated
controls are operating effectively.
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The Group and Board closely menitor and manage
liquidity. The Directors have taken account of the
current financial position of the Group, its anticipated
future performance and investment plans in assessing
the Group's going concern status.

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue for at least 12 months from the
signing of this report in operation and continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2018
financial statements. Further details on this can be
found in note 2.2 to the Financial Statements.

Auditor appointment

Following a competitive tender process, the Group
appointed Ernst & Young as auditers during 2017,
Ernst & Young's appointment was confirmed by
members at the 2018 AGM. Ernst & Young continue
as the Company's auditors. The Committee will
consider whether to re-tender the audit after a five
yeqr period, or earlier if appropriate.

Auditor independence

The Audit and Risk Management Committee monitors
the Group's sateguards against compromising

the objectivity and independence of the externat
auditors. It annuclly reviews the non-cudit services
provided to the Group and their cost, and whether
the auditors believe there are any relationships that
may affect their independence and obtaining

written confirmation from the auditors that they

are independent.

the Audit and Risk Management Committee has also
reviewed its policy for awarding non-audit work.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the
Committee has conducted its review of the auditors’
independence and concluded that no conflict of
interest exists between Ernst & Young LLP audit

and non-audit work, and that their invelvement in
non-audit matters was the most effective way of
conducting the Company's business during the year.

Audit and non-audit fees

The Audit & Risk Management Committee reviewed
the remuneration received by Ernst & Young LLP

for non-audit work conducted during the peried as
part of assessing their independence. For further
details regarding fees paid, see note 7 to the financial
statermnents on page 109.

The Group's whistieblowing policy is supported by «
clear process and includes a secure, independent
and anonymous third-party helpline, through which
any person, from employees to casual contract
workers, may raise concerns about wrong doing,
poor practices, risks or dangers in relation to the
Company’s business dealings or activities.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annuadlly by
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. Any
whistleblowing incidents and their outcomes are
reported to the Committee. No reports wete made
during 2018,
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Funding & Investment Committee Report

Establishment of the Commitee

To support the Company in delivering its strategic
objectives, particularly through a period of transition
and transformation of its business activities, the Board
established the Funding & Investrment Committee
during 2017.

Overview

The purpose of the Committee is to oversee strategic
and transactional matters retevant to the delivery
and evolution of the Group's strategy. Areas such

as funding requirements, capital and significant
investment decisions, corporate transactions and
evolving the Group's investor relations strategy are
also a focus,

The mernbers of the Funding & Investment
Committee are John Maltby (Chair) and Emmma
Tinker together with the Chief Executive. Rick
Squires was a member of the Committes prior to his
retirement frormn Good Energy in June 2018,

Operations of the Committee

During the period, the Funding & Investment
Commitiee convened to discuss, consider and
recommend to the Board the following:

- the approach to be taken by the Company in
relation to the realisotion of residual value fram the
Company's development pipeline and treatment
of work in progress;

Good Energy Annual Report 2

progress of the Company’s behind-the-meter
battery storage pilot in partnership with the
Eden Project;

- repayment of Good Energy Bonds | and
mechanisms for interested bondholders to
continue their support and investment; and

plans to develop o new head office for the
Company in Chippenham

COver the course of 2019, the Committee expects the
following matters to arise for review:

+ further proposals for realisation of further value
from the Company’s discontinued development
business:

+  investrments in projects and initiatives to
accelerate the delivery of the Group's strategic
ambitions; and

+ proposals to repay the remainder of Goad Energy
Bonds 1.

Proposals for the Company's recent investment in
Zap-Map through its operating company Next Green
Car Limited were advanced dirsctly by the Board. As
part of a scheduled review of committee constitution
and composition, the Board intends to review
whether the Funding & Investment Committee is still
necessary as a standalona committee.




Statutory and other information

Gonerol company indorsugtion

Good Energy Group PLC is a public imited company
incorporated in the United Kingdorm under the
Componies Act 1985,

The Company’s registered office and principal
place of business is: Monkton Reach, Monkton Hill,
Chippenharm, Wiltshire, SN15 1EE ond the registared
number is 04000623.

Share capital

Cn 31 Dacamber 2018, 16,571 621 ordinary shares of
5p each were in issue. Tha Company is listed on the
Alternative Investrment Market (AIM) of the London
Stock Exchange, is o founding member of the Social
Stock Exchange (SSE) and its shares hove been
trading on the Social Impact segment of the NEX
Growth Market since & January 2016,

At 31 December 2018, the following shareholders
had notified an interest exceeding 3% cf the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company {excluding
Directors and their respective families as defined
in the AlM rules, details of which are set out on
page 60%

s Numberof o,
Shareholder . "7 U7 %
Ry Ide - . shores - '
Ecotricity Group 4169948 262%
Limited
Schroder & Co 743874 4.5%

Share ciogs rights
Ordinary shares

The full share class rights are set out in the Company's
Allivles of Association (Articles) whioh are available
ul govdenargygroup.oo.ulc and summarised bhalmae

Each member has one vote for each ordinary share
held. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled 1o
receive the Compony's Annual Ruport and Aceronnts;
attond and speak at general mastings of the
Curnpany, mppoint one or more proxias or, if they are
corporations, corporate representatives; and exercise
voting rights. Holders of ordinary shares may receive
a dividend in cash or ordinary shores under the
Company’s scrip dividend scheme and on liguidation
may share in the assets of the Company,

Shareholder agreements and consent requirements

There are no known arrangements under which
financial rights carried by any of the shares in the
Company are held by a person other than the holder
of the shares ond no known agreements between the
helders of shares with restrictions on the transfer of
shares or exercise of voting rights.

Authority to issue shares

At the AGM in 2018, authority was given to the
Directors to allot new ordinary shares up 1o & nominal
value of £275,286, equivalent to one-third of the
issued share capital of the Company at that time, The
Dirsctors were also authorised to allot up to two thirds
of the total issued share capital of the Cormnpany, but
only in the case of a rights issue.

These authorities are valid until the AGM in 2019,
and the Directors propose to renew each of them
at that AGM.

The Board bslieves that these authorities will aliow
the Company to retain flexibility to respond to
circumstances and opportunities as they arise.

Deadlines for exercising voting rights

Electrenic and paper proxy appointments, and
voting instructions, must be recsived by the
company’'s Registrar not less than 48 hours before
a general meeting.

Dividends

Details relating to the proposed 2018 final dividend
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on page 9.

Directors

The names of the Directors who held office during the
year are set out on page 52.
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Directors’ interests and their interests in the Company's shares?

The interests (all of which are beneficial unless otherwise stated) of the Directors and their families as defined

in the AIM Ruies in the issued share capital of Good Energy Group plc are:

Current Directors

Juliet Davenport? 627,455
John Maltby 180,703
Emrma Tinker? 1,523
Will Whitehorn 28,000
Tim Jones 2489

L. Certain of the Dirsctors hold shore oplions as detaded on poges B8 and 57 within the Rerrunarat on Repert,
2. Juliet Duvenport holds 583179 Oeddinary Shares in the Company in her o hame Her busband
at of anothor deughiter

Shates und Juliet Davengport holds a further 633 Ordinary Sharas on Lok

3.8

1.09

001

0.17

0.C4

3 Fmrna Tinker's ralding inareosed auring the year as o result of porticipation in the serip dwidend
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569,086

180,703

1,484

3.45

1.0%

0.01

wwins 43000 Ordinury Shares, One daughler owns 638 Crdinory



Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments include bank loans
and othar borrowings, a corporate bond, overdraft
and revolving credit facilities.

The principal objective of these instruments i3 to roise
funds for general corporate purposes and to manage
financial risk. Further details of these instruments are
given in note 24 in the Financial Statements.

Future developments & research

Detdils of future developments are given in the

Chief Executive’s Review within the Strategic

Review. Innovation is key to the future development
of the Group's business propositions. The Group

does not incur material research and development
expenditure but does undertake selected research,
development and innovation projects which are often
grant-funded.

Referral Arrangements/ Political Donations

The Company has operated and continues to operate
referral arrangements with certain political parties. it
considers these to be commercial arrangements, with
a referral payment made for each customer referred
te Good Energy. However, the Companias Act 2006
definitions of the making of political donations or the
incurring of political expenditure are capable of a
wide interpretation. In the interests of transparency,
the Company has obtained shareholder approval

for the referral arrangements at its Annual General
Maetings since 2015 and anticipates requesting that
autherisation be refreshed at the Annual General
Meeting in 2019,

impact on the environment

The Company is committed to reducing its
environmental impact and the carbon emissions from
its operations, 15014001 accreditation was achieved
during 2017, providing independent confirmation
that the Group meets international standards for
measuring and continually improving snvironmental
performance. The Company regularly measures its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions and as many indirect
Scope 3 emissions as possible, Where it is not yet
possible to avoid or eliminate emissions, thase are
neutralised through international carbon reduction
projects. More information can be found in the
Group's progress report on its website.

Gender Pay

The Board welcomed the introduction in 2017 of
CGender Pay reporting. The Group has o strong
commitment to gender balance and equality ot al
levels of the business. The Board is proud to have an
equal gender balance {female : male) at Beard level
and just over 50% women within the business overail.

The Group's mean pay gap for 2017 is 15%. This is
lower than the UK average and benchmarks within
the energy industry. The gap predominantly arises
because the Group currently employs more men than
waornen in middle management roles, particularly in
Science, Engineering, Technology and Maths (8TEM)
related functions. The Group's full Gender Pay Report,
which also details the actions initiated by the Board
to close the Group's gender pay gap, is published on
its website.

Modern Slavery

Although the Group considers the inherent risk of
encountering issues of modern slavery within its
business, supply chains ond strategic affiliations to be
low, it is nonetheless an issue that the Group and the
Board takes very seriously. The Group's full statement
under section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 for
the period ended 31 December 2018 is published on
its website.

Related Porty Transactions

Related party transactions are set out in note 32 in the
Financial statements.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company's auditors
are unaware, and each Director has taken all the
steps that they ought to have taken as a Director

in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to astablish that the Company’s
cuditors are aware of that inforrnation. This
confirmation s given, and should be interpreted, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Events after the Bolance Sheet date

On & March 2019 we announced the strategic
investment in Zap-Map's parent company, Next

Green Cuor Ltd. We have the opportunity to aoquire a
rajority equity position aligned with the achievement
of financial and development milestones over the

next two years. Zap-Map is the go-to app for Britoin's
200,000 electric vehicle ("EV™) drivers - planning routes,
identifying charge points, checking their availability
and sharing power. lts 70,000 monthly users can
choose from over 11,000 charging devices located
across service stations, car parks, retail sites ond
private driveways from its easily navigable & intuitive
app. Both the number of EV drivers in the Zap-Map
community and the number of charge points in its
network have besn increasing rapidly, which enhances
the data by actively logging the status and availability
of the national charging network.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the annual report and the financial statements

The Directors submit their Annual Report and
Financial Statements (Annual Report and Accounts)
for Good Energy Group plc for the year ended 31
December 2018. The directors’ report reguired under
the Companies Act 2006 comprises this Governance
& Directors’ Report and the Remuneration Report.

The Company is required to set out o fair review

of the Group's activities and a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the business
as detailed in the Strategic Report. This requirement
includes an analysis of the devslopment and
parformance of the Group's business during the
financial year, and the position of the Group at the
end of the reporting period consistent with its size
and complexity.

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable
law and regulation, including company faw which
requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financiol year. Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements
untess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of offairs of the Group and parent
company and of the profit or loss of the Group and
parent company for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consisiently;

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by

the European Union have been followed for the
Group financial statements and IFRSs as adopted
by the European Unicen have been followed for

the Company financial statements, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial staterments;

make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and

prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Group and parent company will continue
in business.

The Directors have prepared the Group financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and parent company financial
statemerts in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
aceounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group and parent company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position of the Group and parent
company. These records must olso enable them to
ensure that the financial statements camply with

the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financiot statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and parent company and
must take reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors of the ultimate parent company are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
ultimate parent company's website. Legisiation in

the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staterments may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report

and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and
parent company's perfermance, business modsl
and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are
listad in the Governance & Directors report confirm
that, to the best of their knowlaedge:

the parent company financial statements, which
have been prepared in cocordance with [FRSs as
adopted by the European Union, give a true and

fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and rasult of the Company

the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in gocordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of
the Group; and

the Annual Report and Accounts includes a fair
review of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Groug and

parent company, together with a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties.



In the case of each Director in office at the date the
Governance Report is approved:

so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Group and parent
company's cuditors are unaware; and

they have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as a Director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group
and parent company's auditors are aware of
that information.

The Annucl Report and Accounts, including the
Strategic Report, Governance & Directors’ Report,
Remuneration Report and Financial Statements, have
been prepared and approved by the Board and are
published in accordance with, and with reliance

on, applicable English company law, The fiabilities

of Directors in relation to the Annual Report and
Acceounts are subject to the limitations and restrictions
provided by such law.

Stephen Rosser

Company Secretory
1 May 2019
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remuneration &
nomination report

Drverview

Good Energy operates on the principle that o
workplace where people's differences are valued
creates a more productive, innovative and effective
organisation. The Company also recognises that
attracting, retaining and incentivising key talent is
integral to its ability to meet its strategic objectives.

The Board retains overall responsibifity for the
Company's people and reward strategies.

While the Board reviews the suitability of these
strategies annually, responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of these strategies and underlying
plans is delegated to the Nominations &
Remuneration Cormmities.

The NMominations & Bemuneration
Commities

The rmembers of the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee are Ermma Tinker (Chair), John Maltby
and Tim Jones.

The primary duties of the Nominations &
Remuneration Committee are to:

review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and its Committees to ensure that they
remain appropriate;

ensure that there is o formal, rigorous and
transparent process for the appointment of
new Directors to the Boeard;

to consider and develop succession plans
appropriate for the Group;

determine the Group's approach to the
rernuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior managers of the Group, on behalf of
the Board;

conduct an annual appraisal of the performance
of the Chief Executive; and

assess Company performance against
performance targets within reward schemes.

Ne Director may be involved in any decisions as to
thelr own remuneration.

The Nominations & Rermuneration Committee alse
oversees the group-wide remuneration strategy,
particularly with respect to diversity, inclusion and
gender pay.
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The functions of a nominations committee were
introduced to the pre-existing Remuneration
Committes during 2014. During the period, the
Board considered whether these functions would

be better separated into two separate committess
and concluded that it remained appropriate for the
functions to be combined within a single committee.
The Board will review this periodically.

The Committee will keep under review the
composition of the Board, the mix of skills and
experience of the Directors and the needs of the
business, having due consideration for the benefits
of diversity, and suppaort the Group in developing
appropriate succession plans to meet its needs.

The Board remains focussed on gender diversity
across the organisation and notes that wornen and
men were equally represented at both Board and
Executive level during the period,

The Cormmittes is responsible for reviewing the

tirne commitrnents of each Director both prior to

ail agpointments and annually, as part of the Board
Evaluation process, to ensure that all Directors devote
sufficient time to the Company to discharge their
duties effactively.

During the period, the Nominations Committee:

received and considered proposals to make
redundant the role of Chief Financial Officer,
including reviewing the resulting composition of
the Board and the availability of a suitable mix of
skills, experience and expertise;

oversaw the recruitment, appointment and
induction of Will Whitehorn following its
recemmeandation during 2017 that the Board
appoint a senior independent director; and

conducted a market search for an additional
independent non-executive director to
succeed Rick Squires as chair of the Audit &
Risk Management Committee, resulting in the
appointment of Nemone Wynn-Evans on 6th
Faebruary 2019,



Hermmunerotion

Information about the remuneration of the Directors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the following section. This report is
unaudited and has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements for AIM listed compaonies set
out in the Companies Act 2006 and the AIM rules.

The Group's bonus and share-based incentive
schemes have been in place since 2016 and remain
dligned with current best practice. They are designed
to motivate and incentivise key talent to assist the
Group in achieving its strategic aims and comprise:

an Annual Bonus Plan that encompasses both
financial and non-financial annual performance
targets, details of which are set out on page 68;
and

a Performance Share Plan for Executive Directors
and members of the senior management team,
details of which are set out on pages 69-70.

During the pericd, the Remuneration Committee
agreed a non-matericl alteration to the performance
criteria, introducing an objective measure which
considers retention of key talent in place of the
previous employee engagement criterion. No other
changes have been made to the operation of these
schemes during the pseriod.

Details of the Company's Nominations &
Remuneration Committee are set out on page 50.

The Nominations & Rermuneration Committee
has designed and adopted a remuneration policy
to ensure that the Company is able to attract,
retain and motivate its Executive Directors and
senior management.

The Group operates In o competitive environment.

It therefore sets out to provide competitive
remuneration to all of its employees, appropriate to
the business environment, geographical location and
strategic aims of the Company.

The Group aims to align the interests of shareholders
with those of Executive Directors and senior
management by giving the latter the epportunity to
build up a shareholding interest in the Company.

The sarvice agreements for the Executive Directors
are nat for ¢ fixed terrm and may in normal
circumstances be terminated on the notice periods
listed on the following page.

The remuneration of the Chairman of the Company
and the Non-Executive Directors consists of fees that
are paid monthly in arrears.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors did
not participate in any bonus scheme or long-term
incentive reward schames, nor did they aecrue any
pension entittement during the period. Following
the publication in August 2015 of HMRC's express
confirmation of the travel rules that apply to Non-
Executive Directors, the Company reimburses Non-
Executive Directors’ travel expenses between home
ond the Company's Head Office. The key terms of
the Non-Executives Directors’ appeintments are set
out in the table on the following page.

The Group reviewed Non-Exscutive Director fees and
concluded that the existing annual fees and structure
remain appropriate. The fee for each Non- Executive
Director is £25,000, with an additional fee of £5,000
for those that chair a committee. The fee payable to
the Deputy Chair is £40,000 and the fee payabie to
the Chairman is £45,000.

Fxecutive salaries were also benchmarked during the
year against AIM company data, adjusted to reflect
the size of the Company. Juliet Davenport's salary
was increosed by 4.8% as a result, broadly in line with
pay rises aoross the Group.
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Executive Directors

Juliet Davenport Chief Executive

Non-Executive Directors
John Maltby

Emma Tinker

Tim Jones

Will Whitehorn

Forsoar Dronates

1. formal appointmant 10 the Board ook atfent on 4 July 2018
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02 August 2007 ? months

15 October 2012

02 September 2016

01 December 2017

26 July 2018

218,000

46,000

25,000

25,000

45,000



Salaries/Fees, annual bonus and benefits

N Salary/ . Benefits in Annual
:l'fln:nm'r‘3 o | fee Pension Kind Bonus Total 4 Totqi &
g o , : ]
2018 (£) 2018 (%) 2018 (£) 2018(E) 2018(L) R017(%) g
: . . 2.
P
Executive Directors 3
&
Juliet Davenport 282192 27170 21,263 - 330,625 292,164
Denise Cockrem?® 159,340 13,713 774 - 173827 259187
Sub-total 453244 40,834 3,037 - 497 164 551341

Non-Executive Directors

John Maltby 48,259 - - - 48,269 45,000
Ermmma Tinker 31,911 - - - 3L911 31,800
Tim Jones 25,842 - - - 25,842 2,083
Will Whitehorn* 19,442 - - - 19,442 -
Rick Squires® 21,615 - - - 21,618 30,000
Sub-total 147069 - - - 147,069 1(4]8,8‘8;
| 6;er;::ll to;cll “ 600,313 40,883 3,036 - 644,233 660,224*

X
5
[*]
3
Q
a
b4
a
8
3
[+ ]
2
2]

2. Includes €567.0%93 1elotod o the surrender ard cancollation of vested share options

3. Pro-rata for the period of ditectarship, Left the Board oftective 31 Mareh 2018, Of the quoted salte y/foe figure, £46 800 relates to payments ansing on
cessation of ernploymen.

4, Pro-rota for the period of directorshin, Joned e Bourd elfoctive July ZO18.

5. Pro-rata for the pericd of direatorship. Left the Board effeciive 21, June 2018,

6. 2017 tolul (including former directors) was 867,181,
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Annual bonus scheme

Ukperettion of the schome

During the period, the Remuneration Cemmittee
agreed a non-material alteration to the performancs
criteria for the schems, introducing an objective
maasure which considers retention of kay talent

in place of the previous employee engagermnent
criterion. No other changes were made o the
operation of the bonus scheme during the pericd.

All bonuses under the bonus scheme are indivicdually
capped. A maxirmum potential bonus of 75% of
Executive Directors’ salary is payable in relation

to the Company's performance against four key
performance metrics. The performances metrics and

their relative weightings are shown in the table below.

Maximum bonus will only be payable in the event
that streteh targets for all four of these performance
metrics are met. Performance against the targets

is Measured on a sliding scale basis between the
achievement of threshold, on-target and streteh
targets, starting with one third of the potential

bonus being payable where threshold targets are
met. No bonus will be payable unless the Group's
profit before tax meets the threshold targets unless
the Nominations & Remuneration Committee, in its
disoretion, determines otherwise.

The Nominations & Rermuneration Committee
also retains discretion, under the bonus

scherme rules, to adjust any payments in line with
individual performance.

Individual perfermance targets are set annually
and reviewed at the end of the relevant financial
year, and annual targets for sach of the four
Company performance metrics will be sat by the
Remunaration Committee.

The Group considers that the targets for 2019

are commercially sensitive ¢hd are not therefore
disclosed. However, retrospective disclosure of
performance against targets for the year ending 31
December 2018 is provided on the following page.

‘Measure .. - Strategic objective - © Weighting -
Group profit before tax Deliver profit growth 60%
Absolute net prormoter score  Maintain customer satisfaction ratings 20%

. Attract and retain ermployeas with the right skifls, knowledge o
Employes retention and mind-set to help deliver the Company's growth plans 0%
Corporate CO, reduction Help to reduce carbon emissions 10%

2018 targets and performance

The Group's performance against targets and actual outturn for the financial year ended 31 Decermber 2017

are set cut in the table below.

The Group profit before tax exceeded threshold for 2018 and accordingly o bonus is payable for the period.

. ot etun
Profit before tax® £1.7m
NPS 46
Employee retention 68%

I5C 14001 maintained,
Emissions neutralised
and reduced by 10.5%
per head.

Corporate CO, reduction

2017 outtur

£0.7m Between threshold and Target
Not measured Target

- Below threshold

150 14001 achieved.
Ermissions neutralised Target
wherever possible.

7. [fus measure consider ad ‘araplges engagement in 2017 oW altared by the Comrnitlee ke PLe,
8. Calelated vy underlying continuing PB1 of £1,7rn excluding tho mpoet of £0.6m reclassification rélating to Brynmwhilach sokr tarm,
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Performance share plan ("PSP")

Oparction of the schemes

The existing scheme was implemented during

2016 following advice from external remuneration
consultants and in consultation with the Cempany’s
ten largest shareholders. It is designed to enhance
alignment between Executive Directors and
shareholders, and better reflect current market
practice, including the addition of performance
cenditions for the vesting of awards, which are
described in more detail below, where previously
there were none.

The usual policy is to grant awards to Executive
Directors over shares worth up to 50% of salary at
the time of grant. The maximum limit of an award
to any individual under the PSP in any financial year
would be 1002 of annual salary, subject to the
Rermuneration Committee’s discretion to increase to
150% of salary in exceptional circumstances.

Awards granted under the scheme shall normally
vest three years from the date of grant, subject
to continued employment and satisfaction of
performance criteria measured over a thres
year period.

‘Meuasur
Earnings per share

Relative net promoter score (relative to
‘Big &' energy companies)

Customer CO, reduction

e '55 Strategic bi})jeciii?e‘

Performance against targets is measured on a
sliding scale, with 20% of the relevant part of the
award vesting at threshold level, 50% vesting for
on-target performance through to 100% vesting
for aechieving stretch targets. No award will vest
unless Total Shareholder Return is positive over the
measurernent period.

The Nominations & Remuneration Committee may,
at any time up to and including vesting, reduce

the vesting level of awards where there has been,
amongst other things, a material mis-statement in
the accounts, an error in any inferrmation on which
pertormance targets were based, gross misconduct
or fraud by the employee.

Ferformance targets

The performance metrics and their relative
weightings for the 2018 grant of awards are shown
in the table below. The Group considers the targets
themselves to be commercially sensitive and these
are not therefore disclosed. However, retrospective
disclosure of performance against targets will

e provided ot the end of the relevant
measurement period.

Weighting

Drive shareholder value 60%

Maintain higher customer
satisfaction rating than ‘Big 6° 20%
energy firms

Ensure long term sustainability 20%
of our own operation ¢
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Directors’ share options

Details of the Directors’ share options outstanding at 31 Decembaear 2018 are shown below.

Juliet Davenport 01/06/2004 150007 £0.75 20,000 -

13/02/2012 86,956 £1.15 - -
13/02/2012 17,390 £115 - -
18/09/2012 189,052 £050 - -
13/07/2013 144,660 £126 - -
07/07/2015 - £0 38369 41,981
22/04/2016 88,496 £G.05 - -
10/06/2017 42,363 £0.05
15/11/2018 | ‘122,472 | £b.05 - -
gub—%c&él """ | 690729 63‘3,3‘69’ - &4Ll.,9'81'

Emma Tinker

Chair of Norminations and
Remunearation Committee

1 May 2019

9. Exeaisedin full on 14 Jonucry 2019
10. Wos o director during the period but stepped down {-om the Boord effecuve 51 March 2018
1t Waos o director duing the pariod but siepped down from the Board etfocive 21 fung 2018,
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independent auditors’ report to

the members of
group plc

Opinion
In our opinion:

Good Energy Group ple's group financial
statements and parent company financial
statements {the “financial statements™) give a true
and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the
parent company's affairs os at 31 December 2018
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by
the Eurcopean Union;

the parent company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act; and

good energy

the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements of Good
Ernergy Group plc which comprise:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as ot
31 Decermnber 2018

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income for the year then ended

Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended

Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the yeor then ended

Related notes 1 to 35 to the financiat
statements, including a summory of
significant accounting policies

Parent Company Statement of Financial Position as at
31 December 2018

Parent Company Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended

Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended

Related notes 1 to 35 to the financial
statements including a summary of significant
accounting pelicies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Stendards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards to
the parent company financial staternents, as applied in aceordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2006.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicabie law. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report below. We are
independent of the group and parent company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements

in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as
appiied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical respensibilities in accordonce with
thess requirements,

We belisve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropricte to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the I1SAs (UK) require us
to report to you where:

the directors’ use of the going concern buasis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial
statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cost significant doubt about the group's
of the parent company's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised

for issue.

Key audit matters +  Revenue recognition, specifically the estimated unbilled income

- Valuation of the expected credit loss provision

Revenue recognition due to the susceptibility to management override through
inappropriate, manual entries

Audit scope We performed an audit of the complete financial informaticn of 3 components
and audit precedures on specific balances for « further 2 components
The components where we performed full or specific cudit procedures
accounted for 70% of Profit before tax, 98% of Revenue and 60% of Total assets
Materiality + Overall group materiality of £0.9m which represents 0.8% of revenues
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Key qudit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of maost signiticance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include the rmost significant assessed risks of rmoterial
misstaternent {whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had

the greatest effect an: the overail audit strategy. the allocation of resources in the audit: and directing the
sfforts of the engagement tearm, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statemeants as a whale, and in our opinion therean, and wa

do not provide o separats opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition,
specifically the estimated
unbiled income (£16.2m, PY
comparative £17.6m)

Accounting policies (page
92); and Note 19 of the
Consolidated Financial
Statements (page 125)

The Group's materic!
revenue streams relate to
the provision of gas and
alectricity services.

This risk over revenue
recognition specifically arises
in income from metered
services which reguires an
estimation of the amount of
unbilled charges at the year
end. This is calculated using
a combination of system
generated information,
based on previous customer
volume usage, together with
management judgements
as to the likely impact on
usage of factors such as
seasonal varigtions.

The risk has decreased in
the current year due to the
billing system and process
now being fully operational
for 2 years.

74

Our procedures included:

We obtained an understanding of

the process for the supply of gas and
electric services, metar reading and
related billing in order to challenge the
completeness of adjustments to reflect
the ocorual or deferral of revenye.

We assessed the design of key controls
linked to systern ganerated information
relating to the sstimation process for
measured revenye.

We tested the inputs inte the billing
system, including meter reads, tariffs
and estimated average consurnption,
This was to ensure that caleulated bills
and the resultant revenues reflected
accurate contract agreed prices

and usage.

We compared the accrued income
to bills raised post year end for a
sample of customers to confirm the
accuracy of the estimated usage and
revenue recorded.

+ We corroborated the key assumptions
made by management in recognising
revenue, by obtaining internal and
externol data on dermand,

We tested whsther revenue was
recognised in the correct period.

Wa performed analytioal procedures
by comparing revenue balances

for the year ogainst expectation
from industry consumption datg

and obtaining suppart for significant
varionces against that data,

In performing our journal tasting, we
paid increased attention to entties
impacling revenue focusing on non-
system postings and those raised in the
last two weeks of the year.

We performed full scope audit procedures
over this risk areg in 2 locations, which
covered 100% of the risk amount.

Good Energy Annual Report 2018

We did not identify material
errors in the unbilled income
report, nor evidence of
management manipulation of
revenue within this report,

We concluded that the

basis of calculation of the
unbilled incorne accrual is
appropriate. We conelude that
managernent’s assumptions in
respact of customer demand are
within an acceptable range,



Key observations

Risk Our response to the risk , communicated to the
o ‘ Audit Committee

Expeoted Credit Losses Ovur procedures included: We assessed management’s g-’
judgments and concluded a

Accounting poficies {page - We performed a walkthrough of that the ECL provisian is within 2

105); and Note 19 of the the process for coloulating the ECL an acceptable range and o

Financial Statements provision and assessed the design reflects likelihood of collections 5

(page 1253 effectiveness of key contrals. in future periods. '_3‘

There is an expectad credit We teste.d. the? integrity of data onq the -

loss (ECL) provision of £5.8m report utlitseg to generate thg ageing

(2017 £4.5m) at the year- and categons_qtlon of debt within the

end against gross amounts Company’s billing system.

receivable from customers of - Woe corroborated assumptions made

£31.5m (2017; £33.6m). by management on collection rates

and performed sensitivity analysis
The ECL is calculoted on the impact of these rates on the
using information provided ECL provision.

by their debt collector
and management’s
judgement of the future
likely recovery rates.

We formed a view that the
assumptions made by management
on collection rates were within our
expected range by agreeing to third

There is a risk that the party confirmations over the rates
assumptions used by used and performed sensitivity analysis
management In calculating on the impact of these rates on the
the ECL provision maoy be ECL provision.

susceptible to management . we assessed the impaot of IFRS

bias and the vqluqtson of 9 on the calculation prepared by
ECL amounts against trade management and challenged
lrecelvobles and ur}billed provisioning rates based on expected
income may be misstated. credit losses through past history and
The risk has increased dus to predicted market conditions.
worsening market conditions, - We performed analysis against
particularly within the debt held at yeor end compared

B2B supply. to cash collected post year end

disaggregated into the categorisation
of customers used by management in
the provision caloulation to assess the
reasonableness of provisioning rates.

We tested the appropriateness of
journal entries and adjustments
impacting the ECL provision
particularly those raised close to the
balance sheet date.

We performed full scope audit procedures
over this risk area in 2 locations, which
coverad 100% of the risk amount.
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Revenue recognition due
to the susceptibility to
management override
through inappropriate
manual entries.

Acoounting policies {page
92); and Note 3 of the
Consolidated Financial
Statements (poge 100).

We consider that the vast
majority of Good Energy's
revenue transactions
reported under existing IFRS
guidance are routine, non-
complex, and systems driven,
with no judgement applied
over the recorded amount.

However, the accounting
for revenues is susceptibie
0 management overrids
through the recording of
manual topside journal
entries either in the
underlying ledgers or during
the consolidation precess,

We focused on this arcg due
to the manual nature of the
consolidation process and
the non-routine judgemental
nature of some of the
manual journals posted.

In the prior vear, our auditor’s

report included a key audit matter in ret

We performed walkthroughs of the
cansolidation process at various month
ends throughout the year, including the
interim and year end to assess the design
and implementation of key controls over
the manual consolidation process.

Audit procedures specifically designad
to address the risk of management
cverride included using data extracted
from the acecounting system to test

the oppropriatensss of Journal entries
iImpacting revenue, as well as other
adjustments made in the preparation of
the financic staternents, with a focus on
selecting and testing manual journals.

For all locations we verified the resuits
of the consolidated entities used in the
rmanual consolidation by agreeing the
results included in the cansolidation
directly to the results oudited by the
audit team,

We sefected alf consolidation journals
exceeding 16% of performance
materiality and obtained evidence to
verify the validity and accuracy of the
Journals being posted.

Bosed on the qudit procedures
performed manual entries were
dppropriate, including post
close adjustments during the
consolidation process,

Our journal entry testing
procedures did not identify
instances of inappropriate
management override in the
recognition of revenue across
the Group.

ation to Revenus recognition - non-

metered revenue streams and Valuation of generation WiP,

For non-metered revenue streams, this change has been made due to the relative size of the non-metered
revenue stream in terms of overgll group revenus, representing 4% of group revenues, and thus the impact
that any potentia) rmisstaternent would have on Good Energy Group results is diminished,

For the valuation of denaeration WIP, this change has been made due to the impairments recordeg in prior
year with assets held in generation WIP held at their net realisable volue. These assats continue te be held for
sule under IFRS 5.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Taltoring the soope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of
materiality and our cllocation of performance
materiality determine our cudit scope for each

entity within the Group. Taken together, this enables
us to form an opinion on the consolfideted financial
statements, We take into account size, risk profile, the
organisation of the group and effectivensss of group
wide controls, changes in the business envirenment
and other factors such as recent Internal audit resuits
when assessing the level of work to be performed at
each entity.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement to

the Group financial stateaments, and to ensure we
had adequate quantitative coverage of significant
accounts in the financial statemenits, of the 15
reporting components of the Group, we selected 5
componants covering entities all within the UK, which
represent the principal business units within

the Group.

Of the 5 components selected, we parformed an
audit of the complete financial information of 3
components (“full scope components™) which were
selected based on their size or risk characteristics.
For the remaining 2 components (“spacific scope
components”), we perforrmed audit procedures on
specific accounts within that compenent that we
considered had the potentigl for the greatest impact
on the significant accounts in the financial statements
either because of the size of these accounts or their
risk profile.

The net profit of the Group is split between b profit
making entities of £6.9m and 10 loss making entities

Total

assets

10% Full Scope components

& 15% Specific scope
components

75% Other procedures

of £6.3m. We performed procedures on 2 full scope
components and 1 specific scope component which
accounted for 0% of the profit and preocedures

on 1 full scope component and 2 specific scope
components which accounted for 89% of the loss-
making entities.

The reporting components where we performed
audit procedures accounted for 97% (2017: 97%)

of the Group's Revenue and 0% (2017. 63%) of the
Group's Totaf assets. For the ourrent year, the full
scope components contributed 97% (2017: 95%) of
the Group's Revenue used to calculate materiality,
and 10% (2017: 8%) of the Group's Total assets.

The specific scope components contributed 1%
{2017: 1%) of the Group's Revenue usad to caloulate
materiality and 156% (2017: £55%) of the Group's lotal
assets. The audit scope of these components may
not have included testing of all significant accounts
of the component but will have contributed to the
coverage of significant tested for the Group. We
also instructed & components to perform specified
proceduras over certain aspects of fixed asset
verification, WIP valuation and current assets neld for
sale voluation.

The remaining 1 component represented 0% of the
Group’s Revenue. For this component, we performed
other procedures, including analytical review and
testing of intercompany eliminations to respond to
any potential risks of material misstatement to the
Group financial statemsants.

The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained
from the work performed by cur audit teams.

Revenue

97% Full Scope componants

1% Specific scope
components

& 2% Other procedures
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Changes from the prior vear

No significant changes identified in relation to prior
year scoping.

All audit work performed for the purposes of the audit
was undertaken by the Group audit team.

Cur gpplloation of moteriolity

We apply the concept of moateriality in planning
and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of
identified misstatements on the audit and in forming
our audit opinion.

The rmagnitude of an omission or misstatement that,

individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of the
users of the financial statements. Materiality provides
a basis for determining the nature and extent of our

audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to be £0.9m
million (2017: £0.8 million), which is 0.8% (2017: 0.8%)
of Revenue. Up until 2016, Good Energy had a focus
on revenue growth as their main strategic objective,
during this time their profitability was fluctuating
significantly. The Group has recently changed their
focus to sustainable profit growth, however historically
this basis for this company has not been consistent
and reliable. Furthermore, with the previcus objectives
of the company, and the use of revenue growth as a
KPlin the annual report it is likely that users will also
still consider this a KPL. On reviswing anaiyst reports,
revenue is one of the key focuses for the Group along
with EPS. Hence, we have concluded that revenue
provides the most appropriate financial measure

that is responsive to the main value driver for the
shareholders of Good Ensrgy Group ple. This is also
consistent with the prior year audit.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company
to be £0.2 million (2017: £0.3 million), which is 1.6%
(2017: 1.6%) of Equity.

During the course of cur qudit, we reassessed
initial materiality and updated it to reflect actual
Revenue, having based our initict rmateriality on
forecast Revenus.

Parformumos moteriofity

The application of materiality at the individual
account or balance level. Itis set ot an amount to
reduce to an appropriately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected ond undstected
misstaternents exceeds materiality.

78 Good Energy Annual Report 2018

On the basis of our risk assessments, together

with our assessment of the Group's overall control
environment, our judgerment was that performance
materiality was 50% (2017: 50%) of our planning
materiality, namely £0.45m (2017: £0.4m). We have
set performance materiality at this percentage as
our expectation, based on our understanding of the
Group and the past history of misstatements, is that
the likelihood of matericl misstatement is higher.

Audit work at component locations for the purpose
of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial
statement accounts is undertaken based on a
percentage of total performance materiality. The
performance materiality set for each companent is
based on the relative scale and risk of the component
to the Group as a whole and our assessment of

the risk of misstatermnent at that component. in the
current year, the range of performance materiality
ollocated to components was £0.09m to £0.4m.

An amount below which identified misstatements are
considered as being clearly trivial,

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would
report to themn all uncorrected cudit differences in
excess of £0.048m (2017 £0.04m), which is set at 5%
of planning materiality, as well as differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds,

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against
both the quantitotive measures of materiatity
discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Cther information

The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report set out on pages 1-58,
ather than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon, The directars are responsible for the
other information.

Qur opinion on the financial staterments does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
staterments, our responsibifity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained

in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are

required to determine whether there is @ material
misstatement in the finangial staternents or a material



misstatement of the other information. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is 0 material misstatement of the other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on othoer mollers pregsoribad by tha
Lompanias Aot 2006

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and
the directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

the strategic report and directors’ report have
been prepored in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding

of the group and the parent company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or the directors’ report,

Wae have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

adeguate accounting recerds have not been kept
by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements are not
in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not mads; or

we have not received all the information and
explanations we requirs for our audit

As explained more fully in the directers’ responsibilities
statement set out on pages 50-51. the directors

are rasponsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal caontrol as

the directors determine is necessary to enabie the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors
are rasponsible for assessing the group and parent
company's ability to continue as a going cencern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the group or the parent company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

3o niosiwiniond

Cur objsctives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it
axists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materici if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions ot users taken on
the basis of these finoncial staterments.

A further description of our respensibilities for

the audit of the financial statements is located

on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https:.//www fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our cuditor's report,

This repert is made solely to the company’s membaers,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work

has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by

law, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to
anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Ernd )r“fmy w

John Howarth
(Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behaif of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor
Bristol

1 May 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4
Note 2018 2017 d
£000%s £000's “gu-
g
REVENUE 6 116915 104609 '_'é
Cost of Sales & (B3.466) (75.178)
GROSS PROFIT 33,449 29.331
Administrative Expenses 7 (26,800) (23,739)
OPERATING PROFIT 7 6,649 5692
Finance Income 11 16 2
Finance Costs 1z (4,361 (4.860>
PROFIT BEFORE ;I'AX o | 6 N 2,304 4 754
Taxation 13 {560 566
CONTINUNG GPERATIONS 1644 00 9
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONé g
S;i::)t;;om discontinued operations, 5 (743 £033) %
e
‘(LOSS)IPRO'FIT FOKRK‘THE PERICD & 901 ' (2733 *

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Qther comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWRNERS 901 (2733
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Earnings per share - Basic 14 5.6p (17.1p)
- Diluted 14 5.5p (17.1p)
Ecrmngs per share (continuing - Basic 14 10.20 81p
operations)
- Diluted 14 i0Cp 7.7

The notes on pages 89 to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2018
Company registered no: 04000623

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 16
Intangible assets 16
Restricted deposit accounts 3

Fair value through profit or loss assets i7b

Tetal non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories 18
Trade and other receivables 19
Cash and cash eauivalents 20
Disposal groups held for sale 21

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
Equity and Liobilities

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 22
Share premium account 22
Employee Benefit Trust shares 22

Retained earnings

Total eguity attributable to members of the parent
company

82 Good Energy Annual Report 2018

50,351
3,586
4,166

58,103

8,580
29,796
15662

6,649
60,687

llé,?‘?o

829
12,719
(810)

6,088

18,826

82,973

3,644
3,220
500

60,237

9.881
32,698
13,720

5,663
61,862

122,089

224
12,662
(946)

5,653

18,085



yoday oibsybiyg

Non-current liabilities

Deferred taxation 23 @27 145

Borrowings 24 54,464 56,044
Provisions for liabifities 26 1,446 1,250
fotoi' ﬁon—'ourx;ent' liabilities ' 56,837 57,439

Current liabilities

Borrowings 24 6,263 13,894

Trade and other payables 27 36,864 32,671

Total current liabilities 43,127 46,566 g)

Total liabilities 99,964 104,004 S

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 118,790 122,089 §
&
o
e

The Financicl Statements on pages 80 to 140 were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 May 2019 and
signed on its behalf by:

. .
‘ e Juliet Davenport
5, oy Chief Executive
e ‘ 1 May 2019

The notes on pages 89 to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.

Financial statements 83



Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018
Company registered no: 04000423

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 241 391
Intangible asssts b -
Investrments ‘ 17a 35247 41,694 ”
“’Totqul 50}{;@,@”{;5593 e L o . o . 35494 - 42085 -

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 19 920 178
Amounts due from other group companies 5,000 -
Deferred taxation 23 32 -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 309 668
Total current assets T C s261 746
ToTALASSETS ' 41755 42831

Equity and Liabilities

Capital and reserves

Share capitat 22 829 826
‘Share premium account 22 12,719 12,652
EBT shares 22 (804) (946)
Retained Earnings 3862 3,858
,&Ota Eéﬁity SET L . o o B 16506 16390
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 24 17275 17,185
Towalnon-current asiities g 17.185
Current liabilities

Borrowings 24 7534 8922
Trade and other payables 27 340 334
Total current fichiities o - 7874 opme
Total liobilities ‘ - 25149 24441
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES . . ' ai7ss a2gan

The parent company's loss for the financial year was £4.694.941 (2017 loss:£2,578,834).

The Financial Statements on pages 80 to 140 were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 May 2019 and
signed on its behalf by:

- m%wf,ﬂ«

b

Juliet Davenport

Chief Exscutive
1 May 2019

The notes on pages 89 to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

- Calied Share . 2
o S pamen (T, s Joo
Caopital  Account a 9 =quity &
)
£000's £000's £000%s £000's £000's "é
At 1 Jonuary 2017 826 12,646 (10i5) 8,689 21,045
Loss for the year - - - (2,733) (2,733)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (2,733) (2733)
Share based payments 30 - - - 263 263
Tax charge relating to share option 3 B B B (106 (106)
scheme
Issue of ordinary shares 22 1 106 - - 167
Exercise of options 22 - - 69 (31 38
Dividend Paid 28 - - - (529) (529) g?
S s
Total contributions by and distributions to §
owners of the parent, recognised directly i 106 &9 403) (227> é
. it
in equ‘l y ‘ | ’ N ®
At 31 December 2017 826 12,662 (946> 5553 18,085 -§
At 1 Jonuary 2018 826 12,652 (946) 55653 18,085
Profit for the year - - - Q01 901
Other comprehensive incorme for the year - - - - -
Total comprehnensive income for the year - - - Q01 01
Share based payments 30 - - - 358 358
Tax charge relating to share option
- - - 65
scheme 22 (65 6%
lssue of ordinary shares 22 3 67 - - 70
Exercise of options 22 - - 136 (az7n 9
Dividend Paid 28 - - - (532) (532>
Total contributions by and distributions to
owners of the parent, recognised directly 3 &7 136 (366) (160>
in equity
At 31 December 2018 829 12,719 (810) 6,088 18,826

The notes cn pages 8% to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018

At 1 Januery 2017

Loss for the year and total
comprehensive income

lssue of ordinary shares 22

Fxercise of options 22

Dividend Paid 28

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018

Profit for the year and totg)
comprehensive income

Share based payments 30
Issue of ordinary shares 22
Exarcise of options 22

Dividend Paid 28

At 31 December 2018

826

826

829

12,652

12,652

12719

The notes on pages 8% to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.
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142

(804)

6,997

(2.579)

(31
(529)

3,858

3.858

305

358

“5127)
(632)

3.862

19,353

(2,579)
107
38

(529)

16,390

16,390
305
3568

70
15
(632)
16,608



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

©w
Note 2018 2017 3
a
£000's £000's ‘g
=
Cash flows from operating activities 2
o
Cash generated from operations 29 18,069 27 -
Finance income 16 4
Finance cost (4.156) (5,125)
Income tax received 66 167
Net cq.sh flow-s :g.enerqted/(used) from/in 13995 (4,929
operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (326) (48283
@
Purchase of intangible fixed ossets 16 €1.287) (752) %
3
Disposal of assets - 2,769 §
o
Deposit into restricted accounts (946) (389 z
. -1
.Net cc.:sh fiov.vs‘ (.used)/genercted in/from (2.559) 3,800 ol
investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of dividends 28 (462) (459
Proceeds frorn borrowings - 19,646
Repayment of borrowings (8.655) {10,518}
Capital repayments of finance lease (447) {147
Proceeds from issue of shares 70 -
Proceeds from sale of share options - 38
h / ted i
I"fet cc.|s flom..rs_(.used) generated in/from (9.494) 8,560
financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1942 7,431
Cash and cush equivalents at beginning of year 13,720 6,289
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15,662 13,720

The notes on pages 89 to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018

C:ash flows from pperating activities
Cash used in cperations 29 (3.641)

Finance income -

Finance cost (1137)
Corporonon tox (32)
Net cash flows used in opercﬁ ny activities (4 810)

Cash Flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipmeant -
purchase of intabgible fixed assets (6)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (6)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of dividends 28 (462}
Proceeds from borrowings -
Repayment of borrowings (4,635)
Proceeds from intercompany loans 10,386
Repayments of intercompany loans (35%5)
Capital repayments of finance lease (447)
Drooeeds from the exercise of shore optlons 70
Net cosh genercted from frncnosng activities “ - R Wt‘l,557~
:;Ltji:j;ictzsse/(decrecse) in cash and cash 259
Cc:sh cnd cosh eqquiems at beglnmng of yeor 568
(,ush cnd cosh eqguivalents ot end of year o | - 30‘; N

The notes on pages 89 to 140 form part of these Financial Statements.

88 Good Energy Annuai Report 2018

(2.146)

(1,127)

(158)

(158

(4R
17,638
(7.360)
16,068
(22.035)
(147
38

JUSS

302

286
548



Notes to the Financial Statements
1. General Information

Good Energy Group PLC is listed on the Alternative Investrnent Market of the London Stock Exchange and is
incorperated and domiciled in the United Kingdom and whose shares are publicly traded. The registered office
is located at Monkton Reach, Monkten Hill, Chippenham. Wiltshire, SN15 LEE, United Kingdom.

The ultimate parent of the Group is Good Energy Group PLC. There is no ultimate controlling party of
the Group.

The principal activities of Good Energy Group PLC are those of a holding and management company to the
Group and a lender to, and seller of, generation development sites.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are: the purchase, generation ond sale of electricity from renewable
sources; the sale of gas and services relating to micro-renewable generation.

The purpose of the Annual Report and Financial Statements is to provide information to members of the
company. i contains certain forward looking statermnents relating to the operations, performance and
financial condition of the Group. By their nature these statements involve uncertainty since future events
and circumstances can differ from those anticipated. Nothing in the Annual Report and Financial Statements
should be construed as a profit forecast.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the parent
company and the presentational currency of the Group, because that is the currency of the primary
environment in which the Group operates. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand (2000}, except
when otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. Thase policies have bean consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial staterments

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Eurapean Union and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRSIC) and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reparting under IFRS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost
convention or historic cost modified by revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of estimaotes ond assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterments and the
reported ameounts of revenues and expensas during the financial year.

Although these estimates are based on management's reasonable knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual results ultimately may ditfer fram those estimates. The critical accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions that have a significont risk of causing o material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed in note 4 and the following accounting pelicy notes:
revenus from contracts with custormers (4.1), property, plant and eguipment (2.7), inventories (2.11) and
credit risk (3.1.3).

Financial statements 89
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

2.2 Going concern

The Group meets its day to day capital requirermeants through positive cash balances held on deposit or
through its bank facilities. The current economic conditions continue to create opportunities and uncertairties
which can impact the level of demand for the Group's products and the availability of bank finance for the
foreseeable future. The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of the possible changes in trading
performance, show that the Group should be able to operate within the level of its current facilities.

After making enquires, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date the financial statements are authorised
for issue. The Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated
financial staterments, Further information on the Group's borrowings can be found in note 24.

The Group is in a net current asset position of £17.6m as at 31 December 2018, compared to a net current
asset position of £15.3m in 2017, The balance sheet is expected to retain its net current asset position for the
foreseeable future.

2.3 Change in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group applied IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the
first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these new accounting standards are
described below.

IFRS 16 Leases has also been issued, but is not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any standards,
interpretations or amendments that have been issuaed but are not vet effective.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IS 16 supersedes 1AS 11 Construction Uontracts, 1AY 18 Revenue, and related Interpretations and it applies,
with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and reqguires that revenue be recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services tc a customer.

IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a cantract and the costs directly related to
fulfiling o contract. in addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the full retrospective method of adoption. The effect of transition on
the current period has net been disclosed. The Group did nat apply any of the available optional
practical expedients.

An assessment was performed on all revenue streams of the Group, with the five step model considered for
each. Historic treatment was in line with IFRS 16 for most revenus streams - including supply of electricity
and supply of gas. Adjustments to treatment were required for a subsection of the FIT administration revenue,
particularly around the timing of revenue recognition to be in line with the completion of the performance
obligation over time. The difference in treatment was caloulated for 2017 and 2018 and is immatsrial to the
financial staternents, and therefore has not been disclosed.

The effect of adopting IFRS 15 is immaterial to the statement of profit or loss, te the statement of financicl
position, to the other comprehensive income for the period, and to the statement of cash flows.

%0 Good Energy Annudl Report 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

IFRS @ Financial Instruments

IFRS # Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, with the initial application date of 1 January 2018 and adjusting
the comparative information where applicable for the period beginning 1 January 2017,

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 is immateriat to the statement of profit or loss, to the statement of financial
positicn, to the OCI for the period, and to the statement of cash flows.

The Group has taken the IFRS 2 exermption for hedge accounting to not apply, as commaodity derivatives are
designated as being for "own use” purposes,

The ECL model has been caleulated in fine with requirerments under IFRS 9. The Group's trade receivables
have no significant financing component, so the Group has used the simplified methed for providing for these
under IFRS 9. Therefore, the impairment loss is measured at lifetime ECL, Trade debtors have been segmented
into categories of customer and age, meaning the debt is split into categories with similar expected credit
losses. The approach has been discussed further in note 4.4,

The ECL provision calculated as above but for intercompany receivables is immaterial to the Group's
financial position.

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019 and has chosen to adopt the modified retrospective
approach. Consequently, comparative information in the financial staterments for the year ending 31
December 2018 will not be restated.

The new requirements will impact the Group's accounting for lease contracts.

The Group's current operating lease portfolio predominantly relates to rent paid on land which generation
assets are built on, building leases, and hire of IT equipment. On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
these leases will be brought ontc the balance sheet as right-of-use assets, and the Group will recognise a
corresponding lability for the amounis payable under the leasa contracts.

For short-term leases (12 months or less) and leases of low value assets, the Group will elect to recognise
a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by [FRS 16, Short-term leases include those which end
within 1.2 months of transition.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with our policy outlined in note
2.6.4. This will replace the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts,

Impact on lease accounting
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of approx. £8.9m.

A preliminary assessment has concluded that indicates the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
corresponding lease liability of appreximately £5.5m on transition to the new standard in 2019, This value is
lower than the value of non-cancsliable minimum lease payments owing to the existence of short-term and
low-value leases, and the effect of discounting.

The preliminary assessmeant indicates that less than £0.1m of the existing lease obligations relats to short-
term and leases of low value assets. The effect of discounting has been estimated for the purpose of this
anclysis. The anticipated effect on profit or loss compared to 2018 resulis for lease contracts in existence at
the balance sheet is o reduction In administrative and operating expenses of approximately £0.7m, offset by
increases in depreciation of approximately £0.7m and finance costs of less than £0.1m.

Actual values may differ from those in this preliminary announcement.

Financial statements 21

yioday oibayong

§
<
1
=
=
o
23
Q
L]
=3
@
o
o
~
g




Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staterents comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2018. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

+  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

«  Exposure, or rights, to varioble returns from its involvement with the investee

+ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. Te support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee .the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in ossessing whether it has power over an investes, including:

+  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
+ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
+ The Group's veoting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Conselidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial staterments from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or boss and each component of other comprehensive income (OC are ottributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustrents are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's aocounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on conselidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derscognises the refated assets (including goodwil), liabilities,
non-centroliing interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

2.5 Revenue recognition

The Group is in the business of providing a supply of electricity, gas, generation of power, and sale of
generation development sites, as well as FiT administration services. Revenue from contracts with custormers
is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or services.
The Group hos generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the FiT
administration services below, becouse it typically controls the goods or services before transferring to

the customer.

The disclosures of significant aceounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 4.

A contract fiability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to o customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

If & customer pays consideration befare the Group transfers goods or services to the custemer, a contract
liobiity is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (which ever is earlier). Contract
liabifities are recognised as revenus when the Group performs under the contract. The Group recognises
contract liailities when custormers are in a credit position.

2.5.1 Power supply

Revenue for the supply of electricity is accrued based on industry data flows and National Grid data. Revenue
coleuloted from energy sales inciudes an estimate of the guantity in units of electricity or gos supplied to
customers between the dote of the last meter reuading and the end of the reporting period. 14% of the total
revenue figure is estimated, with a fixed transaction price and estimated unit consumption. The estirmate

is made using historical consumption patterns, industry estimated consumption rates, and seasonality data
available, and takes into considerction industry reconciliation processes, upon which the Group takes a
prudent position unti! final reconciliation data is available from the industry fourteen months after the supply
date. Unbilled receivables is superseded when custormer meter reads are received at which point estimates
are adjusted to actual usage. Transaction price is explicitly stated per unit and per day. Unbilled receivables
is considered to be a variable consideration which is not constrained as the Group cansiders it to be highly
probable that a significant amount will not be reversed after year end. Unbilled receivables and the variable
consideration is estimated using the most likely outceme approach,

For gas, revenue is accrued based on information received from the Group's gas shipper, Contract Natural
Gas Lid, which includes details of all the sites held, their estimated aonnual quantities of gas used adjusted by a
pre-determined weather carrection factor. This information is subseqguently adjusted and invoiced based on
customer and industry meter reads. Transaction price is explicitly stated per unit and per day.

Revenue is recognised over time os the electricity or gas is delivered to the customer. The transaction price
is clearly stated, there are no separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price
needs to be allocated, and there is no variable consideration. Discounts are given to 100% of customers who
meet certain criteria, and a provision is built up monthly to account for these, offsetting against revenue over
time as the discount is incurred, which is in line with IFRS 15,

For electricity and gas supply, payment is collected either as a direct debit or paid on receipt of bill in arrears.
Overdue amounts are reviewed regularly for impairment and provision made as necessary.

2.5.2 Feed-in-Tariff (FIT) administration services

The Group provides FIT administration services to micro-generators whe are signed up to the FIT schame.

For FIT services, revenue is earned from Cigem for administering the scheme, which is deemed to be the
transaction price. For FIT services, revenue is recognised in two parts; there is an initial fee paid by Ofgem for
taking on a generator, and then an ongoing amount that is recsived annually for provision of FIT services. The
initicl fee is spread over the period from when the custormer signs up with Good Energy until the following April,
when the FIT compliance year ends for o new customer, and the engeing fee that is received is spread over
the 12 month complicnce period.

2.5 3 Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROCs) revenue recognition

ROCs are awarded to the Group from Gfgemn based on generation of power. These ROCs are sold on receipt
of certificates from Ofgemn dllowing transfer of title. ROC revenue is deemed to be subsidy revenue rather than
revenue from contracts with customers.

The amount of revenue recognised on sale is in accordancse with a contractual agreement where the pricing
is based on Ofgem's minimum ROC value (the buy-out) and o prudent estimate of the re-cycle element of the
final value of G ROC once dll energy suppliers have complied or paid the penalty for non-compliance with the
renewables obligation (the recycia). A final adjustment to RCC revenue and profit is recognised once Ofgem
have announced the final cut-turn ROC price, but this is not accounted for in advance of the receipt

of the final out-turn price as the transaction price is not measurable, and the amount receivable is o
contingent asset.

2.5.4 Generation developmaent site revenue recagnition

Revenue is recognised on the date that control is passed based on the sale and purchase agresment
pertaining t¢ each site sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.6 Goodwill, intangible assets and amertisation

Goodwill is measured as the difference between:

+ the aggregate of (i) the value of consideration transferred (generally at fair value), (i) the amount of any
non-controlling interest, and (iii) in a business combination achieved in stages, the aoquisition-date foir
volue of the acquirer’s previously -held equity interest in the acguiree, ond

+ the nat of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the ligbilities assumed

2.6.1 Definite life intangible assets

Definite life intangible assets comprise software licences and website development costs, which meet the
criteria of IAS 38 "Intangible assets”. The software licences and website development costs are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Cost comprises purchase price from third parties as
well as directly attributable internally generated development costs where relevant.

2.6.2 Indefinite jife intangible assets

The Power Supply Licence is held as an indefinite life intangible asset according to the oriteria of |AS 38
‘Intangible assets”. The Power Supply Licence is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Caost
comprises purchase price from third parties as well as directly attributable internally generated development
costs whare relevant.

2.6.3 Amortisation

Amortisation on definite life intangible assets is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-fine basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. The estimated useful lives for
intangibles with definite lives are as follows:

Software Licenses between 3 and 10 years
Website development costs between 2 and b years

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in
‘administrative expenses’.

2.6.4 Impairment

The Directors regularily review intangible assets for impairment and provigsion is made if necessary. Assets with
an indefinite useful life, eg goodwill and the Power Supply Licence are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets thot are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying armount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an osset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes

of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are seperately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation. Cost includas the original purchase price
of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for #s intended use.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Fixtures, fittings and equipment between 3 and & years
Leasehold improvements over the life of the lease
Generation assets between 20 and 2% years
Assets under construction not depreciated

The useful economigc lives of assets and their residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and revised
where considered appropriate. The carrying value of preperty, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

2.8 Investments

The parent company holds investment in subsidiary companies and are accounted for at cost less impariment
in the Parent Company accounts onify.

2.9 Leases

Assets financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to ownership (finance leases) are
capitalised at their fair value and depreciation or amortisation is provided over the lower of the useful life and
term of the laase. The capital elements of future obligations under finance leases are included as liabilities in
the Staternent of Financial Position and the current year's interest element, having been cllocated to financial
periods to give o constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding liakility, is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially dll of the benefits and risks of ownership rermain with
the lessor are charged to the Staternent of Comprehensive Income on o straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

2.10 Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Under this scheme the Group pays contributions
tc publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations ocnce the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. The pension charge for the year represents
the amounts payable by the Group in respect of the year.

2.11 Inventories
2.11.1 Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROCs)

Under the provisions of the Utilities Act 2300, all electricity suppliers are required to procure o set percentage of
their supplies from accredited renewable electricity generators. This obligation can be fulfilled by the purchase
and surrender of ROCs originally issued to generators, or by making payments to Ofgerm who then recycle the
payments to purchasers of ROCs. Notwithstanding that Good Energy Limited, a subsidiary company, supplies
electricity sourced entirely from renewable generation over a 12 month period, its percentage obligation to
submit ROCs is set by Ofgem. The cost obligation is recognised as electricity is supplied and charged as a

cost of sale in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any gains or losses on disposal of

RCCs which are in excess of the Group's compliance obligations are included as an adjustrment to the
compliance cost included within cost of sales. ROCs are valued at the lower of purchase cost and estimated
redlisable value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.12 Current and deferred taxaticn

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generatss
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
ta situations in which applicable tax regutations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

The tax credit or charge represents the sum of the tax currently receivable and deferred tax. Taxable profit
differs from net profit as reported in the Staterment of Comprehensive Incame because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is caleulated by using tax rates thaot have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each financial period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of texable profit, and is accounted for using the Staterment of Financial Position kability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for alt taxable ternporary differences and deferred tox assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxakle profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Such assets and fiobilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction which
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporory differences arising in investrments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the termporary difference will not reverse in the
foresesable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed ot the end of each financial period and reduced to
the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is caloculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Statement of Comprehensive Incomae, except when it relates
to iterns credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax assets and fabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liobilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority, and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

2.13 Disposal groups held for sale

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered

principally through a sale transaction and the sale is highly probable. Disposal groups classified as held

for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. They are not depreciated
or amortised.

2.14 Financial instruments

The Group uses certain financial instruments in its operating and investing activities that are deemed
appropriate for its strategy and ¢ircumstances.

Financial instruments recognised on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition include cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and borrowings. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on
the Consalidated Stotement of Financial Position when the company has become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.14.1 Financial assets aof armortised cost

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, and are solely payments
of principal and interest. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers

{e.g. trade receivables), but also incorporate other types of contrastual monetary asset. They are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently carried ot amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less provision for impairment. These are heid In a business model which intends to hold the financial
assets to collect the contractual cash flows rather than through sale. Trade receivables are shown inclusive of
unbilled amounts to custamers.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial assets measured at
amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. For trade receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience. adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debters and the economic envircnment

For trade receivables, which are reporied net, such provisions are recorded in o separate aliowance
account with the loss being recognised within administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income. On confirmation that the trade receivable wilt not be collectable, the gross carrying
value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on dermand deposits, and other short term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convaertible to a known amaoeunt of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Restricted deposits are held by financing providers to cover debt service and maintenance expenses on
generation sites to which the funding relates.

Short-term security deposits are held by trading exchanges to cover short term electricity trades.
214.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Financial iabilities and equity instrurments are classified according to the substance of the contractuat
arrangements entered into, An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilitias.

2.14.3 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the course of ordinary
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less. if not, they are presented as non-current labilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost.
2.14.4 Borrowings

The Group expenses barrowing costs over the term of the loan facility. Where borrowing costs are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, such costs are capitalised as
part of the specific asset. Detdills of the Group's berrowings are included in note 24,

2.15 Decommissioning costs

Liagbilities for decommissioning costs are recognised when the group has an obligation to disrnantle

and remove the generaticn assets and restore the fand on which it is located. Liabilities may arise upon
construction of such facilities, upon acquisition or through a subsequent change in legislation or regulations.
The amount recegnised is the estimated prasant value of expenditure deterrmined in cccordance with local
conditions and requirements. A corresponding tangible itern of property, plant and equipment to the provision
is also created.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.15 Decommissioning costs (continued)

Any changes in the present value of the ostimated expenditure is added to or deducted from the cost of the
assets to which it relates. The adjusted depreciated amount is then depreciated prospectively over its useful

economic life. The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is included as a finance cost.
The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewad annually and adjusted as appropriate,

2.16 Share based payments

The Group opplies IFRS 2 to share based payments. The Group operctes a share based payment
compensation plan, under which the entity grants key employees the option to purchase shares in the
company at o specified price maintained for a certain duration.

The Group operates an squity-settled, share-based compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options gronted:

* including any market performance conditions; (for exarmple, an entity's share price)

+ excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over o specified time period)
ond

* including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees ta save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions abaut the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of sach financial period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. it recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the Consoclidated Statement of Comprehensive income, with @ corresponding adjustment
to equity.

When the options are exercised, and the company Tssues new shares to meet that obligation, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium,

2.17 Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors.
The Board of Dirgctors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Finance income

Finance income is recsived in respect of cash deposits and is recogrised using the effective interest method.

2.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
staterments in the period in which the dividends are approved by the company's shareholders.
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3. Financial and Capital Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: liquidity risk, market risk {including currenoy risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk ond commodity price risk) and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk
managemant programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial perfermance.

3.1.1 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in reaising funds to meet cash flow commitments
associated with financial instruments. The Group has cash resources available to it and prepares, in the
operating entities of the Group, forecasts for the forthcoming year which indicate that in the Directeors” opinion
it will have sufficient resources to fund the continuation of trade.

The Group monitors cash fHlow forecasts on a ‘rolling forecast’ basis to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining enough headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing focilities at all
times so as not to breach borrowing limits or covenants,

A liquidity analysis of financial instruments based on contractuat undiscounted cash flows is provided below:

Lessthan | Between Betwaen
S l'year . land2years | 2and 5 yeors

. £000s . £000's . £00Gs - - - £000

Corporate bond 4,180 832 17491 -
Borrowings 5164 4,893 14,300 41,321
Trade and other payables 37.084 - - -
'kl'otoll | | | | | 46,428 5,72'5 31,791 41 321

" Lessthan | . Betwesen = Between =
¢ ¢ iyear 0 landZyears . .2 and 5 years ©

Corporate bond 4,8<5é | ;4,587 ‘ -
Borrowings 8.867 5162 46,132
Trade and other payables 32,671 - - -
Totul‘ 46,40i - 9,74‘94 - 32,885 46132
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial and Capital Risk Management (continued)

Corporate bond

Borrowings 425 79 34 -
Loans from group companies 3,344 - - -
Trade and other payables 340 - - -
Toml - . . 8289 . 911 R .17’52,5m,.g, o -

Corporate bond

Borrowings 483 425 112 -
Loans from group companies 188 - - -
Trade and other payables 334 - - -
Totai ' - 5,é68 5012 18629 -

3.1.2 Market Risk
3.1.2a Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising fram certain generation asset maintenance contracts
which are payable In euros. Management have set up a policy, that when it is deemed appropriate, the Group
will forward buy euros against these contracts to reduce foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December

2018 no suros (2017: no suros) were purchased forward, The annual exposure to sterling euro exchange rate
movements is currently £3k per one percent movernent in the exchange rate.

3.1.2b Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The financial risk s the risk to the Group's earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest rates and the
degree of volatility of these rates. For short-term bank overdraft facilities, the Group does not use derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to interest rate fluctuations as the polioy of the Group is not to rely on short-
term borrawing fucilities for any significant duration. The Directors use interest rate swaps if they consider their
exposure to interest rate risk to be material. For long term borrowings, the Group may use interest rate SWaps
to fix the interest rate payable on these material balances in order to mitigate the risk of any fluctuations in
interest rates.
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3. Financial and Capital Risk Management (continued)

3.1.2¢c Commeodity price risk

The Group's cperations results in exposure to fluctuations in energy prices. Managament monitors enargy
prices and anclyses supply and demand volumes to manage exposure to these risks. The Group typically buys
powaer forwards in erder to mitigate some of the risk of commedity price fluctuations.

If the wholesate market moeves significantly upwards or downwards, the price risk to the Group will depend
upon a number of factors including the excess or deficiency of power being supplied by renewable power
purchase contracts in place at the time. The Group may be required to pass on the price risk to customers,
Retail prices can be amended with 30 days’ advance notification to customers. The Group closely
monitors movements in the wholesale market and assesses trends so it is ready to toke necessary action
when required.

Vertical integration of the Group helps further mitigate exposure to te changes in power prices.
3.1.3 Credit risk

The Group's exposure to gredit risk arises from its receivables from customers. At 31 December 2018 and 2017,
the Group's trade and other receivables were classed as due within one year, detoils of which are included in
note 19, The Group's policy is to undertake credit checks where appropriate on new customers and to provide
for Expected Credit Loss based on estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by referance to specific
circumstances and past default experience. Credit risk is alse in part mitigated by the policy to offer direct
debit as a preferred method of payment for customears. At the end of the reporting period the Directors have
provided for specific Expected Credit Loss and believe that there is no further credit risk.

Credit risk arises fromn cash and cash squivalents and deposits with banks and financiol institutions. The
Directors monitor credit quality of the institutions used when considering which banks and finencial institutions
funds should be placaed with.

The ECL model has been caleulated in line with requirements under IFRS 9. The Group's trade receivables
have no significant financing component, so the Group has used the simplified method for providing for these
under IFRS . Therefore, the impairment loss is measured at lifetime ECL. Trade debtors have besen segmented
into categories of customer and age, meaning the debt is split into categories with similar expected credit
losses. An impairment analysis was performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
Expected Credit Losses. The calcuation reflects the probability weighted outcome, the time value of monay
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial and Capital Risk Management (continued)

3.2 Capital risk monagement

The Group's objectives when managing capitat are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue s a going
concern in order to provide returns to shareholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio calculated ©s net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculoted as total borrowings (including 'current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Finuncial Position) tess cash and cash equivalents. Total copital is caloulated as
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated staterment of financial position plus net debt. The capital structure of the
Group is as foliows:

Total borrowings 24 60,727 69,938
Less: cash in restricted deposit accounts (4,166) (3,220)
Less: cash and cash equivalents 20 (15,662)‘ (13,720)

Ne} dem* o MUV . 40399 s 52998
Total squity 18,826 18,085
Tom,.l, cap,m| e . e 59725 o 71083
.Gearing,“mt.io . . . - . AU 685% o 746%

During 2018, the Group's strategy. which was unchanged from 2017, was 10 seek debt funding ot appropriate
margins from lenders against long term power generation assets. These assets have highly predictable revenue
strearns and are considered stable for long term borrowing. In future, in order to maintain or adjust its capital
structure, the Group may re-structure its debt, issuc new shares or sell assets.

The Group's borrowings are subject to maintaining covenants as defined by the debt funders. Throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018 the Group compiied with all externc! borrowing covenants and management

monitors the continued compliance with these covenants on a monthly or quarterly basis,

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below prasents the Group's financial assets that are measured at fair value, by valuation method at 31
December 2018. The different levels have been defined as follows:

+  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical ussets or labilities (Level 1);

+ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2);

+  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (thot s, unobservable inputs)
{Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrurment is included in
Level 3.

As part of our overdll financial review, we continue to monitor the fair value of all of our investments thorough
both an understanding of the wider environment in addition to the underlying economics of all assets across
the business.
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3. Financial and Capital Risk Management (continued)

As a result of this process. the Board has decided to write down the value of our investment in Swansea w0
Boy Fidal Lagoon plc to Nil, following recent news announcements on gevernment position on offering a a
contreet for difference to the project. The Board have decided that due to the uncertainty ragarding ongoing ‘3
investment in the project and the likelihood of redlising a return on the initial investment, it is prudent to reflect o
this in a lower valuation. Under IFRS 13, this impairment would not be parmanent and could be uplifted cgain 2
should the circumstances change. 3
g
i
The investment had a carrying value os at 31 December 2017 of £0.5m and will be reported under
Discontinued Operations.
20880 T levell  tevel2 Level3 Total.
LA, R £000s - £0005 .. - €000 £000s
Assets
Fair value through profit or
loss assets
Unlisted securities - - - -
Total assets - - - -
2017 Y Levell  Levetz Level8 ~ . ° . Total - - o
o N e e S TR e g
= <o £000% .. - §000s . £000's © . g000s 3
Assets g
2
Fair value through profit or =
loss assets §
e
Unlisted securities - - 500 500 -+
Total assets - - 500 500

There were no changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has to make judgements and
estimates that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. These estimates
and judgements are evaluated continually and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events. The most critical of these accounting judgements and estimates are detailed
below. Given the nature of the estimates and judgements made, unless explicitly stated otherwise, it is not
apprepriate to provide o sensitivity analysis of the judgements and estimates noted.

4.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

4.1.1 Fstirnates over revenue from controcts with customers

Revenue calculated from energy sales includes an estimate of the quantity in units of elsstricity or gas supplied
to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the end of the reporting period. 14% of the

total revenue figure is estimated, with a fixed transoction price and estimated unit consumption, The estimate
is made using historical consumption patterns, industry estimated consumption rates, and seasonality data
available, and takes into consideration industry reconciliation processes, upon which the Group takes a prudent
position until final reconciliation data is available from the industry fourteen months after the supply date.

Provision for expected credit laosses of trade receivables and contract gssets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables, The provision rates are besed on
days post due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e. by customer type,
payrment type).

The provision matrix is initiolly based on the Group’s historic observed dafault rates, calibrated to adjust the
historic credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
are expected o deteriorate over the next year which can lead te an increased number of defaults, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical ohserved default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rotes, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecasted
economic conditions. The Group's historical cradit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of custermers’ actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Note 7.

4.1.2 Judgements over revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue
from contracts with customers:

- Identifying performance obligations in contracts

Good Energy's revenues from contraots with custormers Include unit charges and standing charges for the
supply of electricity and gas, operational generation site revenue, and FiT administration fees. Most of these
performance obligations are sasily (dentifiable, and are separable,

For FIT administration revenue from customers who cre new to the FiT scheme, Good Energy are required

ta both register and administer that customer for a year, and there is a higher administration payment from
GFGEM as a result. Registering a customer to the FiT scheme and administering their account are not separable
performance obligations, as there is no fee for registering and not administering the customer.

*  Deterrnining the timing and satisfaction of the services
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates

Revenue for these services is to be recognised over time, because the custorner simultanecusly receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

«  Principal versus agent considerations

Contracts are entered into with customers to supply electricity and gas, which is a service delivered over time
(as the customer consumes the electricity or gas), in which the Group is the principal.

FiT administration contracts are entered into with the customer, to supply administration services on behalf of
QFGEM. The Group acts as an agent for OFGEM, not a principal, becaouse the Group is net entitled to revenue
from the customers' FiT sites, only the administration fee.

Payment normally takes place after performance by the Group; NHH customers with 15 day payment terms
and HH customers with 30 day payment terms, Some customers pay by moenthly direct debit and the Group
aims to recover billed amounts every 3 months.

4.2 Power purchase costs

Power purchase costs can typically take 14 months from the date of supply to be finalised due to the
processes that the energy market has to complete in order to findlise generation and consumption data for
any one particular month. Therefore there is an element of power purchase costs that needs to be estimated
based on a combination of in-house and industry data that is available at any particular point in time.,

4.3 inventories

The Group carries ROCs as stock in its balance sheet. These are valued at the lower of cost or estimated
realisable value. Gains or losses made on ROCs which are subsequently sold, are only recognised in the
Staternent of Comprehensive Income when they crystallise.

The final out-turn value of a ROC is only published by Ofgem in October foliowing the compliance year (April
to March) which may requrie ¢ final adjustment to gains or losses on the sale or purchase of ROCs previously
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

4.4 Provisions for Expected Credit Losses

The assessments undertaken in recognising provision have been made in accordance with IFRS ¢. A provision
for impairment of trade receivables is established based on an expected credit loss model Please see note 4.1
above for detail.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. Discontinued operations

The group has discontinued its Generation Development activities but is explering a number of potential
options to realise value from the portfolio, through partnerships or sales to external parties who will continue
10 develop the sites. The results of this segment are shown in the segmental analysis of the Group statement of
comprehensive income in note 6.

The major classes of assets of the Generation Development segment are classified as disposal groups held for
scle (see note 21) or Generation Development site inventories (see note 18).

There is a £566k tax charge related to the discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2018,
During the year there was a foss on the remeasurement to Fair Value Less Costs to Sell of £564k in regards to
the valuation of the Mapperton transformer (£354k to £300k).

The net cash flows of the discontinued operations in the year are gs follows:-

Operating (397) (262}

Investing 151 -
Financing 607 267
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 361 5

Basic and diluted, loss for the year from discontinued
operations

(a.6p) (25.2p)

6. Segmental Analysis

The chief operating decision-maker has bean identified as the Board of Directors (the 'Board”), The Board
raviews the Group's internal reparting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management
has determined the operating segments based on these reports. The Board considers the business from

o business cluss perspective, with sach of the main trading subsidiaries accounting for each of the
business classes.

The main segments are:-

Supply Companies (including eleatricity supply, FIT administration and gas supply);
Electricity Generation Companies (including wind and solar gensration companies),
Generation Development (29 early stage development companies)

Holding companias, being the activity of Good Energy Group PLC

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segmaents,

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments basad primarily on summary financtal
information, extracts of which are reproduced befow. An analysis of profit and loss, assets and fabilities and
additions to non-current asset, by class of business, with o reconciliation of segmental analysis to reported
results follows.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transcotions
with third parties.
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6. Segmental Analysis (continued)

. " . o
& , Hold )
Yoar endéd  Eeotricity FIT : ' - L © m,g Totgl - Generation a
: . T ‘ . Gos  Totol Supply EBlectricity  Companias/, L :
31 December - Supply  admin- . ) U Continuing Dewelopment - Fotal &
S : ’ i . Supply - Companies Generation Consolidation : ) K =,
2018 ) istration - o ) co Operations  (Discontinued) o
o I o : Adjustrnents ) z
£000s £000s . £0007% £000s £000s £000%s £000s £000's £000's g
Revenue
Revenue from
tract
\C:;;’OCS 80121 4856 27998 112975 195 - 113470 9 113179
I
custorners
AT/ROC
subsidy - - - - 3,745 - 3,745 - 3,745
revenue
Inter-
nter-segment _ _ _ _ 4369 (8,369) ) B B
revenue
Total revenue 80,121 4856 27998 112975 8,309 (4,369 116915 9 114,924
Expenditure s}
[+
Costof sales  (60,190)  (B73) (18575) (79.638) (3.828) - (83.456) {72y (83,538) §
3
Inter— t g
MErsegment 4 3693 - - (4.369) - 4369 - - - 3
cost of sales o
Gross profit 15562 3083 9423 28,968 4481 - 33,449 (63) 33,386 -g
&
-
Administroti -~
ministretve (22.172) (316) (3.087) (255743 (1243 (25.498)
expenses
Tidal L
aar Fageon - - 500 500 (500) -
write off
D iati
eprecm.l Ioh (1.081) - (645) (1726 - (17263
& amortisation
O ti
perating 5715 4,166 (3232 6649 687) 5,962
profit/{loss)
Net finance
income/ 12 (3574) (7833 (4,345) - (4,345)
{costs)
Profit/(l
rofit/(loss) 5727 592 (4.015) 2304 (687) 1617
efore tax - S .
Segrments assets & liobilities
Segment
463,898 99,253 (52,095 111,066 7.734 118,790
assels
Segrnent .
. 51116 104,897 {735486) 82,467 17497 27,964
Eﬁuqbalsia‘es
Net assets/
. 12782 (b.644) 21,451 285689 (@763 18826
(lichilities) 4
Additions to
non-current 1577 34 & 1617 4 1,613
assets
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6. Segmental Analysis (continued)

Revenus

Revenue from

contracts with 68,801 5,006
customers

FIT/ROC

subsidy - -
revenue

Inter-segment

revenue

Total Revenue 68,801 5,006

Expenditure

Costof sales  ¢52,139)  (B05)

Inter-s 1ent
r-segmen (3.688) _

cost of sales

Gross Profit/

4
(loss) 1297

4,501

Adrinistrative
expenses
Depreciation
& amortisation
Operating
profit/(loss)
Net finance
income/
(costs)
Profit/(loss)
before tax
Segments assets & liabilities
Segment
assets
Segment
labilities

Net assets/
(liabilities)
Additions to
non-current
assets

255617 99324

25617 99.324

(17710  ¢70,354)

- (3,688)
1507 zazéé
(20,529)
(1.229)

3524

(32)

3,492

59,756
52,348

7.408

817

All turnover arose within the United Kingdom.

1,540

3,045

3,688

8873

(4.824)

4,049

(391)

3,658

(4,947)

(12893

106,195
111947

(5,752)

5677

(3.688)

(3.688)

3,688

(1,436)

{1543

(15903
121

(1,469

(52.315)
(72.741)

20426

159

100,864

3.645

104,509

(75,178)

29,331

(22,3567

(1.383)

55692

(4,858)

734

113636

91554

22,082

6,663

17

17

(3.700)

(3.683)

(328)

&)

4.012)

(4,012

8,453

12,450

(3.997)

locgsl

3645

104,526

(78,878

25648
(22,684)
(1.384)

1580

(4,858)

122,089
104,004

18,085

6653

Coensolidation adjustrments relate to inter-company sales of generated electricity and the elimination of inter-

company balances.
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7. Operating Profit and Administrative Expenses

Note 2018 2017 g
£00O's £000's %-
The operating profit is stated after charging: %J
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 2948 3,233 +
Armortisation of intangible assets 15 858 1009
Operating lease rentals 880 1191
Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit of parent and consolidated financial 60 27
statements
Audit of subsidiaries 96 98
Fees in relation to overruns of 2017 audit 48 -
”Su‘b‘ilot‘t‘:a! 4(;udit} - | 204 125
Other services - 10 g
Sub'to‘tcl {non-audit) - 10 é
The administrative expenses comprise the following: z
Staff costs - | 13,622 10,929 -53_
Rent and office costs 3,869 5421
Marketing costs 2,005 2,660
Professional fees and bank charges 3268 3,292
Expected Credit Loss provision 3576 2,041
Write back of unclaimed overpayments (1.027) -
Depreciation and amortisation 1232 1,230
WIP writedown 378 -
Writa down of invéstmer\t in Tidal Lagoon 5Q0 -
Gain on disposal of Newton Downs site - (1,508)
To;u‘I - 27,;423 ’ U 24,068

The Board has decided to write down the value of our investmant in Swansea Bay Tidal Lagoon ple to nil,

following recent news announcements on the future of the project. The investment had o carrying valus as at
31 December 2017 of £0.5m.

In the second half of 2018, o new policy for credit write backs was approved by the Board. This statss that all
credits on final customer accounts will be written back after all reasonable endeavours have been made to
contact the custorner. The exceptional credit in 2018 incerporates remaining credit balances from previously
utilised systems and covers the pariod from 2003 to 2016, On an ongoing basis, the release of credits wil be
included within administrative costs.
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8. Profit of the Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Staternent of Comprehensive Income of the

parent company is not presented as part of these financial statements.
Q. Staff Costs

Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, were as follows:

Wages and salaries 9520
Social security costs 1019
Share based payrnents 358
Other pension costs 459
lotalstaffcosts 11356
Capitalised staff costs - ey
;r'otla‘tue)‘cplensed staff'costs . 11154

Details of share based payments can be found in note 30.

11628

1103
263
472

13,466
(148)

13318

The average monthly number of employees, including the Directors, during the year was as follows:

Operations 110

Business services 186
Total management and administration 296

The total numbers of employees, including the Directors, at the year end were as follows:

Operations 119

Business services 184
Total management and administraticn 303
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10. Directors’ and Key Management Remuneration

i‘)ire'ctogs’ Kc:md Keyt Mgnmgement émoluménts 2018 2017
. £000's £000's
Short term employae benefits 1,373 1,470
Post employment benefits 107 115
Share based payments 358 262
Tﬁtul 1,838 1847

Key management are considered to be the directors of Good Energy Group PLC and the executive team. The
emoluments relating to these teams are included in the table above.

During the year retirement benefits were acoruing to 3 Directors of the Group (2017 3) in respect of money
purchase pension schemes.

In respect of the highest paid Director, the Group paid remuneration of £323 336 (2017: £252,164), including
contributions to the monay purchase pension scheme of §27,170 (2017: £25,750).

Individual remuneration for the Directors is set by the Remuneration Committee of the Board which consists
entirely of Non-Executive Directors. Appropriate keyman insurance pclicies are in place,

During the year, 100,350 share options wers exarcised by Directors or key management (2017: nil). The
aggregate amount of gains made by diractors or key management on the exercise of share options was
£121,476 (2017: nil).

Detalls of the directors’ remuneration as required by AIM rule 19 are given in the table in the directors’
remuneration report on page 53 and are included in this note by cross reference.

11. Finance Income

Bank and other interest receivables 16 P
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Finance Costs

On bank loans and overdrafts 3,051 3,082

On corporate bond 1,092 1,345
Cther interest payable 26 203
Amortisation of debt issue costs 192 230
To“t,;ﬁ ae e e 4‘:;61.., e 4860

13. Taxation

Analysis of tax charge in year

Current tax (see note below)

Current Tax - -
Adjustments in respect of prior years - -

Total current tax - _

Deferred tax

Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 505 (732)
Ad;ustments in respect of pnor yeors 211 187

,,Toml defe”.ed tax (see nom 23) L 716 B, (545> N
’Tax on prof:t/(foss} on ordmory actlvmes . & o 7i6 T (545)

Adjustrnents in respect of prior years’ deferred tax amounts are from updated assumptions regarding capital
allowances claimed and allowable expenditure,

income tax expense/{credit) reported in the

statement of profit and loss - continuing eperations 660 (566)
Income tox ottr*butable to o discontmued operc:tnon 56 21
?otal tax chqrge/(credlt) for year 716 (545)
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13. Taxation (Continued)

Factors affecting the tax credit for the year _‘Q
The tax assessed for the year is higher (2017: lower) thon the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of %
19.00% (2017: 19.26%). The differences are explained as follows: ‘g.
e
)
2018 ‘ 2017 %
=y
£000's . ECOOs
Accour&ting profit before tax from continuing 2304 734
operations
Loss before tax from discontinued operations (687) (4,012)
Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 1617 (3278
Profit/(loss) befere tax multiplied by the standard
rate of Corporation Tax in the UK of 19.00% (2017: 307 {631
19.25%)
Tax effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 235 48 @
-
Nen-taxable gain on sale of investrment - (258) %
D
Effects of changes in tax rate (46) 97 §
=
Restricted intarest costs deduction (85) 52 2
&
Prior year adiustrment - deferred tax 211 187 -
Deferred tax on fosses not recognised 132 -
Deferred tax on interest costs recognised (38) -
Total tax charge/{credit) for year 716 GLIY)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2015 (on 26
Cetober 2015) and Finance Bill 2016 (on 7 September 2016). These include reductions to the main rate to
reduce the rates to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17% from 1 April 2020. Deferred taxes at the balance sheet
date have been measurad using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements.
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13. Taxation (Continued)

Corporation tax payable/(recoverable) as per Statement of Financial Position

UK Corporaticn Tax on profits for the year - - - -

14. Earnings/(loss) Per Ordinary Share

Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the proefit/(loss) ottributabie to owners of the
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares during the yeaor after excluding 403,270
(2017: 463,239) shares held by Clarke Willmott Trust Corporation Limited In trust for the Good Energy Group
Employee Benefit Trust.

Profit/(loss) attributable toc owners of the Company

901 2,733
(£000's) ¢ )
Bosm}: weighted average number of ordinary shares 16,109 16,00%
(0G0's)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 5.6p (17.1p)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

1
(5000's) 1,644 300
Bosacj. weighted average number of ordinary shares 16,109 16,006
(000's)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share 10.2p 81p
Diluted

Liluted earnings per share is caloutated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares

to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. Potentially dilutive ordinary shares arise

from awards made under the Group's share-based incentive plans. Where the vesting of these awards is
contingent on satisfying a service or performance condition, the number of potentially dilutive ordinary shares
is codeulated based on the status of the conditicn at the end of the period. Potentially dilutive ordinary shares
are actually dilutive only when the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the period
exceeds their exercise price (options) or issue price (other awards).
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14. Earnings/(loss) Per Ordinary Share (Continued)

The greater any such excess, the greater the dilutive effect, In accordance with IAS 33 Earnings per share’, ©
for the purposes of caleulating diluted loss per share, the effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares was not §
taken into account for the year ended 31 December 2017 due to there being u loss for the year. The average &
market price of the Company's ardinary shares during the year was 126p (2017: 230p). The dilutive effect o
of share-baosed incentives was 289,262 (2017: nil). The dilutive effect of share-based incentives for continuing é"
operations was 289,262 shares (2017: 918,989 shares). b4
. Consolidated
2018 0 zo7
Profit/{loss) attributable to owners of the
901 2,733
Company (£000's) ( )
Weighted a’verage number of diluted ordinary 16,399 16,006
shares (G00's)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 55p (17.1p)
- Consolidated .
L2018 iAok v %
. . 3
Droﬂt/l(loss) attriputable to owners of the Company 1664 1300 B
(£000's) 8
P
. . . =
Weighted o,veroge number of diluted ordinary 16.399 16,925 3
shares (000's) 1
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 10.0p 7.7p
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Assets held for sale
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation
At L January 2018

Assets held for sale
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2018
Net book value

At 1 Jonuary 2018

At 31 December 2018
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677

(394)

(85)

(479) &

138

198

1649

151

1,800

(1.126)

(280)

(1.406)

523

394

62,061

®
34

62,081

(9,739)

(2,583)

(17,397)

52,312

49,759

(11.259)

(2,948)

(14,207)

52973

50,351
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

. w0

Coa&didqt,od K .  lLeasehold ’;::::j; " Generation  Assets under Total g
Yeor ende§ 31 Qeca@ber 2017  improvements equipment assets ' construction ' ' *%

£000's £000's £000s . £000's £000's -§
Cost *
At 1 January 2017 510 Q88 65982 180 67 660
Assets held for sale - - (4,424) - (4.424)
conracton . 1680 : (180) :
Additions 22 552 5341 - 5,615
Disposals - (71) (4,848) - 4,919
At 31 December 2017 - 532 1,649 62,051 - 64,232
Acoumuloted depreciation g
At 1 January 2017 (334) (826) (7.003) - {8,163y g
Assets held for sale - - 137 - 137 ?q’,
Charge for the year (60) (300) (2,873 - {3,233 -g
Disposals - - - - - +
At 31 December 2017 - (394) (1.126) (9.739) - (11,259)
Net book volue
At 1 January 2017 176 162 58,979 180 59497
Ai 31‘Decez"nber 2017 135 \ 523 ‘52,3142 . - o 52,973

The Generation assets relate to electricity generating assets (wind turbines, sclar panels and ancillaries).
Those assets held within the company's subsidiaries: Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited; Good Energy
Hampole Wind Farm Limited: Good Energy Woolbridge Solar Park Limited: Good Energy Creathorne Solar
Park Limited, Good Energy Rook Wood Solar Park Limited, Good Energy Carloggas Solar Park Limited, Geod
Energy Lower End Solar Park Limited and Good Energy Cross Roads Sclar Park Limited have been pledged as
security against bank and other loan liabilities.

Assets reclassified to assets held for sale are disclosed in note 21,
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16. Intangible Assets

Cost

At 1 January 2048
Additions
Disposals

Impairment

At 31 December 2018

Acocumulated
amortisation

At 1 Jonuary 2018
Charge for the vear
Disposal

At 31 Decernber 2018

Net book vedize
At 1 January 2018
At 31 December 2018

Cost

At 1 Januory 2017

Transfer of assets
in course of
development

Additions
At 31 December 2017

180

180

i80

180

180

5,450

144

5.604

(4,034)
(867)

 (4.903)

3,462
1,597

401
5,460
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152 1,446

6 -
&P -
149 1,446
€ -

g .
143 1,446
149 1.446

g 1446
143 -
152 1446

351
1137

(378)
1,110

1.740

(1740

351

351

7589
1,287
£
378y
8.489

(4,045)
(867
g

: (4903)

3,544

3586

6,837

752

7,589
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16. Intangible Assets (continued)

Accurmnulated amortisation

At 1 Janucry 2017 - (3027 (% - (3.036)
Charge for the year - (1,00%) - - - (1,009
At 31 December 2017 - (4.036) (%) - - (4.045)

Net book value
At 1 January 2017 180 435 - 1,446 1,740 3,801
At 31 December 2017 i80 1,424 143 1,446 351 3544

Assets under the course of development relate to the implementation of new Smart meter technology & o
new app interface.

All amortisation armounts are included within administration expenses.

Goodwill of £1,446,453 (2017: £1.446,453) comprises £1,060,9%6 (2017 £1,060,996) arising from the original
acquisition of Good Energy Limited, and £385,457 (2017: £385,457) from the original acquisition of the wind
farm at Delabole.

The carrying values of indefinite life assets included in intangible assets are: geodwill of £1,444,453

(2017: £1,444,453) and Power Supply Licence of £180,000 (2017 £180,000) which relates to the subsidiary,
Geod Energy Limited. In arriving at the conclusion that these assets have an indefinite life, management have
cbserved that the power licence is awarded until any brecch of conditions stipulated by Ofgem and the
treatment of goodwill is aligned with the accounting standards. An impairment review is undertaken annually or
mare freguently.

The result of this review was that no impairment is required in respect of the carrying values of the indefinite
life assets. The key assurmptions for value in use are as follows:

Gross margin® 20%-30% 20%-30%
Growth rate beyond five year plon 3% 2%
Pre tax discount rate 8% 11%

*annual margins have been modelled in the five year cashflow at varying levels.

Sensitivity analysis has been perfermed on the impairment review. It has been noted that an increase in the
discount rate by 16% would not result in an Impairment of the goodwill, Managemaent believe any increase in
discount rotes above 10% to be remote and therefore the Directors believe there to be significant headroom.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17a. Investments and Intercompany Receivables

Cost and net book value

At 1 January 2018 4,646 37.048
Additions - 3.082
Provisions - (500)
Repayments - (9.028)
At 31 December 2018 1646 30,602

Cost and Net book value

41,694

3,082
(500)
(9.028)

35,248

At 1 January 2017 4,644 37,610 42,266
Additions - 23861 23,861
Provisions - (4,000 (4.000)
Repayments - (20,423) (20.423)

At 2t D;camber 2017 e 4646 . 37048 L 41694

Loans to Group undertakings are repayable by 31 December 2020. Interest rates
range from 2.75% to 8.85%.

charged on these loans

The Group had the following subsidiaries ot 31 December 2048 (all of which have the same registered address
as Good Energy Group PLC, which can be found within the Directors and Corporats Resources section on the

final page of this repaort):

Good Energy Limited UK 100%
Good Energy Gas Limited UK 10024
Qo?d Energy Generation UK 100%
Limited

Good Energy Generation

Holding Company No.l UK 100%

Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17a. Investments and Subsidiaries (continued)

Good Energy Generation
Assets No.l Limited*

Good Energy Hampole
Windfarm Limited*

Good Energy Woolbridge
Solar Park Limited*

Good Energy Creathorne
Solar Park Limited*

Good Energy Rook Wood
Solar Park Limited*
Good Energy Carloggas

Solar Pork Limited*

Good Energy Lower End
Solar Park Limited*

Good Energy Cross Roads
Plantation Solar Park
Limited*

Good Energy Delabole Wind
Farm Limited

Good Energy Cedar
Windfarm Limited

Good Energy Lanyon Solar
Park Limited

Good Energy Mapperton
Solar Park Limited

Good Energy Brynwhilach
Sotar Park Limited

Good Energy Tidal Limited

Good Energy Development
(No.1) Limited
Good Energy Development
(No.3) Limited
Good Energy Development
(No.4) Limited

Good Energy Development
(No.5) Limited

Good Energy Development
(No.6) Limited

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

10G%

106%

100%

100%

85%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

180%

100%

160%

holding cempany for
generating assets
subsidiaries

generation of electric power
by wind turbine machinery

generation of slectric power
oy solar ponels

generation cf electric power
by selar panels

generation of electric power
py solar ponels

generation of slectric power
by solar panels

generation of electric power

by solar panels

generation of electric power
by sclar panels

generation of electric power
by wind turbine machinery

development of an energy
generating asset

davelopment of an energy
generating asset

development of an energy
generating asset

development of an energy
generating asset

investrnent holding
company

development of an energy
generating asset

devetopment of an energy
generating asset

developrnent of an energy
generating asset

developrment of an energy
generating asset

development of an energy
generating asset
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17a. Investments and Subsidiaries (continued)

Good Energy Development
(No 7) le ted

Good Energy Development
(No.8) leited

Sood Energy Developmen‘{

(No. ‘?) L |mzted

Good Energy Development
(No 10) le|ted

Good Energy Development

(No lZ) Limited

Good Energy Development
(No. 14) lelied

Good Energy Development
(No. l5) Lirnlled

Good Energy Deve!opment
(No.1&) Limited
Good Energy Development
(No 17) lelted

Llangyfeiach Communlty
Solar Farm CIC

Worminster Down Somerset

Community Solar Farm CLC

Good Energy Development
(No.20) Limited

Good Energy Developrent

(No Zl Lxmtted

Good Energy Developmem
{No. 22} lelted

Good Energy Development

(No 24) L|m|led

Good Energy Development
(No 25) Lamlled

Good Energy Deve!opment
(No.26) Limited

Good Energy Development
(No.27) lelted

Good Fnergy Development
(No.28) Limited

Good Erergy Development
(No.29) Limited

122

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
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100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

developmaent of an energy
generating asset

development of an energy
generutlng osset

development of an eneargy
generohng osset

development of an energy
generotmg osset

development of an energy
generotang Gsset

development of an energy

generating asset

development of an energy

genermlng o.sset

development of an energy
generotlng osset

development of an energy
generating esset

deveiopment of an energy
generati ng osset

development of an energy
generotlng cnsset

development of an energy

generotang csset

development of an energy

generating asset

development of an energy
genermlng qsset

development of an energy

generating asset

developrent of an energy

generating asset
development of an energy

generating asset
development of an energy

genercmng osset

development of an energy
generclt ng asset

development of an energy
qenerc}t;nq asset



Notes to the Financial Statements

17a. Investments and Subsidiaries (continued)

Good Energy Developrnent development of an energy
= UK 160% )
(Ne.30) Limited generating asset

Haormegrown Energy Limited UK 100% dormant

*Entities indirectly owned by Good Energy Group PLC.

The subsidiaries above have all been included in the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment

The Group performed an impairment test in December 2018, The Group considers the relationship between
its market capitalisation and its book value, amoeng other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment.
As at 31 December 2018, the market capitalisation of the Group was below the book value of its equity,
indicating a potential impairment.

The recoverable amount of the intercompany loan receivable balance in the parent company has been
determined based on an assessmant of forward looking estimates of cash flows and a probabifity of default.
The projected cash flows have been adjusted to allow for normalised business (i.e. no new business activity
costs or revenue are included), and are considering a prudent case. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash
fiow projections is 8%, and cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using a 3.0% growth
rate. It was concluded that the future cash flows do exceed the value of the intercompaony loan receivable,
and therefore no Expected Credit Loss provision is required.

Key assumptions used in Expected Credit Loss calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions
The calculation of value in use is Most sensitive to the following assumptions:
» Discount rate

+  Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period

Discount rate - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to the Group,
taking into consideration the time value of monegy. The discount rate is derived from the Group's weighted
average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity.

A rise in the pre-tox discount rate to 9% would result in impdirment.

Growth rate estimates - Rates are based on rnanagement's prudent estimates of expected growth rates. A
decrease in the growth rate estimate to 1.9% would result in impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17b. Fair Value Through Profit or Loss Financial Assets

Cost and Net baok value
At 1 Jonuary 2018 500
Impairment 50
A{éib;é;mb'ar-édla ‘ L o G e e

As part of our overall financial review, we continue to monitar the fair value of all of our investrments thorough
Both an understanding of the wider environment in addition to tha underlying economios of all assets across
the business,

As ¢ result of this Rrocess, the Board has decided to write down the value of our investment in Swanseq Bay
Tidal Lagoon ple to Nil, following recent News announcements on government position on offering a contract
for difiersnce to the projest. The impairment wilt be for the vakie of £500k. The Bogrd have decided that due
o the uncertainty reg NG ongoing investment in the project and the likelihcod of realising a return on the
initial Investment, it is prudent to reflect this in o lower valuation. Unger [FRS 13, this impairrment would not be
permanent and could be uplifted again should the circumstances change.

roje
ardi

The investment had o carrying value as at 31, December 2017 of £05m and will be reported under
Discontinued Operations,

18. Inventories

Renewable Obligation Certificates

Erission Certificates

Generation Development sites - - - 954

Total - - 8,580 ?881

As at 31 December 2018 there were Renewabia Obiligation Certificates (ROCs) of £5,199 973 (2017

£5.804,944) included in the above amount that were unissued for generation that had already taken place
and therefore these ROCS were not available for sale before the and of the financial ysar,

The cost of inveritories recognised as an expens, including the impairment value, and included in 'cost of
safes’ omounted to £10.9m (2017 £3.7m).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. Trade and Other Receivables

o0
. Y -
Porent Company ' Consolidated - a
]
2018 2017 2018 2017 ‘5_:
£000's 50005 £000's - £000s g
' ]
Gross trade receivables and unbilled receivables 817 - 31,349 33526 +
Prcvis?cn for impairment/non-payment of trade _ B (5.922) (4535)
receivables
Net trade receivables and unbilled receivables 817 - 25,427 28,991
Prepayments and other debtors 4 163 4,087 1,647
Other taxation 9 15 282 2,060
Totat 920 178 29,796 32.698
Whare a customer account is in credit this is included in contract liabilities in note 27 "frade and
other payables’.
The Group has a grovision in place to set aside an allowance to cover potential impairment and non- ')
payment of trade receivables. An Expected Credit Loss provision has been calceulated on trade receivables g
in accordance with IFRS 2. Some trade receivables are with customers wha do net have externally available g
credit ratings. 2
]
Tha movements on the provision for impairment and non-payment of trade receivables is shown below: %
, . . 2
B T T PTIPANPR S SRR ]
‘Movement on the provision for impairmentand = =~ 2018 . L RO e -
nons dereceivables ' .00 oo 00050 IR000S
Balance ot 1 January 4535 3,932
Increase in allowance for impairment/non-payment 3576 2,041
Irnpairment/non-payment osses recognisad (2.189) (1.438)
Balance at 31 December 5922 4535

Expected Credit

- 3%
lL.oss rate
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at - 14,473
default
Expected Credit B 480

Loss rate

8% 19%
4,105 2,280 1453
173 275

2,038 31,349

4,804 5922
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Expected Credit

- 2% 3% 6% 16% 34%
Loss rate
Estimated totalf gross
carrying amount at - 14500 4329 2298 1564 10835 33526
default
Expected Credit - 356 140 141 243 3,655 4535

Loss rate

All trade receivables are designated as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

20. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash ot bank and in hand 309 568 8,040 9,878

Short-term bark deposits - - 3,081 831
Security deposits - - 454) 3,011
Total 309 568 15,662 13,720

As part of the bank loan agreements, the lenders require @ minimum cash balance to be held in separate
reserve aceounts, these balances are disclosed as Restricted deposit accounts in non-current assets on
the Staterment of Financial Position. included within cash at bank and in hand for both the pargnt company
and the consolidated position is £215,579 (2017: £200,321) in respect of monies held by the Good Energy
Employee Benefits Trust. The credit gquality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings as follows:-

AA-
A+
A

B-
BBB+ - - 3,540 2,561
Totai 309 568 15,662 13720

Cash and cash equivalents are all financial assets designated as financial assets at amortised cost.,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

21. Disposal groups held for sale

Censofidated 2018 Consolidated 2017

£000's sooos
Property, plant and equipment 6,649 5,653
Total assets 6,649 5663
Carrying value 6,649 5,583

The property, plant and equipments assets held for sole at 31 December 2018 relote to Good Energy
Brynwhilach Solar Park Limited, sale contracts were exchanged before the balance sheet date. These also
relate to o wind development project, residential property and a transformer. These were actively marketed
for sale in the year ended 31 December 2018.

22. Share Capital and Share Premium

Number of =~

shares issusd and Share Gopitel . ShOrePremium L
= uiiypaud I : Accuunt SRR
L £000s . £000's - £000s
At 1 January 2017 16,484,703 825 lé,546 13371
Proceeds from shares issued 32,457 1 106 107
A‘t 31 éeeer‘eber 2017 16,617,160 826 | lZ,bSé 13,4;8 o
Proceeds from shares issued 54,361 3 &7 70
At 31 December 5618 16,571.521 829 o 12,719 13,548

The ordinary shares are the only class of shares in the Company. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to vote
at general mestings of the Company and receive dividends as declared. The Articles of Association of the
Company do not contain any restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voting rights.

In 2018, the company issued 54,361 ordinary sharas of bp each for total consideration of £69,621 resulting in

a share premium of £66,903. This relates to two scrip dividend issues in lieu of full year and interim dividend
cash payments of 35,845 and 18,516 shares respectively (2017: 22,071 and 10,384 shares respectively). Share
premium in the period includes o further credit of £8,701 in relation to the final costs incurred against the 2017
share issue.

Clarke Wilimott Trust Corporation Limited holds in trust 403,270 (2017: 463,239) ordinary shares of the
company for the present and the future beneficiaries of the Good Energy Group Employee Share Option
Scheme. These are deducted from equity as shown in the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements
of Changes in Eguity. During the year the Trust disposed of 59,969 (2017: 32,500) shares as a result of options
exercised and acquired nil (2017 nil) shares.

The Directors recornmend a final dividend of 2.5p per share (2017: 2.3p) subject to shareholder approval at
the Company's AGM.

Financial statements 127

yioday oibajong

&
Q
<
o
5
fo)
3
Q
[+
~
]
-]
Q
=y
-~




Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Deferred Taxation

The provision for deferred taxation is made up as follows:

At 1 January 145 684

(Credited)/cho_rged to the Consolidated Statement 717 (545)

of Comprehensive Income

Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries - 0o

Charged to equity 65 106
At 31December . . L e L 027 e e B 14.5

On short term timing differences 65 123
Losses 860 1,809
Interest deductible 11 -
Tom,l‘ e . B . 936 . I 1932 ,

On accelerated capital aliowances 1,863 2077
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23. Deferred Taxation (continued)

=4
Acocelerated Short-term ’ . %
o - Interast , -
capital timing Losses o Total o
, deductible. - ,
allowances ~ differences e F34
| . 3
£000's £000's £000s - £000's £000
Deferred tax ussets/(fabilities)
At 1 January 2017 (1,642) 236 722 - (684)
Credited/
. redited/{charged) to (537 1% 1089 _ 545
income statement
lirmingti .
E |m|nc:.ti<.m fan disposal 100 ~ _ _ 100
of subsidiaries
(Charged) to equity - {106) - - (1063
At 31 December 2017 (2679 123 1811 - (145>
ited/ t i
Credited/(charged) to the income 216 5 (951 1 747 o
statement 2
@
Elimination on disposal §
of supsidiaries ) - - ) : 3
]
(Charged) to equity - (65) - - (65) _g
At 31 December 2018 (1.863) 65 860G 11 (927> -

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of pre 1 April trading losses. If the Group were able to
recognise the deferred tax asset the profit would increase by £176k.
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24. Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities

Current:

Bank and other borrowings 411 447 2,668 5,606
Bond 3,595 8,288 3,595 8288
Loans from Group companies 3,528 187 - -
T s gwm ezes s

Non current;

Bank and other borrowings 108 519 37,297 39,378
Bond 17,167 16,666 17167 16,666
Total 17,275 17,185 54,464 KAN044

The Group has undrawn bank overdraft facilities of £10,000.000 (2017 : £10,000,000) as at 31 December 2018
and undrawn revolving oredit facilities of nil (2017 £822,140). These focilitiss are secured by guarantees from
Good Energy Limited, Good Energy Gas Limited and other group entities.

At 31 December 2018, £6,193,641 (2017: £6,834,691) of the bank loans relote to the company’s subsidiary,
Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited and is secured by a mortgage debenture on that company dated
16 January 2010 incorparating a fixed and floating charge over all current and future assets of that subsidiary.
The facility will be repaid from future cash flows arising from the wind farm of this company. On 7 January
2011, the loan balance was transferred from the build phase to the repoyment phase, with repayments of
capital and Interest scheduled bi-annually over 15 Yeors.

As part of the facility Good Energy Delabole Wind Farm Limited entered into o floating rate to fixed rate
interest swap. Thay were entered into at the same time and in contemplation of one another, have the same
counter-party, relate to the same risk and amortise concurrently. Given these circumstances and the fact that
there is no economic need or substantive business purpose for structuring the transactions separately that
could not also have been accomplished in a single transaction thess instruments are treated as one fixed rate
loan instrument. The fixed rate interest is payable at an annual rate of 7.15%.
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24. Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2018, £34,990,240 inclusive of £605,731 of accrued interest (2017: £35,704,211 inclusive of
£617,341 of accrued interest) of the bank loans relate to the company's subsidiary, Good Energy Generation
Assets No. 1 Limited. The loan is secured by a mortgage debenture on that company and its subsidiariss
dated 17 December 2014 incorporating charges over the shares of that company and those of its subsidiaries.
The facility will be repaid from future cash flows arising from the subsidiaries of that company with
repayments of capital and interest scheduled quarterly over a period of 18 years commencing

17 December 2014. Interest is pavable at 6.85% and the outstanding principal balance is partially exposed if
annual RPtinflation exceeds 3%. Costs incurred in raising finance were £2,754,299 (2017 £2,7564,29%) and are
being armortised over the fife of the loan,

The Bond | holders who rolied over to Bond Il in 2017 deemed to have had their terms substantially maodified
and have been treated for accounting purposes as a derecognition of the original bond and a recognition of
a new liability, Bond | holders who have remained in Bond | have not been deemed to have had their tarms
substantially modified and so have been treated for accounting purposes as a modification of their existing
liability. The modification of the liobility was not material to the financial statements.

S ~ater- . Bankand
Parent Company . company | Bond  other ... |
SRS © £000's - EODO's | £000's
31 December 2018
Due less thon 1 year 3529 3.595 &5 345 7.534
Due between 1 and 5 years - 17,167 58 50 17,275
Total 3529 20,762 123 395 24,809
 ntere - Bankend 0
c T o o SEUETER L Finanee s
“esompany . © Bond e
N c i o Lease -
Cideeni. Co oo o borrowings .
£000s . £000s . £000% .7 K000
31 December 2017
Due less than 1 year 188 8,288 89 357 8922
Due between 1 and b years - 16,666 124 395 17.185
Total 188 24954 213 752 26,107
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Notes to the Financial Statements

24. Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities (continued)

31 December 2018

Due less than 1 year 2,668 3,595 6,263
Due between 1 and 5 years 8,456 17,167 25,623
Due more than 5 years 28,841 - 28,841
?.c;t;]f e T , PO . 39965 e 20762 SO ,,...50:7,27

31 December 2017

Due less than 1 year 5,606 8,288 13.894

Due between 1 and 5 years 8,121 16;666 24787

Due mare than 5 years 31287 - 31,257
,Tom.‘.!, R L . o , 44)554 . 24954 e 69"";38

The fair values of borrowings have been calculated takin
loans and the bond. The fair value estimates and carr
place at 31 December 2018 are:

g into account the interest rate risk inherent in the
ying vatues of borrowings (excluding issue costs) in

Good Energy Delabole Wind farm Ltd 6378 6,352 6,867 4,835
Good Energy Generation Assets No. 1 Limited 35,463 34,990 36,300 35,883
Corporate pond 20,353 20,409 24776 24,637

Borrowings are designated as other financial liabilities held ot amortised cost.
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25. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

v
. -1 Janugry : 31 December =1
2018 ' Cash flows Other 2018 %
. . Q
£000's - £000's £000s £000's ;
‘ (]
Current interest-bearing loans and ?{
borrowings (excluding items listed 13,894 {B,655) 613 5852 -
below)
Non-Current interest-bearing loans
and borrowings (excluding items listed 56,044 - (1.688) 54,356
below)
Current obligotions under finance 446 (447 412 411
leases and hire purchase contracts
Non»Currer&t. obligations under finance 519 _ (811) 108
leases and hire purchase contracts
Dividends payable 379 (462} 463 380
Totaf Habilitiss frorm financing activities 71,282 (2.564) (611) 61,107
@
The 'Other’ column includes the effect of raclassification of non-current portion of interest-bearing loans 2
and borrowings, including obligations under finance leases to current due to the passage of time, the 5
accrual of dividends that were not yet poid at the year-end, and the effect of accrued but not yet paid g
interest on interest-bearing loans and borrowings. The Group classifies interest paid as cash flows from 2
operating activities. 2
]
3

26. Provisions for liabilities

A provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with wind farms and solar parks owned
and operated by the Group. The value of the provision at 31 December 2018 is £1.42m (2017 £1.25m). The
decomissioning provision is based on MWh or number of turbines for the respective generating sites.

1 January 2018 1,250
Additions to provisions 174
Charged to Profit or Loss 22
31 December 2018 | 1,444
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27. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables

Accruals

Social security and other taxes

Contract liabilities

Total

196
144

340

&2
272

334

802
31,028
1512
3522

36,864

1,083

25,880
1647
4161

32,671

Trade payables, accruals and other payabies are designated as other financial liabilities held at
amortised cost.

The total of the 2017 contract liabilities were recognised as revenue in 2018,

28. Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to shareholders in the year (based on the number of shares in issue at the
date):

record

2.30p)

Final dividend prior year of 2.30p per share (2017

Interim dividend current year of 1.00p per share

(2017:

1.00p)

Sub-total

Dividends waived

Total

Dividends waived represent dividends that would cecrue on shares held by the Good Energy Group Employee
Benefits Trust were they not held by the Trust.

156

546

(14)
532

148

544

15
629

A final dividend of 2.5p per share was proposed on 21 March 2019, subject to shargholder approval ot the
company’s AGM.

Of the total dividend distributed for the year, £69,621 (2017: £69,254) was paid in the form of scrip dividends

with the balance of £461,714 (2017: £45%,163) settled in cash.
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29. Cash Generated from Operations

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 44
]
| - g
Parent Company - - Consolidated %
. i : . : it
2018 © 2017 2018 - . 2047 2
. . R : ]
£000's £000°s £000's - £000's -
Profit/(loss) befora tax from continuing operations 305 (2579} 2,304 734
Loss before tax from discontinuing cperations - - (687) (4.012)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 305 (2,579} 1617 (3.278)
Adjustments for:
Depreciction 150 154 2,948 3.329
Amortisation - - 858 1.008
Gain on assets disposals - - - (1,048)
Tidal Lagoon impairment 500 - 500 -
Q)
Wr'lte down of generation develoment work _ ) _ 3651 %
in progress 3
a
Provision against investments in and loans 3
g - 4,000 - - ]
to subsidiaries -
-]
Share based payments 358 - 358 263 %
Dividend income from subsidiaries (5.000) {3500} - -
Finance costs/(income) - net 783 120 4,345 4,858
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects
of acquisition and exchange differences on
consolidation)
Inventories - - 346 (4.998)
Trade and other receivables (743) (1045 2,682 (16494)
Trade and other payables (<] 4 4,415 12736
Cash (cutflow)/inflow from operations (3.641) (2,146 18,069 27
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30. Share Based Payments

In order to retain the services of key employess and to incentivise their performance, the Parent Company
operates the Good Energy Employee Share Option Scheme under which certain employees of the Group

are granted options to acquire Ordinary 5p Shares at future dates. Costs in respect of these options of
£357,633 (2017: £263,259) are recognised in the Censolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. As at 31
December 2018, the following options had been issued:

Outstanding at beginning

of yoet 1368347 1695071  1.00 111 1,367 1,889
Granted 505168 143891 0.05 005 450 7

Exercised (58.369) (30,000 1.36 125 79 (38)
Cancelled/surrendered (187.875) (440,615 0.30 111 (57) (491)
Qutstanding at the end 1627271 1368347  1.08 1.00 1,681 1,367

of year

*Prior year number of share options brought forward were incorrectly everstated by 40,000 resulting in an
incorrect number of share options as at 31 Necember of 1,408,247, This has now been corrected to the
correct total of 1,348,347,

In order to partially fulfil the aptions granted, 403,270 (2017: 463,239) shares representing approximately
25% (2017: 33%) of the options outstanding have dlready been issued and held by Clarke Willmott Trust
Corporation Limited as the Trustee of the Good Energy Group Employes Benefits Trust. Dividends have been
waived on these shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30. Share Based Payments (continued)

The opticns expire at various dates up to September 2031, Share options outstanding at the end of the year
have the following expiry date and exercise price:

Orantvest . Ewhyyear  CTgmReemERer  Swee epiens
2018 2017

2004-2007 2019 0.75 15 35
2012-2015 2025 0.50 189 189
2012-2016 2025 115 162 179
2013-2016 2026 125 206 189
2015-2017 2027 0.00 22 102
2016-2017 2027 229 200 200
2015-2018 2028 225 100 100
2015-2018 2028 227 24 24
2015-2018 2028 229 . ;
2016-2019 2029 0.05 117 206
2017-2020 2030 0.05 87 144
2018-2021 2031 0.05 505 ;
el o o v

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model was £0.76 per eption. The significant inputs inte the model were weighted average share
price of £0.89 ot the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of 13%, dividend vield of 3%, an
expected option life of three years and an annual risk-free interest rate of 0.3%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of continucusly compounded share returns is bhased on statistical anaiysis of daily share
prices over the last year. See note 10 for the total expense recognised in the incorme staterment for share
options granted to Directors and employees.

31. Pensions

The Group operates a defined contributions pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension cost represents contributions
payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to £458,538 (2017: £472,457).

Contributions totalling £57,630 (2017: £40,217) were payabie 1o the fund at the end of the financial year and
are included in other payables.

The Group has no further pension liability either realised or contingent and in line with the Group's
enviranrmental position all employer contributions are invested within a suitable fund.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

32. Commitments

32.1 Operating Lease Commitments The future aggregate minimum lease payments are as follows:

Leases as lessee:

Less than one year 729 754
Between one and five vears 2.00% 2103
More than five years 6141 ‘ 6,731
Towl R P . S 8871 9588 -

Leases as lessee;

Less than one vear 3 8
Between one and five years - 1
More than five years - -

Total 3 @

32.2 Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2018, the total capital commitments amount is nil (2017: nib. Of this nil (2017: nih) related to
contracts agreed on solar generation projects.

31.3 Finance lease and hire purchase commitments. The Group has finance leases and hire purchase
contracts for various ftems of computer hardware. The Group's ebligations under finonce leases are secured
by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Future minimurm lease payments under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are, os follows:

Within one year

Atter one year but not more than five years 63 58 133 124
More than five years - - - -

Total minimum lease payments 134 124 229 213

Less amounts representing finance charges [eli)’ - (16> -
Present value of minimum lease payments 124 124 213 213
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33. Related Party Transactions

During the period, the Group entered into an arm's length agreement with Martin Edwards for the provision

of consultancy services related to the evaluation of emerging renewable energy technologies and related
products and serviees. The agreement commenced on 1 June 2018 and can be terminated by either party on
1 months notice. The contracted annual value of the consultancy services is £18,000. Martin Edwards is a non-
executive director of Geod Energy Ltd and « former director of Good Energy Group ple.

As at 3ist December 2C18, Tidal Lagoon Power Lid owed the Group £22,630 in respect of elestricity supplied
to its heod office. The electricity was supplied by the Group in the ordinary course of its business and on arm’s
length rates and terms. The CEO of Tidal Lagoon Power Ltd is Mark Shorrock, the husband of Juliet Davenport.

34. Subsequent Events

On 5 March 2019 we announced the strategic investment in Zap-Map's parent company, Next Green Car Ltd,
We have the cpportunity to acquire a majority equity position aligned with the achievernant of financial and
develoment milestones over the next two years.

Zap-Map is the go-to app for Britain's 200,000 electric vehicle ("EV") drivers - planning routes, identifying
charge points, checking their availability and sharing power. Its 70,000 monthly users can choose from over
11,000 charging devices located across service stations, car parks, retail sites and private driveways from its
easily navigable & intuitive app. Both the number of EV drivers in the Zop-Map community and the number of
charge points in its network have been increasing rapidly, which enhances the data by actively logging the
stotus and availability of the national charging network.

The transaction has been structured so that the initial 12.9% minority equity investment will increase to 50.1%
aligned with product ond financial milestones over the next two years Total initial consideration of £1.08m,
rising to a maximurm of £1.80m including deferred consideration, consisting of: An initiol acquisition of 12.9%
of NGCL for a cash consideration of £0.28m, A further investment of £0.80m in NGCL by way of secured
conwvertible foan notes, comprising an initial tranche of §0.4m ond two further tranches of §0.2m. Deferred
consideration payable on satisfaction of product milestones in July 2020 and stretching financial milestone
targets in December 2021. The maximum possible deferred consideration is £0.72m. Goed Energy can
axercise the convertible loan up until 31 December 2021, If the corvertible loan note is not exercised by
Good Energy. it becomes repayable by NGCL. The consideration is to be funded from existing Good Energy

cash reserves,
35. Subsidiary Undertakings Exempt From Audit

Good Energy Group PLC has provided the necessary parental guarantees under section 479A of the
Companies Act 20056, to enable the following companies exernption from audit:

Good Energy Mapperton Solar Park (007) Good Energy Development (No.14) Limited
Limited Good Energy Devalopment (No.16) Limited
Good Energy Lanyoen Sclar Park (011) Limited Good Energy Development (No.16) Limited
Llangyfelach Community Solar Farm C.LC. Good Energy Develapment {No.17) Limited
Worminster Down Somerset Community Good Energy Development {(No.20) Limited
Solar Farm C.I.C. Gocd Energy Development {(No.21) Limited
Good Energy Development (No.1) Limited Good Energy Development (No.22) Limited
Good Energy Development (No.3) Limited Good Energy Development {(No. 24) Limited
Good Energy Development (No.4) Limited Good Fnergy Development (No.25} Limited
Good Energy Deveioprent (No.5) Limited Good Energy Developmant (No.26} Limited
Good Energy Developrnent (No.6) Limited Good Energy Development (No.27) Limited
Good Energy Development (No.8) Limited Good Energy Development (No.28) Limited
Good Energy Development (No.9) Limited Good Energy Development (No.29) Limited
Good Energy Development (No.10) Limited Good Energy Development (No.30) Limited
Goed Energy Development (No.12) Limited Good Energy Development (No.7) Limited

Good Energy Cedar Windfarm Limited
Good Energy Tidal Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36. Generation assets - technical data

Wind farms

Hampole, Scuth Yorkshire
Turbine manufacturer: Senvion
No. of turbines: 4

Installed capacity: 8.2MW
Turbine power output: 2.05 MW

Delabole, Cornwall

Turbine manufacturer: Enercon
No. of turbines: 4

Instlied capacity: 9.2MW
Turbine power output: 23 MW

Solar farms

Woolbridge, Dorset
Solar modules: Yingli
Nominal capacity DC: 4,996 kWp

Creathorne, Cornwall
Solar modules: Yingli
Nominal capacity 0C: 1,841 kWhp
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Solar farms (continued)

Rook Woaod, Wiltshire
Solar modules: ReneSola
Nominal capacity DC: 4,981 kWp

Lower End, Wiltshire
Solar modules: Jinko Solar
Nominal capacity DC: 4,999 kWp

Crossroads, Dorset
Solar modules: Jinko Solar
Nominal capacity DC: 4,999 kWp

Carloggas, Cornwaill
Solar modules: ReneSola
Nominal capacity DC: 8,304 kWp

Brynwhilach, Swansea
Solar modules: Canadian Solar
Nominal capacity DC: 4,994 kWp
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